
GOSPORT BOROUGH 
COUNCIL meeting

AGENDA
 

Wednesday, 7 October 2020
6.00 pm

Public Document Pack





1

Notice is hereby given that a MEETING of the COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF 
GOSPORT will be held  VIRTUALLY on WEDNESDAY the SEVENTH of OCTOBER 2020 
at 6PM, AND ALL MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL ARE HEREBY SUMMONED TO 
ATTEND TO CONSIDER AND RESOLVE THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS –

1.  To receive apologies from Members for their inability to attend the Meeting 

2.  Declarations of Interest 

3.  To confirm the Minutes of Meeting of the Council held on 29 July 2020 (copy 
herewith) 

4.  To consider any Mayor's Communications 

5.  To receive Deputations in accordance with Standing Order No 3.4 and to answer 
Public Questions pursuant to Standing Order No 3.5, such questions to be 
answered orally during a time not exceeding 15 minutes. 

(NOTE: Standing Order No 3.4 requires that notice of a Deputation should be 
received by the Borough Solicitor NOT LATER THAN 12 O’CLOCK NOON ON 
MONDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2020 and likewise Standing Order No 3.6 requires that 
notice of a Public Question should be received by the Borough Solicitor NOT 
LATER THAN 12 O’CLOCK NOON ON MONDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2020).

6.  Questions (if any) pursuant to Standing Order No 3.3. 

(NOTE: Members are reminded that Standing Order No 3.3 requires that Notice of 
Question pursuant to that Standing Order must be received by the Borough 
Solicitor NOT LATER THAN 12 O’CLOCK NOON ON TUESDAY, 6 OCTOBER 
2020).

7.  Consideration of recommendations by Boards of the Council: 

BOARD                                  DATE

            
Policy and Organisation Board           29 September 2020 (to follow)

8.  To receive the following Part II minutes of the Boards of the Council: 



2

BOARD DATE
Community Board
Housing Board 
Climate Change Board 
Economic Development Board 
Policy and Organisation Board

 9 September 2020
16 September 2020
17 September 2020
23 September 2020 (to 
follow)
29 September 2020 (to 
follow)

9.  GOSPORT AND TOWN CENTRE PSPO 

Report to follow 

10.  PETITION SCHEMES 

This report sets out proposed amendments to the Council’s petition scheme. 

11.  Appointmentd to Patrol AND Fareham, Gosport and South East Hants Clinical 
Commissioning Group Engagement Committee 

 DAVID WILLIAMS
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

TOWN HALL
GOSPORT

29 September 2020

MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO NOTE THAT:

(1) IF THE COUNCIL WISHES TO CONTINUE ITS BUSINESS BEYOND 9.30PM THEN 
THE MAYOR MUST MOVE SUCH A PROPOSITION IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
STANDING ORDER 4.11.18

(2) MOBILE PHONES SHOULD BE SWITCHED OFF OR SWITCHED TO SILENT FOR 
THE DURATION OF THE MEETING



1

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL
HELD ON 29 JULY 2020 AT 6.00 pm

Attendance:

The Mayor (Councillor Mrs Huggins) (in the Chair)

Councillors Mitchell, Hook, Ms Ballard, Bateman, Mrs Batty, Beavis, Burgess, Carter, 
Chegwyn, Mrs Cully, Earle, Farr, Foster-Reed, Mrs Furlong, Mrs Hook, Hylands, Jessop, 
Mrs Jones, Miss Kelly, Mrs Morgan, Murphy, Philpott, Mrs Prickett, Raffaelli, Scard, 
Blackman, Casey, Hammond, Herridge, Hutchison, Johnston, Pepper and Westerby

TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FROM MEMBERS FOR THEIR INABILITY TO ATTEND THE 
MEETING

There were none. 

TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD ON 10TH JUNE 
2020

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 10th June 2020 be signed as a true 
and correct record. 

TO CONSIDER ANY MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS.

The Mayor spoke on the impact that Covid-19 had had on the Borough and acknowledged 
that the role of the Mayor was proving to be different in the Municipal Year. 

A number of engagements had been undertaken virtually, acknowledging those that had 
supported the Borough at this difficult time. 

The Mayor commended the business community in the Borough and paid tribute to local 
shops, recognising their contribution to society.

The Mayor encouraged the Council to come together in their approach to the principles of 
public life.

DEPUTATIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH STANDING ORDER NO 3.4

There were none. 

QUESTIONS (IF ANY) PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER NO 3.3

Question standing in the name of Councillor Chegwyn on 

Following the decision of the Conservative-run Hampshire County Council to close the 
Elson & Lee-on-the-Solent libraries, what discussions have the Leader and this Council had 
with Hampshire County Council regarding the future use of the Elson & Lee library 
buildings?

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3



2

Was answered by the Leader of the Council 

PART II MINUTES OF THE BOARDS OF THE COUNCIL:

COUNCIL RESOLVED: That the following Part II Minutes be received.
 Economic Development Board: 1 July 2020
 Policy and Organisation Board: 10 June 2020 and 28 July 2020

Councillor Jessop declared a pecuniary interest in the Discretionary Grant Payments 
item of the Policy and Organisation Board minutes of 10th June 2020. He left the 
meeting at the point at which it was discussed and took not part in the discussion or 
voting thereon. 
Councillor Chegwyn declared a personal interest in the Discretionary Grant Payment 
Item of the Policy and Organisation Board minutes of 10th June 2020as he worked 
from home occasionally. 
Councillor Ballard declared a personal interest in the Procurement of Temporary 
Accommodation item of the Policy and Organisation Board minutes of the 28th July 
and took no part in the voting or discussion. 

SEASHORE BYELAWS

Consideration was given to the report of the Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer setting 
out the process for reviewing and amending the byelaw including consultation and seeking 
the approval of the Secretary of State.

The Borough Solicitor had advised the Council prior to the meeting of a proposed 
amendment to the recommendation to include the following wording under the bullet points 

‘and as part of the review, before the first public consultation starts, that the Borough 
Solicitor circulates a further version of the Byelaws with a plan marking the extent of 
the area covered to the Group Leaders for their views’

RESOLVED:

That the Council approves the review of the seashore byelaws and the process and actions 
set out in this report including:

 regulatory assessment of draft proposed byelaw including initial informal consultation 
 sending byelaw to Secretary of State following informal consultation and any 

necessary amendment
 advertising the byelaw and putting it out to further formal consultation on its return 

from Secretary of State
 and as part of the review, before the first public consultation starts, that the Borough 

Solicitor circulates a further version of the Byelaws with a plan marking the extent 
of the area covered to the Group Leaders for their views’

TOWN CENTRE PSPO 2020

Consideration was given to a report of the Senior Solicitor seeking the approval of the 
Council to commence the public consultation for the variation and extension of the existing 
Town Centre PSPO 2017 which expires on 17 November 2020.



3

An amendment to the proposal had been sent to the Council for consideration as follows

That the Council approves the revised Town Centre PSPO 2020 to control ASB in 
public places within the area shown edged black in the accompanying plan 
(“Restricted Area 2”) and in relation to particular alcohol related behaviour to 
Restricted Area 1, which is the whole of the Borough, as set out in the amended 
PSPO to go out for public consultation

RESOLVED

That the Council approves the revised Town Centre PSPO 2020 to control ASB in public 
places within the area shown edged black in the accompanying plan (“Restricted Area 2”) 
and in relation to particular alcohol related behaviour to Restricted Area 1, which is the 
whole of the Borough, as set out in the amended PSPO to go out for public consultation

The Meeting concluded at 7.35 pm

The Mayor.



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO:  COUNCIL  

DATE OF MEETING: 7 OCTOBER 

REPORT BY: COUNCILLOR HOOK (CHAIRMAN OF THE POLICY AND 
ORGANISATION BOARD) 

At its meeting on 29 September 2020 the Policy and Organisation Board considered a 
report of the Electoral Registration Officer advising the Board of the next steps required 
by the Borough Council regarding the statutory review currently being undertaken by 
the Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE), and to make 
recommendations to Full Council.

The recommendations of the Board reports are as follows: 

RESOLVED The Policy and Organisation Board recommend that Full Council approve 

a) Local Government Boundary Commission for England: Polling District Forecasting 
Tool for the Borough of Gosport – attached as Appendix 1;

b) Council Size submission for the Borough of Gosport to the LGBCE – attached as 
Appendix 4; subject to an all party Task & Finish group consisting of the three 
group leaders or their deputies being set up to consider and agree the Council’s 
proposals prior to their submission to LGBCE 

c) Gosport remains with the current electoral cycle and elects by halves;
d) Gosport remains with the current ‘alternative arrangements’;
e) authority be delegated to the Electoral Registration Officer, in consultation with the 

group leaders, to make further editing changes, correction and updates to the Council 
Size document prior to submission to the LGBCE

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Consideration was given to a report of the Electoral Registration Officer advising the Board 
of the next steps required by the Borough Council regarding the statutory review currently 
being undertaken by the Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE), 
and to make recommendations to Full Council.

Members were given clarity by the Electoral Registration Officer regarding 28 members 
being the minimum necessary to enable Gosport Borough Council to deliver its strategic 
priorities, legislative requirements and governance arrangements. With the current number 
of boards/committees this would enable each Member to sit on 3.

Members wished to recognise the excellent report and thanked Officers for the hard work 
that had gone into it.

Members were reminded that the responsibility of the Board was to make recommendations 
to Council and if approved the Boundary Commission may not choose to accept the 
recommendations and would also consider submissions from other persons/groups.

It was proposed and seconded that an amendment be made to the recommendation set out 
in the report; that recommendation e) reads “in consultation with the three group leaders”

A Member voiced their concern for the amount of money being spent by the LGBCE at a 
time when the future of Councils in 2022 were uncertain.

A Member proposed an amendment to recommendation b) to establish a task and finish 
group increase the amount of consultation by Members on this decision. 

Members were pleased to accept that various other options could be explored by the Task 
and Finish group, without which the LGBCE may not accept the submission.

Members asked for clarification of what, if any information had been shared with LGBCE and 
were advised that only evidence of the political forecast of the electoral size for 2026 had been 
submitted. The rest of the report needed be submitted before the 12th October 2020.

Members were also advised that at Stage 1 of the process the LGBCE were only looking at 
the number of Councillors, and not the frequency or make up of elections.

The Board considered whether it was appropriate for the Task and Finish Group to meet prior 
the Council meeting as the Board was making a recommendation to the Council and the Task 
and Finish Group could potentially amend this or the supporting documents, but it was felt 
acceptable, given the short timescale for the return. It was accepted that the Group Leaders 
would make any amendments to recommendation or the document they considered 
appropriate. 

The amendments to the recommendation were made under Standing Order 6.5.2.

RESOLVED The Policy and Organisation Board recommend that Full Council approve 

a) Local Government Boundary Commission for England: Polling District Forecasting 
Tool for the Borough of Gosport – attached as Appendix 1;

b) Council Size submission for the Borough of Gosport to the LGBCE – attached as 
Appendix 4; subject to an all party Task & Finish group consisting of the three 
group leaders or their deputies being set up to consider and agree the Council’s 
proposals prior to their submission to LGBCE 



c) Gosport remains with the current electoral cycle and elects by halves;
d) Gosport remains with the current ‘alternative arrangements’;
e) authority be delegated to the Electoral Registration Officer, in consultation with the 

group leaders, to make further editing changes, correction and updates to the Council 
Size document prior to submission to the LGBCE.



AGENDA ITEM NO. 

Board/Committee: POLICY & ORGANISATION BOARD
Date of Meeting: TUESDAY, 29 SEPTEMBER 2020
Title: ELECTORAL REVIEW BY THE LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT BOUNDARY COMMISSION FOR 
ENGLAND

Author: ELECTORAL REGISTRATION OFFICER
Status: FOR DECISION & RECOMMENDATION TO FULL 

COUNCIL

Purpose

To advise the Board of the next steps required by the Borough 
Council regarding the statutory review currently being undertaken by 
the Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE), 
and to make recommendations to Full Council.

Recommendation

1. To approve the following proposals and documents as set out in 
this report for recommendation to Full Council on Wednesday 07 
October 2020:
a) Local Government Boundary Commission for England: 

Polling District Forecasting Tool for the Borough of Gosport – 
attached as Appendix 1;

b) Council Size submission for the Borough of Gosport to the 
LGBCE – attached as Appendix 4 (to follow);

c) Gosport remains with the current electoral cycle and elects 
by halves;

d) Gosport remains with the current ‘alternative arrangements’;
e) authority be delegated to the Electoral Registration Officer, in 

consultation with the Leader of the Council, to make further 
editing changes, correction and updates to the Council Size 
document prior to submission to the LGBCE.

1.0 Background

1.1 The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) 
informed the Council that they would be undertaking a statutory 
review of the electoral arrangements with regard to the Electoral 
Ward boundaries at an informal meeting with The Leader of the 
Council, the Chief Executive and the Electoral Registration Officer in 
January 2020.



1.2

1.3

1.4 

Three briefings led by the LGBCE took place in June with the 
Officers Group, Political Group Leaders and all Elected Members.

The next steps required of the Council are to submit the Electoral 
Forecast for 2026 and the Council Size submission, which are before 
the P&O Board this evening. The recommendations from this Board 
will be taken to the next Full Council meeting for approval, to meet 
the deadlines of draft submission by 12 October and final submission 
by 02 November 2020, as outlined in LGBCE briefings delivered to 
all Elected Members in June 2020.

The Officers’ Group have been progressing their actions since these 
meetings, and now have the Electoral Forecast template completed, 
based on the information currently available to officers on planned 
developments across the Borough between July 2020 through to 
2026, as required.

1.5 Informal discussions on this document have been held between 
Gosport’s Electoral Registration Officer (ERO) and the LGBCE 
Officers. The suggestions and comments from the LGBCE Review 
Officer have been actioned and cross referenced in Appendix 1.

2.0 Report

2.1

2.2

2.3

Electoral Forecast for the Borough of Gosport in 2026
The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) 
has a statutory duty to ensure that all its reviews are based on robust 
forecasts of future electorates.

The Borough Council has to provide some historical elector data 
using the Polling District Forecasting Tool spreadsheet supplied by 
the LGBCE. The form automatically generates provisional Polling 
District level forecasts for the authority based on both the Office of 
National Statistics (ONS) population forecasts and the historical 
elector data entered.

The LGBCE requires the Borough Council to provide Polling District 
elector counts for the last three years. The exact years requested 
were for July 2018, July 2019 and July 2020.

2.4 The spreadsheet allowed the Borough Council to enter the Polling 
District data. The Council used a combination of this and ONS data 
to produce a forecast of each Polling District’s electorate in the 
future.

2.5 The last few columns allow the Borough Council to challenge the 
forecast and then provide some reasoning, which has resulted in 7 
of the forecasted Polling Districts being challenged (GB3, GF1, GG1, 
GJ3, GL1, GQ1 and GQ2) due to new developments within the 
Electoral Wards between 2020-2026.



 

2.6 Electoral Cycle for the Borough of Gosport
Currently the Borough of Gosport elects in halves, with a Councillor 
from each Electoral Ward up for election every two years. Before 
2000, when the current electoral ward boundaries were introduced 
following the last review, Gosport had 10 Wards with 3 Councillors 
in each.

2.7 As the Borough Council is having a statutory review of its Electoral 
Wards, it also seems appropriate to undertake a review of the 
electoral cycle at the same time. Although this falls outside of the 
scope of the review being undertaken by the LGBCE, the Borough 
Council can decide its electoral cycle under powers set out in the 
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and 
from the Localism Act 2011.

2.8

2.9

2.10

The options available to the Borough Council are as follows:
1. Remain with the election by halves;
2. Request that the Secretary of State  approves a move back 

to election by thirds;
3. Hold ‘all out’ elections every four years.

There are 131 District Councils that currently hold all out elections, 
54 that elect in thirds, and seven that elect in halves. 

It is proposed that Gosport remains with the current electoral cycle 
and elects by halves, following the Local Government Elections held 
in May 2022.

2.11 Electoral Arrangements
As the Borough Council is having a statutory review of its Electoral 
Wards, it also seems appropriate to undertake a review of the 
electoral arrangements for completeness. Although this is outside of 
the scope of the review being undertaken by the LGBCE, the 
Borough Council can decide its electoral arrangements under 
powers set out in the Local Government Act 2000, amended in part 
by the Localism Act 2011.

2.12 The Borough Council is currently an ‘alternative arrangements’ 
(Committee system) authority and the Electoral Arrangements used 
by the Authority will form the basis and the cornerstone of the 
submission to the LGBCE on our Council Size requirements.

2.13 The options available to the Council under the Local Government 
Act 2000 are as follows:

1. Remain as is, using the ‘alternative arrangements’;
2. Mayor and cabinet executive:  this may consist of—

(a) an elected mayor of the authority, and



(b) two or more  (but no more than 10) councillors of the 
authority appointed to the executive by the elected mayor.

3. Leader and cabinet executive: this may consist of—
(a) a councillor of the authority (the executive leader) elected 

as leader of the executive by the authority, and
(b) two or more councillors (but no more than 10) of the 

authority appointed to the executive by one of the 
following—
(i) the executive leader (known as the 'strong leader' 
model) , or
(ii) the authority.

4. Mayor and council manager executive: this may consist of—
(a) an elected mayor of the authority, and
(b) an officer of the authority (referred to in this Part as the 

council manager) appointed to the executive by the 
authority.

2.14 Most Local Authorities within Hampshire are following the Leader 
and Cabinet Executive arrangements (their size of electorate does 
not allow them to use the ‘alternative arrangements’ system). The 
only other Council in Hampshire that is allowed to consider the 
‘alternative arrangements’ system is Rushmoor, who have chosen 
the Leader and Cabinet system.

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Any change to the Electoral Arrangements will require approval by 
the Secretary of State (SoS), as outlined in the Localism Act 2011 
and the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007. Before the request is made to the SoS a resolution of Full 
Council would be required under the Constitution; however the 
Council is not required to hold a Community Governance 
Referendum on the matter.

It is proposed that Gosport remains with the current ‘alternative 
arrangements’, as it is believed that this arrangement of Boards and 
Committees provides greater Elected Member involvement in the 
strategic aims and operations of the Council.

Appendix 2 attached to this report shows the comparison of 
neighbouring Local Authorities, with electorate total, number of 
Electoral Wards, number of Polling Districts and the Average 
Electors per Councillor, both for the current Gosport arrangements, 
and also for the proposed arrangements.

New Forest District Council are currently undergoing a statutory 
review of the electoral size, and have submitted their Council Size 
documentation, and are currently working with the LGBCE on the 
Warding Arrangements. Their current and proposed electoral 
information has been included in Appendix 2.



2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

Council Size
The Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction 
Act 2009 gives the LGBCE the power to review the electoral 
arrangements of all principal councils in England.

The legislation states that ‘the total number of members of the 
council’ forms part of an authority’s electoral arrangements. The 
LGBCE refers to this more simply as ‘council size’. The legislation 
does not set out how many members/councillors each authority will 
have. It is the Commission’s responsibility to determine the 
appropriate number of councillors for each authority. 

Electoral reviews take place infrequently and the LGBCE wants 
Local Authorities to take the opportunity to ask themselves questions 
about the important roles of Councillors in providing leadership, 
securing accountability and offering community leadership. 

The Council Size submission is attached at Appendix 4. The main 
recommendation of the submission is that the Borough of Gosport is 
composed of 28 Councillors from the Local Government Elections 
held in May 2022 onwards.

This figure has been reached by assessing the Council’s 
governance arrangements in the context of the LGBCE criteria. The 
LGBCE is expecting to receive the Council’s submission in respect 
of Council Size by no later than Monday 02 November 2020. 

As part of the ongoing dialogue between the Borough Council and 
the LGBCE, the Council’s draft proposals have been shared with the 
LGBCE review team. To ensure any feedback from the LGBCE is 
adequately reflected in the Council’s final submission, it is proposed 
that authority be delegated to the Electoral Registration Officer, in 
consultation with the Leader of the Council, to make further editing 
changes, correction and updates to the document prior to 
submission. It is anticipated that these will be minor in nature. 

Approval by P&O Board and by Full Council would not stop the 
submission of Council Size proposals and evidence from any 
political or other interested party within the Borough, even if they 
have representation on this Board.The LGBCE clearly states in its 
guidance:
 All submissions will be considered equally, and decisions will be 

made based on the strength of evidence put forward; and
 Where the Commission receives multiple finely balanced 

proposals, or a single poorly evidenced case, it may request 
further information from the respondents. If further information is 
not forthcoming, the Commission reserves the right to put forward 
its own number based on its own experience and judgement. It 
may also choose to carry out a period of consultation. 



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

Next steps

It is anticipated that the LGBCE will make a decision on Council size 
on 04 January 2021. It should be noted that this figure may 
subsequently be amended if necessary, to allow for a warding 
pattern to be developed which produces electoral equality as best as 
possible. Any such amendments would likely be minor, i.e. +1 or -1. 

Once the Council Size submission is complete, the Officer Group will 
focus efforts on developing warding pattern proposals for 
submission in early March 2021. 

The process will conclude with the publication of the LGBCE final 
recommendations in November 2021, before the necessary 
parliamentary orders are laid and then made from December 2021 
into early 2022. The new electoral arrangements will be 
implemented from the May 2022 Local Government Elections 
onwards.

4.0 Risk Assessment

4.1 The Council has to comply with the requirements of the LGBCE 
statutory review.

Financial Implications: No comments received
Legal Implications: Contained within the report
Crime and Disorder: No comments received

Equality and Diversity: No equality impact assessment (EIA) has 
been carried out as recommendations in 
the report are not considered to 
discriminate on the basis of any protected 
characteristic of the Equality Act 2010.
The Electoral Registration Officer (ERO) 
is required to have regard to the public 
sector equality duty contained in Section 149 
of the Equality Act 2010 when carrying out 
his duties.

Equality Impact Assessment: N/A
Service Improvement Plan: N/A
Corporate Plan: This process aligns with the Strategic 

Priorities to ‘Deliver effective services’ and 
‘Empower our residents’

Risk Assessment: Failure to make submissions of Electoral 
Forecast and Council size and evidence 
would result in the LGBCE having to made 
recommendations on limited local 
knowledge and experience, which could 



provide problems for the Council is 
ensuring it is meeting is statutory 
obligations to the residents and business 
in the Borough of Gosport

Background papers: 1. LGBCE Full Council Presentation on the 
Boundary Review for Gosport

2. LGBCE Members Briefing Pack
Appendices:
Appendix 1 Local Government Boundary Commission 

for England: Polling District Forecasting 
Tool for the Borough of Gosport

Appendix 2 Electorate and Wards comparisons with 
neighbours

Appendix 3 The LGBCE guidance on making a strong 
submission

Appendix 4 – to follow Council Size submission for the Borough 
of Gosport to the LGBCE

Report author/Lead Officer: Graeme Jesty



This page is intentionally left blank



Select
Authority Gosport Jul-20

Please complete all columns with black headers. Grey columns will update automatically, and green ones are for our use only.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Polling District
Code

Is it in a parish?
Name it

Is it in a parish
ward? Name it

Is it in a group of
parishes with a joint
parish council? Name
it

Which ward is it in?
Name it

Electorate in
2018

Electorate in
2019

Electorate in
2020

Polling
District Code

Our polling district
forecast

Difference from
2018

Do you wish to challenge this
forecast? (Y/N)

Polling
District

Parish Parish Ward Grouped Parish
Council

Exisiting Ward Electorate
2018

Electorate
2019

Electorate
2020

PD Standardised
2026 Electorate
Forecast

Difference Challenge?

GA1 Alverstoke 1189 1151 1190 GA1 1222 32 No
GA2 Alverstoke 1185 1215 1206 GA2 1248 42 No
GA3 Alverstoke 1129 1125 1136 GA3 1173 37 No
GB1 Anglesey 928 920 960 GB1 972 12 No
GB2 Anglesey 1007 1019 1011 GB2 1051 40 No
GB3 Anglesey 1061 1037 1026 GB3 1081 55 Yes
GC1 Bridgemary North 1036 1026 1053 GC1 1078 25 No
GC2 Bridgemary North 1278 1263 1275 GC2 1321 46 No
GC3 Bridgemary North 1218 1210 1194 GC3 1254 60 No
GD1 Bridgemary South 995 1011 1020 GD1 1047 27 No
GD2 Bridgemary South 1303 1303 1311 GD2 1356 45 No
GD3 Bridgemary South 1279 1302 1299 GD3 1343 44 No
GE1 Brockhurst 849 846 853 GE1 882 29 No
GE2 Brockhurst 1337 1338 1328 GE2 1386 58 No
GE3 Brockhurst 1539 1524 1576 GE3 1605 29 No
GF1 Christchurch 1499 1559 1589 GF1 1608 19 Yes
GF2 Christchurch 968 963 1011 GF2 1018 7 No
GF3 Christchurch 1390 1378 1395 GF3 1441 46 No
GG1 Elson 1772 1758 1797 GG1 1844 47 Yes
GG2 Elson 1751 1719 1737 GG2 1802 65 No
GH1 Forton 930 932 938 GH1 969 31 No
GH2 Forton 1492 1505 1511 GH2 1560 49 No
GH3 Forton 916 904 943 GH3 956 13 No
GI1 Grange 2138 2165 2217 GI1 2256 39 No
GI2 Grange 1815 1897 1999 GI2 1976 -23 No
GJ1 Hardway 1652 1635 1666 GJ1 1714 48 No
GJ2 Hardway 1180 1151 1133 GJ2 1199 66 No
GJ3 Hardway 1429 1401 1459 GJ3 1484 25 Yes
GK1 Lee East 1550 1589 1602 GK1 1641 39 No
GK2 Lee East 1342 1322 1352 GK2 1390 38 No
GK3 Lee East 1670 1674 1723 GK3 1754 31 No
GL1 Lee West 1500 1498 1547 GL1 1573 26 Yes
GL2 Lee West 1196 1204 1231 GL2 1257 26 No



GL3 Lee West 1393 1398 1372 GL3 1441 69 No
GM1 Leesland 1073 1100 737 GM1 1008 271 No
GM2 Leesland 1579 1546 1547 GM2 1617 70 No
GM3 Leesland 879 897 1217 GM3 1035 -182 No
GN1 Peel Common 1162 1145 1175 GN1 1205 30 No
GN2 Peel Common 1187 1176 1187 GN2 1229 42 No
GN3 Peel Common 1000 1011 1000 GN3 1042 42 No
GO1 Privett 1467 1472 1466 GO1 1525 59 No
GO2 Privett 1825 1814 1837 GO2 1895 58 No
GP1 Rowner and Holbrook 1837 1850 1854 GP1 1918 64 No
GP2 Rowner and Holbrook 1388 1430 1485 GP2 1489 4 No
GQ1 Town 1702 1738 1785 GQ1 1808 23 Yes
GQ2 Town 1164 1182 1221 GQ2 1234 13 Yes
GQ3 Town 952 950 972 GQ3 995 23 No

62,131 62,253 63,143 64,901 1,758







































Don’t delete entire rows in this
document, just right click and
clear content

Everything right of
this line is for internal
use only

2019 Total 126286

Automated Total 129802.7474
Final Total 0

10 11

Whats is your predicted
electorate?

Why have you
reached this number?

Polling
District
Code

Your 2026 Electorate
Forecast

Reasons PD2 Final Electorate New Ward

1222 GA1
1248 GA2
1173 GA3
972 GB1

1051 GB2
2094 New developments within the Electoral Ward between 2020-2026 as outlined in evidenceGB3
1078 GC1
1321 GC2
1254 GC3
1047 GD1
1356 GD2
1343 GD3
882 GE1

1386 GE2
1605 GE3
1702 New developments within the Electoral Ward between 2020-2026 as outlined in evidenceGF1
1018 GF2
1441 GF3
1936 New developments within the Electoral Ward between 2020-2026 as outlined in evidenceGG1
1802 GG2
969 GH1

1560 GH2
956 GH3

2256 GI1
1976 GI2
1714 GJ1
1199 GJ2
1703 New developments within the Electoral Ward between 2020-2026 as outlined in evidenceGJ3
1641 GK1
1390 GK2
1754 GK3
2186 New developments within the Electoral Ward between 2020-2026 as outlined in evidenceGL1
1257 GL2



1441 GL3
1008 GM1
1617 GM2
1035 GM3
1205 GN1
1229 GN2
1042 GN3
1525 GO1
1895 GO2
1918 GP1
1489 GP2
2570 New developments within the Electoral Ward between 2020-2026 as outlined in evidenceGQ1
1438 New developments within the Electoral Ward between 2020-2026 as outlined in evidenceGQ2
995 GQ3

67,898 0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0



0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

















T
his page is intentionally left blank



Electorate and Wards

**As of 01 July 2020 Numbers Councillors Parishes?
Governance

arrangements

Local Authority Electorate Wards Polling Districts

Number of
Electoral

Ward
Councillors

Average
Electors per

Ward

Average
Electors per
Councillor Yes or No

Basingstoke and Deane No data received No data received No data received

Eastleigh 103,739 14 64 39 7,410 2,660 Yes Cabinet and
Committees

East Hampshire No data received No data received No data received

Fareham 91,430 15 65 31 6,100 2,949 No Leader and
Cabinet

Gosport 63,143 17 47 34 3,710 1,857 No Alternative
arrangements

Hart 72,905 11 48 33 6,630 2,209 Yes Leader and
Cabinet

Havant 97,112 14 63 38 6,940 2,556 No Leader and
Cabinet

Isle of Wight 112,118 39 75 40 2,870 2,803 Yes Leader and
Cabinet

New Forest 143,504 34 107 60 4,220 2,392 Yes Leader and
Cabinet

Portsmouth 153,329 14 78 42 10,950 3,651 No Leader and
Cabinet

Rushmoor 66,163 13 24 39 5,090 1,696 No Leader and
Cabinet

Southampton 174,156 16 95 48 10,880 3,628 No Leader and
Cabinet

Test Valley 98,225 20 107 43 4,910 2,284 Yes
Leader and

Cabinet with
Committees

Winchester 94,841 16 92 45 5,930 2,108 Yes Leader and
Cabinet

Total 1,077,600 492 2,190 2,190

New Forest (possible review
outcome)

143,504 34 107 48 4,220 2,990 Yes Leader and
Cabinet

Gosport (proposal) 67,898 14 47 28 4,850 2,425 No Alternative
arrangements



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
  

Local Government Boundary Commission for England 

Council Size 
Guidance 
A guide to making a strong submission 



 
 

Page | 1  
 

Contents 
Introduction ................................................................................................................ 2 

What is Council Size? ................................................................................................ 2 

General Principles ...................................................................................................... 2 

Approach .................................................................................................................... 4 

Multiple Submissions and Balancing the Evidence .................................................... 5 

Making a Submission ................................................................................................. 5 

 

  



 
 

Page | 2  
 

Introduction 
1. This guidance will assist interested parties in preparing their submission on 

council size to the Local Government Boundary Commission for England (‘the 
Commission’) as part of the electoral review process. It highlights the range of 
issues that the Commission considers when determining council size and will 
help councillors, officers and others in making strong and well-evidenced 
submissions.   
 

2. The starting point for every review is to decide the appropriate number of 
councillors for the authority. While the final decision on council size rests with the 
Commission, its approach has always been one of dialogue with each council 
that it reviews. The Commission’s view is that a ‘good’ review is one where the 
local authority actively engages with the process. Ideally, the Commission’s 
decision will be informed by locally generated proposals and underpinned by 
sound evidence and reasoning.  

 
 

What is Council Size? 
3. The Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 20091 (‘the 

2009 Act’) gives the Commission the power to review the electoral arrangements 
of all, or any, principal councils in England. 

 
4. The legislation states that ‘the total number of members of the council’ forms part 

of an authority’s electoral arrangements. The Commission refers to this more 
simply as ‘council size’. The legislation does not set out how many members (or 
councillors) each authority (or type of authority) will have. It is the Commission’s 
responsibility to determine the appropriate number of councillors for each 
authority.  

 
5. The Commission will always recommend a council size that, in its judgement, 

enables the council to take its decisions effectively, to discharge the business 
and responsibilities of the council successfully, and to provide for effective 
community leadership and representation.    

 
 

General Principles 
6. The Commission recognises that there is considerable variation in council size 

across England, not only between different types of local authority – metropolitan, 
unitary, shire district and county councils, and London boroughs – but also 
between authorities of the same type. 
 

7. In the Commission’s opinion, local government is as diverse as the communities 
it serves – providing leadership, services and representation suited to the 
characteristics and needs of individual areas. The Commission aims to 
recommend electoral arrangements, including council size, which are appropriate 
for the particular local authority. 

                                            
1 Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009, s.55–9 
www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2009/20/pdfs/ukpga_20090020_en.pdf  

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2009/20/pdfs/ukpga_20090020_en.pdf


 
 

Page | 3  
 

 
8. The way in which local authorities conduct their business and provide for the 

effective representation of their electorate has changed considerably over recent 
decades. The implementation of the Local Government Act 2000 (‘the 2000 Act’) 
saw most local authorities change how they made decisions and operate. 
Similarly, subsequent legislation, including the Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007 and the Localism Act 2011, introduced further 
opportunities for local government to modify governance and management 
arrangements. In addition, partnership working, developments in service delivery, 
and digital working have also impacted on local authorities. 

 

9. Many local authorities have not, or have only slightly, modified their number of 
elected members since they were established several decades ago. This is not to 
imply that current numbers are inappropriate but, rather than simply assuming 
that the existing numbers remain appropriate, the Commission recommends that 
councils think afresh about the matter.  

 
10. An electoral review provides the opportunity for respondents to think carefully 

about current arrangements in the context of modern governance and service 
delivery needs; and what these mean for the future in terms of the number of 
elected members.  

 
11. The Commission wants to see evidence that several different council size options 

have been explored together with the reasons why a particular figure has, or has 
not, been selected. This should be done irrespective of whether the respondent 
arrives at the same or a different number of elected members. The most 
persuasive submissions are those which, rather than considering whether the 
current number ought not to be changed, reflect on what number of councillors 
would be required if the council was being newly established.      

 
12. The Commission does not recommend that any submissions made on council 

size need to be particularly long. However, submissions should be made on the 
Commission’s Council Size Submission Template and demonstrate careful 
thinking about the issues.  Electoral reviews take place infrequently and the 
Commission wants local authorities to take the opportunity to ask themselves 
questions about the important roles of councillors in providing leadership, 
securing accountability and offering community leadership.  

 
13. The Commission seeks to understand elected member requirements across 

three aspects:  
 

• Strategic Leadership – how many councillors are needed to give 
strategic leadership and direction to the authority?  
 

• Accountability  
• Scrutiny – how many councillors are needed to provide scrutiny to 

the authority? 
• Regulatory – how many councillors are needed to meet the 

regulatory requirements of the authority? 



 
 

Page | 4  
 

• Partnerships – how many councillors are required to manage 
partnerships between the local authority and other organisations? 

 

• Community Leadership – how the representational role of councillors in 
the local community is discharged and how they engage with people and 
conduct casework. 

 
14. In every review, the Commission will make recommendations that will remain 

appropriate for the medium to longer term, i.e. to recommend a council size that 
delivers effective and convenient local government well after the completion of 
the electoral review. Accordingly, respondents should set out their longer-term 
vision for operation of the local authority. 

 
 

 Approach 
15. The Commission must construct electoral arrangements that reflect local 

circumstances, and in doing so will neither apply any strict mathematical criteria 
nor impose a formula for the national determination of council size. It is 
recommended that submissions clearly demonstrate the characteristics and 
needs of each local authority, and its communities, and how such factors have 
informed both the proposed and alternative council sizes considered.  
 

16. The Commission will refer to the CIPFA Nearest Neighbours Model for English 
authorities to help understand the contextual position of the authority being 
reviewed. This is a licensed2 dataset that shows groups of statistically similar 
councils and allows the Commission to identify ‘expected ranges’ for both the 
number of councillors and the councillor-to-elector ratios. This expected range is 
defined by an upper and lower quintile value with the median providing the 
midpoint figure. The data help the Commission understand how the authority 
under review compares with its nearest neighbours and, on occasion to query 
proposals that appear unexpected when compared with similar authorities.   

 
17. Local authorities should be mindful of the overall appropriateness of the proposed 

council sizes in terms of governance, specifically in ensuring that an authority is 
neither too small to discharge its statutory functions nor too large to function in an 
effective manner and with purposeful roles for all elected members. Accordingly, 
whilst recognising that such thresholds might vary depending on the type of local 
authority and its specific setting, the Commission will look for particularly strong 
evidence in support of proposals that place the authority amongst the highest and 
lowest levels of similar councils nationwide, especially where authorities would be 
below 30 or exceed 85 councillors in size.  

 
18. The Commission’s decision about an authority’s council size will mark the formal 

start to the review process. However, the Commission’s decision on council size 
will not be formalised until the Final Recommendations are agreed and published. 
This is because the number of councillors may change marginally (generally ±1) 

                                            
2 Under the terms of the data licence the Commission is unable to share the CIPFA Nearest 
Neighbour Model externally although some authorities will have access to the groupings through their 
own licences. The ‘expected ranges’, however, will be made available. 



 
 

Page | 5  
 

from the initial decision if it is felt that modifying the number of councillors may 
provide for a pattern of wards that better reflects the three statutory criteria.    

 
19. The Final Recommendations describe the complete set of electoral 

arrangements, including ward names and locations as well as the number of 
elected members, alongside parish warding arrangements. These 
recommendations will be implemented at the next election by means of an Order 
laid before Parliament.  

 
 

Multiple Submissions and Balancing the Evidence 
20. Political (or other) groups may present their own submissions to the Commission 

either alongside or as an alternative to the council’s formal submission. It is 
recommended that all submissions are underpinned by sound evidence and 
reasoning whether they propose to reduce, retain or increase councillor numbers.  
 

21. All submissions will be considered equally, and decisions will be made based on 
the strength of evidence put forward.  

 
22. Where the Commission receives multiple finely balanced proposals, or a 

single poorly evidenced case, it may request further information from the 
respondents. If further information is not forthcoming, the Commission 
reserves the right to put forward its own number based on its own 
experience and judgement. It may also choose to carry out a period of 
consultation. 

 
 

Making a Submission 
23. All submissions made to the Commission will follow the ‘Council Size 

Submission’ template. This template presents a broad set of issues for 
respondents to consider; however, the Commission does not require lengthy 
responses to every section. The Commission recommends that respondents use 
the opportunity to consider not just how the council works now but how it is likely 
to work in the future. Submissions will explain the reasoning that underpins and 
explains the proposed council size as well as describing the necessary 
arrangements.  
 

24. The submission will focus on three aspects of councillor roles: Strategic 
Leadership, Accountability and Community Leadership. However, the 
Commission will consider any further relevant issues raised outside of these 
topics. 

 

 



Council Size Submission
Gosport Borough Council



Page | 1 

Contents
How to Make a Submission ................................................................................................................................................................... 2
About You.............................................................................................................................................................................................. 2
Reason for Review (Request Reviews Only) ........................................................................................................................................2
Local Authority Profile............................................................................................................................................................................ 2
Council Size........................................................................................................................................................................................... 5
Other Issues ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 19



Page | 2 

How to Make a Submission
1. It is recommended that submissions on council size follow the format provided below. Submissions should focus on the future needs of the 

council and not simply describe the current arrangements. Submissions should also demonstrate that alternative council sizes have been 
considered in drawing up the proposal and why you have discounted them. 

2. The template allows respondents to enter comments directly under each heading.  It is not recommended that responses be unduly long; as a 
guide, it is anticipated that a 15 to 20-page document using this template should suffice. Individual section length may vary depending on the 
issues to be explained. Where internal documents are referred to URLs should be provided, rather than the document itself. It is also 
recommended that a table is included that highlights the key paragraphs for the Commission’s attention. 

About You
3. The respondent should use this space to provide the Commission with a little detail about who is making the submission, whether it is the full 

Council, Officers on behalf of the Council, a political party or group, or an individual. 

This submission is made by the Full Council of Gosport Borough Council.

The Council’s Policy & Organisation Board considered the Council Size submission on Tuesday, 29 September 2020 and [insert details of P&O 
resolution when finalised]. Full Council on Wednesday, 07 October 2020 [insert details of resolution when finalised – current proposal is that this 
document be submitted as the Council’s official Council Size submission to the LGBCE, delegating authority to the Electoral Registration Officer, 
in consultation with the Leader of the Council to make any further changes prior to submission]. Changes have been technical in nature, to 
update the electoral equality figures and include missing links.

Reason for Review (Request Reviews Only)
4. Please explain the authority’s reasons for requesting this electoral review; it is useful for the Commission to have context. NB/ If the 

Commission has identified the authority for review under one if its published criteria, then you are not required to answer this question.

The Commission identified Gosport for review due to the poor levels of electoral equality with 40% of Electoral Wards represented by members 
that represent significantly fewer or significantly more members than the average for the Borough.

Local Authority Profile
5. Please provide a short description of the authority and its setting. This should set the scene for the Commission and give it a greater 

understanding of any current issues. The description may cover all, or some of the following: 



Page | 3 

• Brief outline of area - are there any notable geographic constraints for example that may affect the review? 
• Rural or urban - what are the characteristics of the authority?  
• Demographic pressures - such as distinctive age profiles, migrant or transient populations, is there any large growth anticipated? 
• Are there any other constraints, challenges, issues or changes ahead?

Stretching over just 26 square kilometres (10 square miles), Gosport Borough is the twelfth smallest district in England and the smallest in 
Hampshire. The Borough sits on a peninsula adjacent to Fareham Borough and is surrounded on three sides by the Solent and Portsmouth 
Harbour, with a total of 39 kilometres (24 miles) of coastline.

There are two main settlements, Gosport and Lee-on-the-Solent, which are separated by the Alver Valley. The Borough is predominantly urban 
in character, with nearly three quarters ‘built on’1. Gosport Borough faces significant flood risk with approximately 4.4 square kilometres (1.7 
square miles) within a flood zone, representing 17% of the total land area. Nowhere in the Borough exceeds 15 metres above sea level.

The population of the Borough in 2011 was 82,600 people2, an increase of 8.1% from 2001. The latest estimates show the population of the 
Borough in 2020 was 85,108 people3, the smallest population of any district in Hampshire. The Borough is densely populated with almost 33 
people per hectare, almost nine times the England average at 3.7.

The latest long-term population projections show a slight decrease in the Borough’s population of 0.5% by 2036. The population is also ageing 
due largely to a longer life expectancy and a low birth rate. The proportion of the population over 65 is projected to increase from 20.7% in 2020 
to 28% in 20364, this represents over 6000 additional over 65s. As part of this trend, the proportion of the population living beyond 85 is also 
expected to increase by 1.8% by 2036.

At the same time, the number aged under 16 is expected to decrease from 18.3% of the population in 2020 to 15.7% in 2036. The working age 
population (16-64) is projected to decrease from 61% in 2020 to 56.2% in 2036, representing a reduction of 4,300 people. 94.4% of the 
Borough’s resident population describes itself as ‘white British’, with those from other ethnic groups having increased from 3.1% to 5.6% of the 
population between 2001 and 2011.

Gosport’s legacy as a support base for the Royal Navy is evidenced by the significant naval heritage across the Borough. The decline of the 
military around the Harbour has led to a significant supply of brownfield land and each site has a mix of issues including contamination, historic 
buildings and flood risk. Some sites have been redeveloped and others are available for re-use and will be redeveloped in the coming decades. 

1 A Land Cover Atlas of the UK: https://doi.org/10.15131/shef.data.5219956 
2 ONS Census (2011)
3 ONS mid-year population estimates (mid-2018)
4 ONS Sub-national population projections (2018-based

https://doi.org/10.15131/shef.data.5219956


Page | 4 

The declining presence of the military has resulted in substantial changes to the Borough’s economy and employment opportunities. These 
changes are set to continue with the potential closure of other military sites in the coming decade.  

Employment in the Borough has changed significantly over the past two decades; in 2018, there were 21% fewer jobs than in 2000. Many of the 
Boroughs residents now work in different locations. In 2011, 52% of residents commuted outside the Borough for work, particularly along the 
A27-M27 corridor in areas where the journey to work is predominantly by private car.

There are approximately 26,000 jobs in Gosport Borough which has declined by 21.2% from 33,000 jobs in 2000. In the Solent region, Gosport 
stands out as recording the lowest jobs density (at 0.5 jobs per working age resident) which not only falls significantly below the South East 
(0.88) and UK (0.86) averages but also ranks as the 11th lowest jobs density of all local authority areas in the UK5.

Key Issues

 The needs of all ages of the population are changing. An ageing population means residents will require different services and facilities. At 
the same time, opportunities for young people and future generations need to be maximised to reduce deprivation and provide jobs. 

 Growth is constrained by the peninsula location and amount of land in active military use. Large areas, previously used by the MoD, have 
significant contamination and are complex to redevelop.

 The low-lying geography and coastal location leave the Borough vulnerable to flood risk. Existing and new communities need to be protected 
as the Borough adapts to, and mitigates the impacts of climate change.

5 ONS jobs density (11th lowest in 2018) – this includes employees, self-employed, government-supported trainees and HM Forces (from MoD).

The Context for your proposal

Your submission gives you the opportunity to examine how you wish to organise and run the council for the next 15 years.  The Commission 
expects you to challenge your current arrangements and determine the most appropriate arrangements going forward. In providing context for 
your submission below, please demonstrate that you have considered the following issues. 

5 ONS jobs density (11th lowest in 2018) – this includes employees, self-employed, government-supported trainees and HM Forces (from MoD).



Page | 5 

 When did your Council last change/reorganise its internal governance arrangements and what impact on effectiveness did that activity 
have?

 To what extent has transference of strategic and/or service functions impacted on the effectiveness of service delivery and the ability of 
the Council to focus on its remaining functions?

 Have any governance or capacity issues been raised by any Inspectorate or similar?
 What impact on the Council’s effectiveness will your council size proposal have? 

The Borough Council ensures that its internal governance arrangements are reviewed, and this is carried out by the Standards and Governance 
Committee, who have “oversight of the Constitution, the operation of and amendments to the Constitution” as one of its terms of reference.

In May 2016 the Adjourned Annual Council meeting (held 19 May 2016) reviewed the arrangements for the discharge of the Council’s functions 
and agreed changes to the Boards and Committees (which had previously been reviewed and amended in May 2011). The May 2016 meeting 
took the decision that there was no need for a separate Overview and Scrutiny Committee and that the Service Boards would set up Task and 
Finish Groups to undertake the “short sharply focused pieces of work on the development and review of policies and initiatives of matters falling 
within the terms of reference of the Board”.

At the Full Council meeting held on 10 June 2020, the decision was taken to create a Climate Change Board and a Housing Board, and changes 
to the Community Board Terms of Reference due to the creation of the new Housing Board, as the Community Board had previously held the 
remit for Housing within its Terms of Reference.

Council Size
6. The Commission believes that councillors have three broad aspects to their role.  These are categorised as: Strategic Leadership, 

Accountability (Scrutiny, Regulation and Partnerships), and Community Leadership. Submissions should address each of these in turn and 
provide supporting evidence. Prompts in the boxes below should help shape responses.



Page | 6 

Strategic Leadership
7. Respondents should provide the Commission with details as to how elected members will provide strategic leadership for the authority. 

Responses should also indicate how many members will be required for this role and why this is justified. 

Topic

Key lines of 
explanation

 What governance model will your authority operate? e.g. Committee System, Executive or other?
 The Cabinet model, for example, usually requires 6 to 10 members. How many members will you 

require?
 If the authority runs a Committee system, we want to understand why the number and size of the 

committees you propose represents the most appropriate for the authority. 
 By what process does the council aim to formulate strategic and operational policies? How will 

members in executive, executive support and/or scrutiny positions be involved? What particular 
demands will this make of them?

 Whichever governance model you currently operate, a simple assertion that you want to keep the 
current structure does not in itself, provide an explanation of why that structure best meets the needs of 
the council and your communities.

Governance 
Model

Analysis

Gosport Borough Council operates the ‘alternative arrangements’ model of governance, with the current 
and anticipated future arrangements outlined in the “Portfolios” section of this submission. 

We have 34 Councillors in total, with the political balance of the Council as follows as at September 2020, 
following the last Borough Council elections in May 2018 (the Borough Council elections due in May 2020 
where postponed for 12months due to the Coronavirus pandemic):

Conservative – 18 
Liberal Democrat – 14 
Labour – 2

At its first Full Council meeting this year (held on Wednesday 11 June 2020), the Council allocated 102 
seats on its Boards and Committee, based on the current political balance of the Council. Seats are 
appointed in accordance with the principles of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, to ensure the 
majority group has the majority on all committees, to prevent domination by a single group, aggregating all 
seats and fair shares, and ensuring as far as practicable fairness on each committee. 



Page | 7 

Conservative Labour Liberal
Democrats

TOTAL

Members 18 2 14 34
Proportion 52.94% 5.88% 41.18% 100%
Seats 54 6 42 102

The current allocations of seats on each of the Council Boards and Committee are as follows:
Conservative Labour Liberal

Democrats
TOTAL

Policy and
Organisation Board 8 1 6 15
Community Board 8 1 6 15
Economic
Development Board 8 1 6 15
Housing Board 8 1 6 15
Climate Change 
Board 8 1 6 15
Regulatory Board 8 1 6 15
Standards and
Governance
Committee

6 0 6 12

TOTAL 54 6 42 102



Page | 8 

The following table shows the proposed number of seats on each of the Council Boards and Committee 
should the Council Size submission be accepted by the LGBCE:

TOTAL

Policy and
Organisation Board 12
Community Board 12
Economic
Development Board 12
Housing Board 12
Climate Change 
Board 12
Regulatory Board 12
Standards and
Governance
Committee

12

TOTAL 84

The resulting 84 seats split between 28 Councillors, would result in each Councillor sitting on 3 Boards or 
Committees, and would also give parity across all Council Boards and Committees as they would all have 
the same total number in their membership.

Key lines of 
explanation

 How many portfolios will there be? 
 What will the role of a portfolio holder be? 
 Will this be a full-time position? 
 Will decisions be delegated to portfolio holders? Or will the executive/mayor take decisions?

Portfolios

Analysis

Gosport Borough Council is not planning to change the current number of Council Boards and Committees 
following implementation of this Electoral Review, it will still continue with the existing six Boards and one 
Committee.
As Gosport Borough Council follows the ‘alternative arrangements’ process, it does not have Portfolio 
holders as Local Authorities following the Cabinet arrangements do. Gosport Borough Council Chairmen of 
Service Boards or Committees do not have the authority to make decisions outside of Board/Committee 
meetings.
The Council’s Constitution is clear on the main role of the Portfolio – Chairmen of Service Boards: 



Page | 9 

1. To lead the Council’s activities in relation to those functions covered by the Terms of Reference of 
the Board. 

2. To ensure that the Board deals with its functions in a fair and proper manner having regard to the 
Council’s policies and statutory provisions relating thereto including the rules of natural justice and 
human rights legislation. 

The schedule in the Council Constitution which outlines the duties and responsibilities of the Chairmen of 
Service Boards can be found here.

The Council’s Constitution is clear on the main role of the Portfolio – Chairmen of Standards and 
Governance Committee:

1. Lead the Council’s activities in relation to those functions covered by the Terms of Reference of the 
Standards and Governance Committee. 

2. Ensure that the Committee deals with its functions in a fair and proper manner having regard to the 
Council’s policies and statutory provisions relating thereto, including the rules of natural justice.

The schedule in the Council Constitution which outlines the duties and responsibilities of the Chairmen of 
Standards and Governance Committee can be found here.

Gosport Borough Council believes that the Standards and Governance Committee is the ‘conscience of the 
Authority’ and this is reflected within the Council Constitution and the terms of reference for this Committee 
as outlined above.

Key lines of 
explanation

 What responsibilities will be delegated to officers or committees?
 How many councillors will be involved in taking major decisions?

Delegated 
Responsibilities

Analysis

Gosport Borough Council operates an extensive scheme of delegation to officers which are contained 
within the Council’s Constitution, can be viewed at the following link:
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/2713/Part-3-Schedule-10-Scheme-of-
Delegations/pdf/Part_3_Schedule_10_Scheme_of_Delegations.pdf?m=637312057782370000

The Full Council has six scheduled meetings per year. All minutes from Service Boards are included in the 
agenda at each Council meeting for all Elected Members, and there is a standing agenda item of ‘Member 
Questions’ for Elected Members to submit questions of either The Leader or a Chairmen of a Service Board 
to answer at the Full Council meeting.

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/2708/Part-2-Schedule-6-Chairmen-of-Service-Boards/pdf/Part_2_Schedule_6_Chairmen_of_Service_Boards.pdf?m=637312057771500000
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/2709/Part-2-Schedule-7/pdf/Part_2_Schedule_7.pdf?m=637312057772870000
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/2713/Part-3-Schedule-10-Scheme-of-Delegations/pdf/Part_3_Schedule_10_Scheme_of_Delegations.pdf?m=637312057782370000
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/2713/Part-3-Schedule-10-Scheme-of-Delegations/pdf/Part_3_Schedule_10_Scheme_of_Delegations.pdf?m=637312057782370000


Page | 10 

Accountability

8. Give the Commission details as to how the authority and its decision makers and partners will be held to account. The Commission is 
interested in both the internal and external dimensions of this role.

Topic

Internal Scrutiny
The scrutiny function of authorities has changed considerably. Some use theme or task-and-finish groups, for 
example, and others have a committee system. Scrutiny arrangements may also be affected by the officer 
support available.

Key lines of explanation

 How will decision makers be held to account? 
 How many committees will be required? And what will their functions be? 
 How many task and finish groups will there be? And what will their functions be? What time commitment 

will be involved for members? And how often will meetings take place?
 How many members will be required to fulfil these positions?
 Explain why you have increased, decreased, or not changed the number of scrutiny committees in the 

authority.
 Explain the reasoning behind the number of members per committee in terms of adding value.

Analysis

Gosport operates its scrutiny function through the formation of ‘Task and Finish’ Groups. The purpose of Task 
and Finish Groups at Gosport Borough Council are:

1. A Task and Finish Group should only be appointed by the Service Board to carry out a short sharply-
focused piece of work on the development and review of policies and initiatives of matters falling within 
the terms of reference of the Service Board. 

2. Task and Finish Groups should not be set up to consider individual complaints or to consider planning 
applications or licensing applications.

The procedure for Task and Finish Groups is contained with the Council Constitution, and information relating 
to these Groups can be found here.

Task and Finish Groups do not have sub-board status and the political balance rules in Section 15 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 will not apply but they will, subject to the availability of Members, be 
established on a cross-party basis. Task and Finish Groups shall comprise of up to 5 Members of the Service 
Board. 

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/2722/Part-4-Schedule-18a-Task-and-Finish-Groups/pdf/Part_4_Schedule_18a_Task_and_Finish_Groups.pdf?m=637312057794600000


Page | 11 

The Task and Finish Group may meet on as many occasions as it feels necessary to complete its work within 
the timescale set by the Service Board, and the terms of reference for the Task and Finish Group and the 
timescale for the completion of its work shall be agreed by the Service Board at the meeting at which the 
Service Board decides to set up the Task and Finish Group.
At the conclusion of their work, the Task and Finish Group shall prepare a written report including 
recommendations which shall be considered by the Service Board.

The Borough Council is not expecting to change this process following the implementation of this Electoral 
Review, as it feels that the use of Task and Finish Groups since their adoption and use at Gosport have 
provided and fulfilled the overview and scrutiny role of the Council by allowing Elected Members with an 
interest and knowledge in the specific subject matter to provide this function.



Page | 12 

Statutory Function
This includes planning, licencing and any other regulatory responsibilities. Consider under each of the 
headings the extent to which decisions will be delegated to officers. How many members will be required to 
fulfil the statutory requirements of the council?

Key lines of 
explanation

 What proportion of planning applications will be determined by members?
 Has this changed in the last few years? And are further changes anticipated?
 Will there be area planning committees? Or a single council-wide committee?
 Will executive members serve on the planning committees?
 What will be the time commitment to the planning committee for members?

Planning

Analysis

The Council has a single Regulatory Board, currently comprising 15 Councillors. The Committee meets 
monthly to consider those applications not determined by the Development Manager under delegated powers. 
The number of planning applications received and included in the returns to Central Government for the last 
three financial years are:

Year 
(financial)

Total Apps 
Determined

Number Apps 
 by Delegated 
Decision

% by 
Delegated 
Decision

Number Apps 
Decided by 
Regulatory 
Board

% Decided by 
Regulatory 
Board

2017/2018 313 269 86% 44 14%

2018/2019 300 261 87% 39 13%

2019/2020 302 277 92% 25 8%

Following the implementation of this Electoral Review, the Borough Council is considering reducing the 
membership of the Regulatory Board from 15 Councillors to 12 Councillors, to reflect the reduction in numbers 
of overall Elected Members. However, the Borough Council believes that a reduction in membership of the 
Board would still ensure that the Regulatory Board retained a good geographical spread of Members from 
across the Council area.

The Borough Council also believes that members of the Regulatory Board spend a greater time spent on 
preparing for and attending formal meetings. Being a Regulatory Board Member involves significant 



Page | 13 

preparation to ensure familiarity with the applications due to be considered. The greater time spent by 
Councillors who are members of the Regulatory Board can also be seen by the fact that Regulatory Board 
meets at least eight times in the municipal year, compared with five times a year for the other Service Board 
and Committee.

Key lines of 
explanation

 How many licencing panels will the council have in the average year?
 And what will be the time commitment for members?
 Will there be standing licencing panels, or will they be ad-hoc?
 Will there be core members and regular attendees, or will different members serve on them?

Licensing

Analysis

Following the last review of the Council structures and governance, the Licensing Board functions were  
included within the Terms of Reference  of the Regulatory Board of Gosport Borough Council.

The Borough Council Constitution includes a Licensing (General Applications) Sub-board, composed of 5 
members of the Regulatory Board to deal with:

1. The determination of applications for the licensing of money lenders, pawnbrokers, scrap metal dealers, 
sex establishments and premises for ear-piercing, acupuncture, tattooing and electrolysis. 

2. The administration of any dog licensing or registration schemes including the determination of 
applications for licensing and registration and all other matters relating to the general control of dogs 
and other animals. 

3. The function of licensing and prosecuting authority under the Caravan Sites and Control of 
Development Act 1960. 

4. The control of street and house-to-house collections. 
5. The determination of applications in respect of Hackney Carriages, Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles. 
6. The determination of applications in respect of Street Trading. 
7. Any other licences, permits or consents for which the Council has a general or specific responsibility 

under any general or local Act. 
8. The administration of the registration scheme under the Vehicles (Crime) Act 2001.

The Council Constitution also includes a Licensing Sub-Board, composed of 3 members of the Regulatory 
Board to deal with:
LICENSING ACT 2003 

1. The determination of applications where representations or a police objection is received or where the 
applicant for a personal licence has unspent convictions. 

2. The determination of applications to renew a premises licence or a club premises certificate. 



Page | 14 

3. The determination of a police objection to a temporary event notice. 
4. Where the Council is a consultee to decide whether or not to object to an application made to another 

Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act 2003.

GAMBLING ACT 2005 
1. The determination of applications where representations have been received and not withdrawn. 
2. The determination of applications for the grant or variation or transfer of a premises licence 
3. The determination of applications for the review of a premises licence. 
4. The determination of an application for club gaming/club machine permits. 
5. The determination of a police objection to a temporary use notice.

Key lines of 
explanation

 What will they be, and how many members will they require?
 Explain the number and membership of your Regulatory Committees with respect to greater delegation to 

officers.

Other 
Regulatory 

Bodies Analysis

Within our terms of reference for the Standards and Governance Committee, the Borough Council has an 
Initial Filtering Panel of 3 members who must be members of the Standards and Governance Committee, 
responsible for the determination of allegations of failure to comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct, in 
accordance with the Council’s arrangements for dealing with such allegations.
 The Panel has no scheduled meetings for this year, but would be formed if required to determine any 
allegations submitted to the Council’s Monitoring Officer. It is not anticipated that the membership or role of 
this Panel will change following the implementation of this Electoral Review.



Page | 15 

External Partnerships Service delivery has changed for councils over time, and many authorities now have a range of delivery 
partners to work with and hold to account. 

Key lines of explanation

 Will council members serve on decision-making partnerships, sub-regional, regional or national bodies? In 
doing so, are they able to take decisions/make commitments on behalf of the council?

 How many councillors will be involved in this activity? And what is their expected workload? What 
proportion of this work is undertaken by portfolio holders?

 What other external bodies will members be involved in? And what is the anticipated workload?

Analysis

There are a number of organisations which are independent from the Council, but have an impact on its 
service areas and its residents. In order that the Council can maintain effective partnerships with these 
organisations and partners, representatives of the Council, usually Elected Members, sit on the various 
committees and forums established in partnership with these organisations which are active within the 
Borough of Gosport.
 
The Full Council at its first meeting each year, approves appointments to these outside bodies. The full list of 
outside bodies are available to view on the Council’s website at the following link:
https://democracy.gosport.gov.uk/mgListOutsideBodies.aspx?bcr=1

The Council also has ‘The Gosport Task Force’. This group meets quarterly and is chaired by the Member of 
Parliament for Gosport, but is composed of many organisations that have an interest within the Borough 
Council footprint.
This group’s membership is pulled from the following organisations: Ministry of Defence, HMS Sultan, Ministry 
of Justice, Defence Infrastructure Organisation, Oil and Pipelines Agency, Solent Local Enterprise Partnership, 
Hampshire County Council and the Queens Harbour Master. Participants from the Borough Council are The 
Leader of the Council, the Chief Executive and the Assistant to the Chief Executive, as well as Officers invited 
to attend meetings as required by the agenda and discussions.

https://democracy.gosport.gov.uk/mgListOutsideBodies.aspx?bcr=1


Page | 16 

Community Involvement
9. The Commission understands that there is no single approach to community leadership and that members represent, and provide leadership 

to, their communities in different ways. The Commission wants to know how members are required to provide effective community leadership 
and what support the council offers them in this role. For example, does the authority have a defined role and performance system for its 
elected members? And what support networks are available within the council to help members in their duties?

Topic Description

Key lines of 
explanation

 In general terms how do councillors carry out their representational role with electors? 
 Does the council have area committees and what are their powers? 
 How do councillors seek to engage with their constituents? Do they hold surgeries, send newsletters, hold 

public meetings or maintain blogs? 
 Are there any mechanisms in place that help councillors interact with young people, those not on the 

electoral register, and/or other minority groups and their representative bodies? 
 Are councillors expected to attend community meetings, such as parish or resident’s association meetings? 

If so, what is their level of involvement and what roles do they play?
 Explain your approach to the Area Governance structure. Is your Area Governance a decision-making forum 

or an advisory board? What is their relationship with locally elected members and Community bodies such 
as Town and Parish Councils? Looking forward how could they be improved to enhance decision-making?  

Community 
Leadership

Analysis

Gosport Borough Council operates in a two tier local government structure, with Hampshire County Council 
sitting above Gosport Borough Council as the upper tier authority. Currently four Borough Councillors are twin 
“hatted,” in that they are separately elected as representatives to both Hampshire County Council and Gosport 
Borough Council. 

In light of these governance arrangements, there is an increasing need to ensure that the electoral 
arrangements of Gosport are efficient, effective and aligned appropriately to best serve the local community. 

Hampshire County Council implemented the outcome of their own electoral review to coincide with their 2017 
elections, to better reflect the identities of communities across Hampshire, including Gosport Borough. It is 
therefore timely to build on these arrangements to align effectively and appropriately with the County and the 
Borough communities. 



Page | 17 

Most Councillors are proactively involved within their Electoral Wards as opposed to simply responding to case 
work and consider that they play an active part within their communities. The approach they take varies from 
member to member, but most Councillors are involved in some or all of the following: 

1. Holding surgeries – dealing with queries, providing advice and engaging with their constituents face-to-
face; 

2. Working with, and/or offering support, to community groups and local organisations; 
3. Maintaining websites and social media, both as individual Councillors or in partnership with their Electoral 

Ward colleague. 

Gosport does not have area committees and does not have any parishes within Borough.

The Council Constitution includes a schedule on the main duties of an Elected Member of the Borough Council, 
and it states:

 With all other Councillors to collectively be the ultimate policy-makers and carry out a number of strategic 
corporate management functions. 

 To represent effectively the interests of the Ward for which the Councillor was elected and all of its 
constituents. 

 To contribute in a positive manner to the effective government of the Borough, and the direct, or indirect, 
provision of services to all residents, visitors and other interested parties. 

 To encourage the involvement and participation of individual citizens and the community generally in the 
development and review of the Council’s decision making processes.

The schedule also includes lists of Elected Members’ ‘duties and responsibilities’ and ‘key tasks’.

This schedule of the constitution can he found here.

Key lines of 
explanation

 How do councillors deal with their casework? Do they pass it on to council officers? Or do they take a more 
in-depth approach to resolving issues? 

 What support do members receive? 
 How has technology influenced the way in which councillors work? And interact with their electorate? 
 In what ways does the council promote service users’ engagement/dispute resolution with service providers 

and managers rather than through councillors?

Casework

Analysis Councillors take accountability for their casework, and manage their work appropriately, albeit with officer 
support. Usually, Councillors will contact officers directly – whether in person, via telephone or e-mail, and then 

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/2703/Part-2-Schedule-1/pdf/Part_2_Schedule_1.pdf?m=637312057763230000


Page | 18 

respond to their constituent. There is a sense of ownership and need to ensure the resident’s issue is 
satisfactorily resolved. 

Councillor responses to queries from their constituents can now be typed and sent electronically rather than in a 
written letter or phone call. All Gosport Councillors have been offered Apple iPads with access to their Gosport 
email accounts, and to partake in virtual Full Council, Board, Committee and Task & Finish Group meetings 
following the restrictions placed on holding ‘in person’ meetings due to the Covid-19 pandemic. The use of 
these devices and other IT equipment has made it easier to seek clarification on particular issues from Council 
officers, especially throughout the pandemic. 

In supporting the local government modernisation agenda and electronic working, the Council has recently 
implemented a new computer Management System for the Democratic Services team, Modern Government. 
This system is already helping to provide efficiency with Gosport’s support to Elected Members and the 
democratic processes of the Council generally. 

The use of this software system will continue to be utilised and expanded/increased following the 
implementation of this Electoral Review and will further support a new Council Size of 28 in fulfilling all Elected 
Members Community Involvement role. 

Gosport Council has an ‘Independent Members Remuneration Panel’ which meets to review the current 
Members’ Allowances scheme, which was introduced in July 2002 and reviewed in May 2011 and December 
2015. During the Panel’s last review in 2015, all Members of the Council were invited to complete a 
questionnaire, and the Panel invited Group Leaders, Chairmen of all the Council’s Service Boards and the 
Chairman of Standards and Governance Committee for interview. 

The Panel indicated that Councillors worked 87.25 days a year on Council related work, which included 
attendance at Council meetings and case work on behalf of their constituents.

The Council has a formal three stage complaints procedure and process. None of the three stages involve 
either a Panel of Elected Members or individual Councillors in either investigating or resolving the complaint.

The formal process and information on the Council Complaint process can be found here.
 

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/complaints


Page | 19 

Other Issues
10.Respondent may use this space to bring any other issues of relevance to the attention of the Commission. 

In July 2016, Full Council took to the decision to enter into a ‘shared management’ arrangement with Portsmouth City Council, due to significant 
financial challenges facing the Council at that time. From 01 October 2016, the three Chief Officers (Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive & 
Monitoring Officer and the Borough Treasurer) were redundant, and the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive and Borough Treasurer were 
appointed from equivalent post-holders at Portsmouth City Council.

Gosport has always been ‘open minded’ and ‘forward thinking’ with regard to working with local authority neighbours, and we have successful 
shared services across a number of Gosport services:

 Environmental Health – shared service between Gosport and Fareham Councils;
 Building Control – shared service initially between Gosport and Fareham Council, but also extended to include Portsmouth City Council;
 Portchester Crematorium - Portchester Crematorium was opened in 1958 and is situated on the lower slopes of Portsdown Hill between 

Fareham and Portsmouth. The Crematorium is controlled by a Joint Committee of Councillors representing the City of Portsmouth, the 
Boroughs of Fareham, Havant and Gosport but operates as an independent establishment with specialised administrative and technical 
support from the constituent local authorities.

 Coastal Partnership - The Eastern Solent Coastal Partnership (ESCP) formed an alliance in 2012 to deliver a combined, efficient and 
comprehensive coastal management service across the coastlines of four Local Authorities of Fareham Borough Council, Gosport 
Borough Council, Havant Borough Council and Portsmouth City Council.

 Project Integra - Project Integra is a partnership working to provide an integrated approach to the collection, treatment and disposal of 
municipal waste in Hampshire. The partnership includes all 11 district/borough authorities in within the County of Hampshire, Hampshire 
County Council, Portsmouth and Southampton City Councils and Veolia Hampshire (the integrated waste management contractor).

Throughout any shared services or shared management agreements, the Council has always been consistent in its approach, that the services 
to the Gosport residents must always been considered first and foremost as the priority.

Summary
11. In following this template respondents should have been able to provide the Commission with a robust and well-evidenced case for their 

proposed council size; one which gives a clear explanation as to the number of councillors required to represent the authority in the future. 
Use this space to summarise the proposals and indicate any other options considered. Explain why these alternatives were not appropriate in 



Page | 20 

terms of their ability to deliver effective Strategic Leadership, Accountability (Scrutiny, Regulation and Partnerships), and Community 
Leadership. 

In general terms, Gosport Borough Council has modernised significantly since the previous review concluded and was implemented in 2000, 
both from a governance perspective and also in relation to the way in which Councillors undertake their role in the community.

It is therefore considered that a Council Size of 28 is an appropriate and proportionate reduction (of 6) to ensure the Council is run efficiently and 
to support a balanced workload for Councillors in their community leadership roles. With the ‘alternative arrangements’ model, the Council 
believes that this provides the best democratic engagement of Councillors, and the newly established Service Boards structure allows Elected 
Members to still have the significant responsibility in the context of the day to day business, services and decisions of the Council. In considering 
the current Council Size of 34, Full Council concluded that [insert details of Full Council decision and conclusion]. .



T
his page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO:  COUNCIL  

DATE OF MEETING: 7 OCTOBER 

REPORT BY: COUNCILLOR HOOK (CHAIRMAN OF THE POLICY AND 
ORGANISATION BOARD) 

At its meeting on 29 September 2020 the Policy and Organisation Board considered a 
report of the Head of Finance recommending to the Full Council the approval of the 
Fees and Charges as detailed in the report and appendix 

The recommendations of the Board are as follows: 

That the Board recommend that Full Council approve the Fees and Charges referred 
to in the report and appendix for implementation from 1 January 2021 unless stated 
otherwise.



This page is intentionally left blank



Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Finance setting out the Fees and 
Charges for 2021/22.

Members welcomed this report and supported the decision to freeze many of the fees 
particularly for the market traders taxi licenses and sports facilities. It was felt that the 
Council should do anything it could to support those worst hit by the current situation, 
and it justified the relatively small loss of income. It was felt that the new pavement 
licence had been of great benefit to small traders and had created a much welcomed 
“Café culture” in the High Street.

Members asked that the bulk waste situation, whereby there was a long waiting list for 
collections, should be looked into as it could result in not just a loss of revenue but 
potentially fly-tipping.

 RESOLVED

That the Board recommend that Full Council approve the Fees and Charges referred 
to in the report and appendix for implementation from 1 January 2021 unless stated 
otherwise.



This page is intentionally left blank



GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL

BOARD: COUNCIL

DATE OF MEETING: 29 SEPTEMBER 2020

TITLE: FEES AND CHARGES

AUTHOR: HEAD OF FINANCE

STATUS: FOR APPROVAL

Purpose

To consider and approve the amended Fees & Charges contained in this 
report and appendix.

Recommendation

That the Council approve the Fees and Charges referred to in the report and 
appendix for implementation from 1 January 2021 unless stated otherwise.

1.0 Background

1.1 Fees and Charges were last reviewed and updated at the Council 
meeting in October 2019.

2.0 Report

2.1 Fees and Charges are an important source of revenue that are largely 
within the Council’s control and reduce the burden falling on the 
General Fund and council tax payers.

2.2 A Fees and Charges review has been undertaken as part of the Budget 
process for 2021/22.  This review has taken place in the context of the 
Covid-19 emergency and the impact this has had on the Borough and, 
in particular, on its local businesses and economy.  

2.3 The proposed Fees and Charges are set out in the appendix to this 
report. The proposals have been guided by the following principles:



2

 Those fees which are particularly business facing should be 
frozen at 2020 levels with no increases (e.g. for inflation). This 
proposal will impact fees associated with:

o Market Trading
o Taxi Licensing 
o Other forms of Licensing (such as premises licenses)

 A new (temporary) Pavement Licence has been introduced to 
allow the licence holder to place removable furniture over certain 
highways adjacent to the premises, the licence may remain in 
place for a year but not beyond 30 September 2021. This is a 
temporary measure to support businesses while social 
distancing measures remain in place.  

 We will remove entirely any fees for medical car-park permits for 
local GP surgeries as a gesture to recognise the important work 
that local NHS workers do in the Borough;

 Fees associated with use of Gosport Borough Council (GBC) 
sports pitches to also be frozen at 2020 levels given the lack of 
sports activity achieved in 2020 from March onwards and the 
reduced subscriptions that local sports clubs will have achieved;

 We will also freeze our waste charges associated with the 
removal of bulk waste and also the provision of wheeled bins, 
given many residents faced significant challenges in 2020 to 
dispose of waste material due to the lockdown; and

 All other charges we will increase in line with inflation, which is 
currently 2.6% RPI to March 2020.  The final exception is 
charges for CCTV footage requests (from Insurance 
organisations) where the charge should be £126 (including 
VAT).  The Fees book from last year showed a charge of £105, 
erroneously net of VAT rather than including VAT, which 
equates to £126.

2.4 The table below outlines an estimate of the financial impact of these 
proposals.  This is based on the charge levels that were approved in 
October 2019 for 2020 and what income was subsequently budgeted 
for this financial year.  Actual income levels for both the rest of 2020 
and 2021 could fluctuate materially as a consequence of other factors; 
notably following the Covid-19 lockdown.  Therefore, these estimates 
are a guide to what might happen and will be closely monitored if the 
proposals in this paper are agreed.



3

Fee & Charge Current 
charge

Proposed % 
changes

Proposed 
new charge

Potential 
impact 

FY2021/22
Market 
trading

As detailed 
in appendix

0% As detailed 
in appendix

£1000 loss 
of income 
by not 
applying 
RPI to 
current 
charge

Licensing As detailed 
in appendix

0% As detailed 
in appendix

Taxi 
Licences

As detailed 
in appendix

0% As detailed 
in appendix

£4000 loss 
of income 
by not 
applying 
RPI

Car-Park 
permits

Medical £10 Remove £0 £80 loss of 
income

Sports As detailed 
in appendix

0% As detailed 
in appendix

£500 loss of 
income by 
not applying 
RPI

Remove 1 
item £25

0% £25

Remove 2 
items £40

0% £40

Bulk Waste

Remove 3 to 
5 items £60

0% £60

Waste bins Replacement 
£30

0% £30

£550 loss of 
income by 
not applying 
RPI

2.5 The other charges detailed in the appendix will be increased by 
inflation, which is in line with our Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) planning assumptions.  The variations proposed above will 
cost the Council approximately £6k.  This additional pressure needs to 
be considered in the context of our existing Budget gap for FY2021/22, 
as set out in the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) of £570k per 
annum over the next three years.  

3.0 Risk Assessment



4

3.1 There is a risk to future service provision and the delivery of capital 
programme projects if the Council does not seek to maintain an 
appropriate level of income by reviewing its Fees and Charges.

4.0 Conclusion

4.1 Fees and Charges have been reviewed and the draft amended 
schedule is appended to this report. 

Financial Implications As set out in the report
Legal Implications The Council has power to 

charge for the services set out 
in this report.

Crime and Disorder N/A

Equality and Diversity N/A

Service Improvement Plan N/A

Corporate Plan: N/A
Risk Assessment: Section 3 of the report
Background papers: N/A
Climate Change No direct impact
Appendix Draft Fees and Charges booklet

Lead Officer Gary Morris 



1

GOSPORT
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Fees and Charges

2021

Fees and charges are effective from 1st January 2021 unless otherwise stated



2

INDEX Page(s)

Abandoned - Unwanted Vehicles / Shopping Trolleys 4

Allotments 4

Beach Huts 4

Building Regulations Applications 23

Car Parks 5

CCTV 11

Cemetery 6

Community Infrastructure Levy 22

Dog Control 7

Electoral Services 7

Environmental Health Services 8

Garages 8

Housing 8

Land Charges 9

Letting of Land 10-11

Licences and Registrations 12-15

Market 16

Pest Control 16

Planning Pre-Applications 21-22

Postal Naming & Numbering 22

Private Hire / Hackney Carriage 17

Public Conveniences 17

Publications 17

Refuse Collections 18

Sports 19



3

Stokes Bay Mobile Home Park 20

Street Trading Consent 13

Wildgrounds Nature Reserve 20

VAT FOREWORD

1 All charges include VAT where applicable. The VAT Code is per the list below.
S – Standard rate  
O – Non business  
E – Exempt
Z – Zero rated
The Standard Rated VAT charge changed from the 1st January 2011 to a rate of 20.0%. 

2 All charges are effective from 1st January 2021 unless otherwise stated

VAT -  LICENCES TO OCCUPY LAND; LETTING OF SPORTS FACILITIES

Exemption from VAT may be applicable under the following circumstances:

A Single lets
Each single let is for a continuous period of over 24 hours to the same person, the person to
whom they are let having exclusive control of the facilities throughout the let.

OR

B Series of Lets

All of the following criteria must be satisfied before exemption can apply:

The series consists of 10 or more individual sessions of the same sport or activity, each session
being in the same place, and the interval between each session is at least a day and not more
than 14 days

The series is to be paid for as a whole, and there is clear evidence of this, whether or not the right
to use the facility for any specific session is actually exercised, a formal agreement, exchange of
letters, or an invoice issued in advance requiring payment for the sessions specified on the
invoice would be sufficient evidence.

Refund for the non-availability of the facility by the Council would not invalidate this condition but
provision for a refund in other circumstances would; and the facilities are let out to a school, club,
association or organisation representing affiliated clubs or constituent associations; and the
person to whom the facilities are let has exclusive use of them during the sessions.

It is not necessary to book the same pitch to qualify for exemption, provided it is within the same
recreation ground. Any further bookings in addition to those specified in the formal agreement will
be standard-rated and subject to VAT.



4

VAT on Organised School Visits

The letting of facilities to a local education authority school falls within these rules of exemption
and is not outside the scope of VAT under the provisions of the Local Authorities (Goods and
Services) Act 1970.

ABANDONED / UNWANTED VEHICLES & SHOPPING TROLLEYS
£ VAT 

Removal of Unwanted Vehicles 90.00 S

Removal of Commercial Vehicles At Cost S

Removal of Caravans and Trailers 165.00 S

Storage of Unwanted Vehicle - per day 25.00 S

Statutory Charges for Abandoned Vehicles - Example
Removal of Abandoned Vehicle (Table 1 Regulation 4 - 2.2) 155.00 O
Storage of Abandoned Vehicle - per day  (Table 2 Regulation 5 - 2.2) 20.00 O

Fee type: Statutory - Removal, Storage & Disposal of Vehicle (Prescribed Sums & Charges) Regulations
2008 as amended.
A full schedule of charges for each different vehicle type can be found at the Office of Public Sector
Information Website www.opsi.gov.uk.

ABANDONED SHOPPING TROLLEYS (** indicates new fee structure)
£ VAT 

Charge for collection, return or disposal of Shopping Trolley ** 50.00 O
(total cost of £310 for collection, storage for 42 days and disposal / return of Trolley)

Daily storage of Shopping Trolley ** 5.00 O

ALLOTMENTS 2022 2021 VAT 
Fee Fee

£ £

Annual charge per square rod (1 square rod is 25.29 square metres) £6.50 £6.32 O
Annual charge per square metre £0.26 £0.25 O

Deposit (refundable) 50.00 50.00 O

BEACH HUT RENTAL - GOSPORT RESIDENTS ONLY
£ VAT 



5

Annual Charge Full Rate 920.00 S
Other Concessions (Over 60's) 690.00 S

Weekly Charge Disabled Residents only 20.00 S
One hut is available for weekly hire at Stokes Bay.

BEACH HUT SITE RENTAL - GOSPORT RESIDENTS ONLY

Annual Charge Full Rate 460.00 S
Other Concessions (Over 60's) 350.00 S

The site rental is for the last 3 remaining private beach huts at Lee on the Solent

CAR PARKS
£ VAT 

PAY AND DISPLAY CHARGES

Mumby Road (Bus Station)
Per hour 1.10 S
Over 5 hours (per day) 7.00 S

Trailers and Parking Permits (other than Medical Permits) are not allowed

Long Stay (Town Centre, Lee-on-Solent, Stokes Bay, Hardway Slipway and Alver Valley)
Per hour 1.00 S
Over 5 hours (per day) 6.00 S

Two Hour Car Parks (Town Centre and Lee-on-Solent)
30 Minutes (Coates Road Car Park only) 0.40 S
First hour 0.60 S
Up to 2 hours 1.00 S

Trailers and Parking Permits (other than Medical Permits) are not allowed

Three Hour Car Park (Lee-on-Solent)
Per hour Marine Parade No 1 & 2 1.00 S

Trailers (where permitted) - same charge as motor vehicle.

Coaches - per hour Only permitted in prescribed car parks 5.00 S

Motorcycles Free

Commercial Vehicles (over 3.5 tonnes GVW) parked in Mumby Road Lorry Park Free

Motor Homes (in Motor Homes bays)
Per hour 2.00 S
Per day 10.00 S

Parking Charge Notices Payment within 7days 50.00 N
Payment after 7 days 70.00 N

PERMITS



6

General Public
Annual Permit 490.00 S
6 Month Permit 290.00 S
3 Month Permit 150.00 S
1 Month Permit 50.00 S

Gosport & Lee Town Centre Residents Permits 85.00 S
Available only to residents living in specific areas of the town centres and for use in the specified
long stay car parks only

Medical (Local Surgeries) No Charge S

Leisure (includes Seafront and Alver Valley, excluding Motor Homes) 85.00 S
Leisure - Motor Homes 290.00 S

Notes
1. All drivers of vehicles with a trailer will be responsible for the payment of the trailer charge.

ANN'S HILL CEMETERY
£ VAT 

EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS OF BURIAL IN EARTHEN GRAVES** - GOSPORT RESIDENT

Provision of new grave (Post 01/04/1992) - obligatory 720.00 O
Interment into Existing Site (Pre 01/04/1992) - obligatory 155.00 O
Provision of a Cremated Remains Plot (Post 01/04/1992) - obligatory 155.00 O
Provision of Grave for child No Charge

INTERMENTS

The fees for interment include the digging of the grave to a depth
sufficient for two interments and re-turfing after burial.

For the Interment
(i) of the body of a still born child, or of a child whose age at the time of death No Charge
did not exceed 16 years

(ii) of the body of a person whose age at the time of death exceeded 16 years 565.00 O

For any interment in a walled grave or vault At Cost O

Interment - Cremated Remains 180.00 O
(subject to depth not exceeding 91.4cm (3ft) otherwise normal
interment charge will apply, no charge for a child)

MONUMENTS, GRAVESTONES, TABLETS AND MONUMENTAL INSCRIPTIONS

For the right to erect or place on a grave or vault a headstone not exceeding 91.4cm (3ft) in height 
by 91.4cm (3ft) in width by 30.4cm (1ft) in depth or 76.2cm (2ft 6in) x 60.9cm (2ft) x 30.4cm (1ft)

Adult 155.00 O
Child No Charge



7

For the right to erect or place on a grave or vault in respect of which the exclusive
right of burial has been granted - kerbstones or flatstones

(a) enclosing a space not exceeding 2.1m by 91.4cm (7ft by 3ft) 185.00 O
(b) enclosing a space not exceeding 2.1m by 1.8m (7ft by 6ft) 360.00 O
(c) tablets not exceeding 350mm x 450mm x 25mm 45.00 O

The fees indicated in this section include the first inscription.
For each inscription after the first a fee is payable 30.00 O

Annual Maintenance
Trimming Grass 70.00 O
Planting and Trimming Grass 90.00 O
Planting (Spring and Summer only) 80.00 O

Miscellaneous Items
Transfer of Grant of Right 82.00 O
Temporary Marker 31.00 O
Search in Burial Register (per burial entry) 10.00 O
Certificate of Burial 19.00 O
Use of Chapel 115.00 O
Exhumations At Cost S

Notes
** The fees indicated above include the Deed of Grant and all the expenses thereof
Non-resident fees on application
Imperial to metric conversions are approximate
DOG CONTROL

£ VAT 

Collection of stray dog - Statutory charge per dog 25.00 O
Kennelling fees up to 7 days 115.00 O
Microchipping of dogs per dog 10.00 S

each additional dog at the same address 5.00 S
Private home check visit 33.00 S
Dog Bags per packet of 60 3.00 S

Notes

1. Statutory charge is as per the 'Environmental Protection (Stray Dog) Regulations 1992'
and is payable before the dog is released.
2. Additional fees may be charged for costs incurred by the Council including legal fees
incurred due to non-payment.

ELECTORAL SERVICES

REGISTRATION OF ELECTORS (STATUTORY)

Item Data Printed

Sale of Open/Edited
Register

£20 plus £1.50 per
thousand entries (or part)

£10 plus £5.00 per thousand
entries (or part)

Z



8

Sale of Full Register*
£20 plus £1.50 per
thousand entries (or part)

£10 plus £5.00 per thousand
entries (or part)

Z

Sale of monthly
update notices*

£20 plus £1.50 per
thousand entries (or part)

£10 plus £5.00 per thousand
entries (or part)

Z

Sale of list of
Overseas Electors

£20 plus £1.50 per
hundred entries (or part)

£10 plus £5.00 per hundred
entries (or part)

Z

Sale of Marked
Register*

Where available
£10 plus £1.00 per
thousand entries (or part)

£10 plus £2.00 per thousand
entries (or part)

Z

Notes:
1.  Supply of the Full Register, monthly update notices and the marked register is restricted by the
Representation of the People Regulations.

2.  Packing and carriage costs will also apply where relevant.
3.  A request for the same part of the register in both printed and data form will be treated as two separate
requests.

Election Staff Fees
Returning Officer's fees and disbursements, Polling Station staff and Count Staff: as determined by
Hampshire Election Fees Working Party; available on request from the Head of Electoral Services.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES
£ VAT 

Food Premises Register
Single Entry 2.25 S
Single Premises category, e.g. butchers 55.00 S
Whole Register 235.00 S
Export Certificate Fee 50.00 S

LAPC/IPPC Register enquiries (authorised industrial processes) 42.00 O

Immigration Service Assessment of Premises Condition 85.00 S

House in Multiple Occupation Licence Fee on Fee on grant
Application of Licence

5 persons 520.00 300.00 820.00 O
6-10 persons 680.00 350.00 1,030.00 O

11-15 persons 830.00 400.00 1,230.00 O
16-20 persons 940.00 500.00 1,440.00 O

Over 20 persons 1,000.00 640.00 1,640.00 O

Housing Act 2004 Notices Actual cost
Private Water Supplies work Actual cost

GARAGES



9

£ VAT 

Existing garages Per week Housing Report 2021 O #
New garages Per week Housing Report 2021 O #
# above charges are for Council tenants - if garage is let to private client then vat is chargeable 

Notes
Charges to be reviewed as part of the Council budget in January / February 2021

HOUSING
£ VAT 

Copy of highlighted plans, dwelling account enquiries, prospective private purchaser 70.00 O
enquiries (Solicitor, mortgage lender and/or owner occupier of former Council property)

Prior/Retrospective permissions for alterations    30.00 O
(Solicitor, and/or owner occupier of former Council property)

Notice of Sublet of leasehold property 17.00 O
(Solicitor, and/or owner occupier of former Council property)

Registration of Notice of Transfer Assignment underlease  6.00 O
Notice of Charge (charges as stated in lease) 28.00 O

Rent Account/debt reference   29.00 O
(Mortgage provider/Loan companies)

Replacement dwelling keys to communal entrances  9.00 S
(residents of the block of flats only – no third parties)

LAND CHARGES
£ VAT 

For searches sent electronically via Email, our online application or through the NLIS Hub

Con29R 130.00 S
LLC1 28.00 O
Basic Search Fee (Con29R plus LLC1) 158.00

For searches sent in paper form via DX or post

Con29R 155.00 S
LLC1 32.00 O
Basic Search Fee (Con29R plus LLC1) 187.00

Extra parcel fee LLC1 only 2.00 O
Extra parcel fee Con29R 12.00 S

Part 2 optional enquiries 9.00 S
Additional enquiries 9.00 S
For a search in any individual part of the Register
In Parts 1,2,3,4 and 10 5.00 O



10

In all other parts 2.00 O

Personal Searches Free

Notes
The above are currently the maximum charges that will be collected. In accordance with the relevant
Regulations, the charges are based on cost recovery and will be reviewed throughout the year. They may
therefore increase or decrease as time spent on them and search volumes fluctuate.

HMRC determined that from 1st January 2017 the fee charged for CON29 enquiries, Part 2 optional enquiries
and additional enquiries are subject to VAT at the standard rate.

LETTING OF LAND

£ VAT £ £ VAT 
USE OF COUNCIL LEISURE LAND

Damage Land Hire Land Hire
For events up to 2,500 persons - per day Deposit Deposit Per day

Commercial (note 1) 680.00 O 167.00 680.00 E
Not For Profit (note 7) 125.00 O 0.00 0.00 E

For events above 2,500 persons - per day

Commercial (note 1) 1,350.00 O 333.00 1,350.00 E
Not For Profit (note 7) 250.00 O 0.00 0.00



11

Temporary Demountable Structures (TDS) 

Where a Temporary Demountable Structure is used, the following Building Control fees are payable

Commercial Professional Circuses 110.00 S
Other commercial events with TDS over 15m square 270.00 S

Not for Profit No charge

Camping per night
Caravan/Motor home 11.00 S
Tent 6.00 S

Trailer (with Boat) 5.00 S

Notes
1. Price includes access to water. Electricity is available on request at a number of locations.
2. Damage deposits are refundable after any works and land reinstatement costs incurred by the Council
    have been deducted.
3. Other relevant sites by negotiation with the Projects Officer
4. Charges for casual lettings of land are generally exempt from VAT unless a specific option to tax has
    been exercised on the land in question. In the latter case, where the letting is for charitable purposes
    VAT would not apply.
5. Hirers of 2 days or more will be granted (if required) set-up and breakdown days of 1 day
    for each day hired.
6. Bookings will be taken between 1st April and 31st October subject to land conditions, 
    for enquires outside of these dates contact the Projects Officer
7. Not For Profit Hiring - No hire fee or Building Control Inspection Fee (for temporary demountable
    structures) is payable except, where appropriate, for costs incurred by the Council and for a Damage
    Deposit. The event organiser must enter into a licence agreement with the Council for the use of
    the land and comply with the qualifying conditions below prior to the event.

To qualify:

Registered Charities

The charity must be registered with the charity commission. The event to take place on council land must be
organised by the trustees of the registered charity for the sole purpose of raising funds for its charitable
purposes.  The council may require a letter from the trustees to confirm this arrangement.

Charitable Event 

The event must be operated on a not for profit basis, with any profit distributed to a registered charity; or
organisation set up for charitable or community purposes. The council at its absolute discretion shall decide
whether an organisation is set up for charitable or community purposes and its decision is final.

The entire “proceeds*” from the event, less any “reasonable costs**” incurred in delivering the event, shall be
donated to the nominated charity/ies or community organisation(s).

The event organiser shall no later than 28 days after the event provide a basic set of accounts, and
supporting documentation, to the council clearly identifying income, expenditure and profit distribution. 



12

The council reserves the right to require the event organiser to pay the commercial fee for the use of the land
should they breach one or more of the conditions and the right to refuse the hire of council land for any further
events.

*“Proceeds” include monies from ticket sales, liquor and concession fees, sponsorship, collections and any
other income however generated

**“Reasonable costs” include fencing the land, SIA personnel, performance licences, premise licence
requirements, health and safety requirements and other services/expenditure essential for the event to go
ahead.

USE OF TOWN CENTRE/RETAIL AREAS
£ VAT 

For promotional and public entertainment activities in Gosport High Street
Commercial/promotional activities Per metre (minimum 5 metres charge applies) 8.00
Non-Commercial activities Per metre (minimum 5 metres charge applies) 3.00

USE OF COUNCIL OWNED LAND FOR FILMING

Commercial activities (where an income or a benefit is obtained) Per day 155.00 E
Non-Commercial activities (including promoting the Borough) No Charge

CCTV

Insurance related CCTV footage request 126.00 S

LICENCES AND REGISTRATIONS
£ VAT 

Animal Licences and Fees - (** indicates new fee structure following changes in legislation Nov 2018)

Dangerous Wild Animals Registration (Note 1) 140.00 O

Hiring out Horses **
New Application/Renewal (Note 1) 210.00 O
Grant of Licence 50.00 O



13

Variation Application (Note 1) 80.00 O
Grant of Variation to Licence 25.00 O

Dog/Cat Boarding (Kennels/Catteries) **
New Application/Renewal (Note 1) 200.00 O
Grant of Licence 50.00 O
Variation Application (Note 1) 75.00 O
Grant 25.00 O

Home Boarding Dogs **
New Application/Renewal (Note 1) 75.00 O
Grant of Licence 40.00 O

Home Boarding Fee Franchise (Including Day Care for Dogs) **
New Application/Renewal (Note 1) 120.00 O
Grant of Licence 60.00 O
Additional Dog Boarding Franchise property applied for 75.00 O

Selling Animals as Pets **
New Application/Renewal (Note 1) 160.00 O
Grant of Licence 50.00 O

Keeping or Training Animals for Exhibition **
New Application/Renewal (Note 1) 160.00 O
Grant of Licence 50.00 O

Dog Breeders Licence (Note 1) 180.00 O

Zoo Licence On Request

Notes
1. Plus any Veterinarian Inspection costs

Other Licences and Registrations

Scrap Metal Dealer
New 250.00 O
Renewal/Variation 140.00 O
Certified Copy 12.00 O



14

Scrap Metal Mobile Collector
New/Variation 140.00 O
Renewal 100.00 O
Replacement Licence 22.00 O

Sex Establishment
New 3,000.00 O
Renewal 2,000.00 O
Transfer 2,000.00 O

Skin Piercers, Tattooing, Acupuncture, Electrolysis
Premises 90.00 O
Person 75.00 O

Street Trading Consents - Licenced under statutory obligation

Annual Consent 7 Days/week Food Stalls/Vehicle/Trailer 1,210.00 O
Non-Food Stalls/Vehicle/Trailer 860.00 O

Up to 3 Days/week Food Stalls/Vehicle/Trailer 615.00 O
Non-Food Stalls/Vehicle/Trailer 450.00 O

1 Day/week Food Stalls/Vehicle/Trailer 345.00 O
Non-Food Stalls/Vehicle/Trailer 305.00 O

Six Month Consent 7 days/week Food Stalls/Vehicle/Trailer 630.00 O
Non-Food Stalls/Vehicle/Trailer 445.00 O

Daily Consent Per 30cm (1ft) 2.65 O
Minimum charge 4.6m (15ft)

Tables and Chairs
New 290.00 O
Renewal 180.00 O

Pavement Licence (Business & Planning Act 2020, licence valid to Sept 2021) 25.00 O

Street Collections No Charge
House to House Collections No Charge
Caravan Site Licence No Charge

LICENSING ACT 2003 AND GAMBLING ACT 2005 PUBLIC REGISTERS
£ VAT 

Single Entry copy of a Premises Licence 6.00 O
Single Copy of an Application Form for a Premises Licence 16.00 O
Single Premises Category (eg Takeaways) 75.00 O
Whole Register of each single Act, e.g. Licensing Act 2003 235.00 O

LICENSING ACT 2003 (STATUTORY FEES)
£ VAT 



15

Premises / Club Applications / Variations

The fees are based on rateable values of properties

Rateable Value Band Initial Licence Fee Annual Fee

£0 - £4,300 A 100.00 70.00 O
£4,301 - £33,000 B 190.00 180.00 O
£33,001 - £87,000 C 315.00 295.00 O
£87,001 - £125,000 D 450.00 320.00 O
£125,001 and over E 635.00 350.00 O

A multiplier is applied to premises in Bands D and E where they are used exclusively or primarily
for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises

Rateable Value Band Initial Licence Fee Annual Fee

£87,001 - £125,000 D 900.00 640.00 O
£125,001 and over E 1,905.00 1050.00 O

There are additional fees for premises licence applications, and the annual fee for exceptionally large
scale events (5,000+), unless certain conditions apply. Please consult the Licensing Department.

Personal Licences, Temporary Events and Other Fees (Statutory)

Application for the grant or renewal of a personal licence 37.00 O
Temporary event notice 21.00 O
Replacement of stolen, lost, etc. licence or summary 10.50 O
Application for a provisional statement where premises being built etc. 315.00 O
Notification of change of name or address 10.50 O
Application to vary licence to specify individual as premises supervisor 23.00 O
Application for transfer of premises licence 23.00 O
Interim authority notice following death etc. of licence holder 23.00 O
Replacement of stolen, lost, etc., certificate or summary 10.50 O
Notification of change of name or alteration of rules of club 10.50 O
Change of relevant registered address of club 10.50 O
Replacement of stolen, lost, etc., Temporary Event Notice 10.50 O
Replacement of stolen, lost, etc., Personal Licence 10.50 O
Notification change of name or address 10.50 O
Right of freeholder to be notified of licensing matters 21.00 O
Minor Variations 89.00 O



16

GAMBLING ACT 2005 (STATUTORY FEES) VAT 

PREMISES LICENCES New Annual Re-
Application Fee Variation Transfer Instatement

£ £ £ £ £
Existing Casinos N/A N/A 2,000.00 1,350.00 1,350.00 O
New Small Casino 8,000.00 5,000.00 4,000.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 O
New Large Casino 10,000.00 10,000.00 5,000.00 2,150.00 2,150.00 O
Regional Casino 15,000.00 15,000.00 7,500.00 6,500.00 6,500.00 O
Bingo Club 3,500.00 1,000.00 1,750.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 O
Betting Premises (exc tracks) 3,000.00 600.00 1,500.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 O
Tracks 2,500.00 1,000.00 1,250.00 950.00 950.00 O
Family Entertainment
Centres

2,000.00 750.00 1,000.00 950.00 950.00 O
Adult Gaming
Centres

2,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,200.00 1,200.00 O

Application for Licence Application
Provisional (provisional Copy Notification
Statement Statement holders) Licence of Change

£ £ £ £
Existing Casinos N/A N/A 25.00 50.00 O
New Small Casino 8,000.00 3,000.00 25.00 50.00 O
New Large Casino 10,000.00 5,000.00 25.00 50.00 O
Regional Casino 15,000.00 8,000.00 25.00 50.00 O
Bingo Club 3,500.00 1,200.00 25.00 50.00 O
Betting Premises (exc tracks) 3,000.00 1,200.00 25.00 50.00 O
Tracks 2,500.00 950.00 25.00 50.00 O
Family Entertainment Centres 2,000.00 950.00 25.00 50.00 O
Adult Gaming Centres 2,000.00 1,200.00 25.00 50.00 O

PERMITS
Application Transitional Renewal Annual

Fee Application Fee Fee Fee
£ £ £ £

Family Entertainment Centre - 
Gaming Machine 300.00 100.00 300.00 N/A O
Prize Gaming 300.00 100.00 300.00 N/A O
Alcohol Licenced Premises - 
  notification of 2 or less machines 50.00 N/A N/A N/A O
Alcohol Licenced Premises - 
  notification of more than 2 machines 150.00 100.00 N/A 50.00 O
Club Gaming Permit 200.00 100.00 200.00 50.00 O
Club Gaming Machine Permit 200.00 100.00 200.00 50.00 O
Club Fast-Track for Gaming Permit or
Gaming Machine Permit 100.00 100.00 100.00 50.00 O
Small Society Lottery Registration 40.00 N/A N/A 20.00 O

Change of Name Copy of Permit Variation Transfer
£ £ £ £

Family Entertainment Centre Permits 25.00 15.00 N/A N/A O
Prize Gaming Permits 25.00 15.00 N/A N/A O
Alcohol Licenced Premises -
  notification of 2 or less machines N/A N/A N/A N/A O



17

Alcohol Licenced Premises - 
  notification of more than 2 machines 25.00 15.00 100.00 25.00 O
Club Gaming Permit N/A 15.00 100.00 N/A O
Club Gaming Machine Permit N/A 15.00 100.00 N/A O
Small Society Lottery Registration N/A N/A N/A N/A O

MARKETS
£ VAT 

Frontage

Gosport Market Tuesday Per 30cm (1ft) 1.00 O
Minimum charge 4.6m (15ft)

Gosport Market Saturday Up to 10ft 20.00 O
3m (10ft) pitch 27.50 O

Up to 4.6m (15ft) pitch 32.50 O
Up to 6m (20ft) pitch 41.50 O
Up to 9.1m (30ft) pitch 55.00 O
Up to 12.2m (40ft) pitch 65.00 O
Up to 60ft 90.00

60ft+ Price on application

A 20% upwards tolerance in length is permitted Saturdays

Speciality Markets Per 30cm (1ft) 1.00 O
Minimum 3m (10ft) pitch

(inc. Craft, Food & Drink, Farmer's Markets, Christmas Markets)

Notes
Imperial to metric conversions are approximate

PEST CONTROL
Concession £ VAT 

DOMESTIC PREMISES

Fleas, Bedbugs plus unknown infestations, to visit and quote No charge 35.00 S

All Other Insects (including wasps) No charge 75.00 S

Rodent treatment No charge 65.00 S

Concessions:
Persons on low income, defined as being in receipt of one of the following 

Income-based Jobseeker's Allowance
Income-related Employment and Support Allowance
Income Support
Pension Credit (Guarantee)
Universal Credit (maximum award)

NB - Officers must be shown documentary evidence of entitlement by at least one member of household

PEST CONTROL: COMMERCIAL PREMISES

Rodents and insects for up to the first 15 minutes 85.00 S
Charge for each additional 15 minutes or part thereof 18.00 S



18

Notes

1. Charges include cost of materials and all rates quoted include VAT
2. Payment to be made at time of booking or prior to treatment
3. That no responsibility can be accepted for any loss or damage, however caused,
through treatment being carried out.
4. Invoices are not as a general rule issued, but when issued there is a 15% administrative
charge in addition to the above charges.

PRIVATE HIRE / HACKNEY CARRIAGE 
£ VAT 

Hackney Carriage Knowledge Test 23.00 O

Private Hire  Operator - 1 Year Licence 270.00 O
Operator - 3 Year Licence [Note 1] 650.00 O
Operator - 5 Year Licence [Note 1] 1,100.00 O
Vehicle 275.00 O
Driver - 1 Year Licence 100.00 O
Driver - 3 Year Licence 240.00 O

Hackney Carriage  Vehicle 275.00 O
Driver - 1 Year Licence 100.00 O
Driver - 3 Year Licence 240.00 O

Private Hire & Hackney Carriage driver (both licences) 140.00 O
Private Hire & Hackney Driver - 3 Year Licence 350.00 O
Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency check 6.00 O
(annual licence holders to coincide with triennial criminal record check) [Note 2]

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver's 2nd Licence 37.00 O
Criminal record check - paid to GBC [Note 2] 44.00 O

Issue of a replacement Hackney Carriage or Private Hire:
Driver's Photo Badge 18.00 O
Vehicle Windscreen Badge 23.00 O
Vehicle External Plate 23.00 O

Notes

1. Following new legislation effective from 01 October 2015. Changes to taxi fees have to be advertised and any
responses considered.
2. Amount charged by the external agency to the Council, and may be subject to revision during the year.

PUBLIC CONVENIENCES
£ VAT 

Radar Key For disabled public conveniences 5.00 O



19

PUBLICATIONS
£ VAT 

Statement of Accounts 20.00 Z
Budget Book 20.00 Z

REFUSE COLLECTIONS
£ VAT 

Special Collections
Collection, loading and disposal (per hour) **
** To be negotiated by the Council with the contractor (plus administration costs)

Domestic Clinical Waste Collection Provide and disposal of yellow bags No charge
Provide 'Sharps' and disposal 4 litre capacity No charge

7 litre capacity No charge

Removal of Bulk Refuse 1 Item 25.00 O
2 Items 40.00 O
3 to 5 Items 60.00 O
Residents receiving benefit (Note 1) 50% of above O
Over 5 items By Arrangement O

Garden Recycling Scheme (Note 4) Sign up to the sevice:
Existing/signup between 16/12/20-16/02/21 50.00 O
Additional bin (maximum 4 per household) 40.00 O
17/02/21 - 05/07/21 60.00 O
06/07/21 onwards 50.00 O

Replacement wheeled bin (note 2) 30.00 O
Roll of 10 replacement black sacks 1.80 O
Reusable Recycing Bags 2.10 O

Notes

1. Resident in receipt of Personal Independence Payments, Universal Credit or equivalent
2. Unless the replacement is for a bin which has been stolen and a Crime Reference Number is provided. 
3. The fee stated is for a 240 litre wheeled bin (or smaller) only.  Larger 660 and 1100 litre bins are replaced
    at cost plus administration
4. A new garden recycling scheme was introduced in February 2018 where a 240-litre wheelie bin is provided
    for green waste. The bins are collected once a fortnight over 40 weeks of the year between February and
    November, the scheme will be run and administered by Urbaser who are the council's waste contractor.



20

SPORTS Concession
£ £ VAT 

BOWLS

Per player per hour Adult 3.70 4.50 S
Bowls and Slip Hire 3.50 S

CRICKET

Privett No 1 Adult 55.00 77.00 S
Weekdays after 6 pm 39.00 60.00 S

Other Sites Adult 44.00 72.00 S
Weekdays after 6 pm 34.00 55.00 S

Synthetic Wicket Adult 34.00 55.00 S
(Gosport Park) Weekdays after 6 pm 28.00 39.00 S

FOOTBALL

Privett Park Enclosure* Gosport Clubs 82.00 132.00 S
Outside Users 120.00 192.00 S
Use of Floodlights 43.00 68.00 S

* To book, please contact Gosport Borough Football Club direct

All Other Sites 39.00 60.00 S
Sites without shower facilities 34.00 50.00 S
Sites without changing facilities 27.00 39.00 S

Training Pitch / Dressing Rooms 23.00 S
Net Pins 0.85 S

9v9 Pitches 21.00 S

MINI SOCCER



21

Per match 17.50 S
Half day per pitch 38.00 S

RUGBY

Gosport Park Adult 39.00 61.00 S

Dressing Rooms (separate use) 24.00 S
Refreshment Rooms (separate use) 13.00 S

Notes

1. The above hire charges include use of dressing rooms where these are available
2. Double Banked football hire will be 150% of the normal hire charge
3. VAT exemption for Seasonal Hires complying with Customs & Excise conditions
4. Concessionary rates apply for the disabled, over 60's and under 18's
5. Charges for tournaments to be by negotiation with the Head of Streetscene Services

STOKES BAY MOBILE HOME PARK
£ VAT 

All Homes - weekly rent (exclusive of rates and water charges) - 48 weeks - E
Statutory increase will be applied

WILDGROUNDS NATURE RESERVE
£ VAT 

PERMIT ACCESS

Day Ticket Adult 2.00 S
Concessions (Disabled, Over 60's & under 18's) 1.50 S

Monthly Permit * Adult 5.00 S
Concessions (Disabled, Over 60's & under 18's) 3.50 S

* 150 permits per month March to October
  300 permits per month July to August

School Parties Non-Gosport 31.00 E
Gosport No Charge

Guided Walks Adult 3.00 E
as advertised Concessions (Disabled, Over 60's & under 18's) 2.00 E

Family - 2 Adults & up to 3 children 10.00 E

Groups & Organisations 36.00 E
(Groups up to 20 people)

Notes



22

1. Children under the age of 5 are admitted free.

PLANNING PRE-APPLICATIONS
£ VAT 

General Advice

General enquiries and advice on planning procedures Free

Permitted Development Enquiry

All submissions for informal opinion on requirement for planning Householders 21.00 S
permission Others 40.00 S

Pre-Application Submissions - advice on the likelihood of planning permission
being granted prior to the submission of a planning application

Minor residential: 1 - 3 dwellings See also Note 1 135.00 S
4 + dwellings See also Note 1 275.00 S

Major residential: 10 - 49 dwellings See also Note 2 680.00 S
50 - 100 dwellings See also Note 2 1,080.00 S

Minor industrial/commercial: under 1000m2 See also Note 1 110.00 S

Major industrial/commercial: 1000 - 5000m2 See also Note 2 680.00 S
5000 + m2 See also Note 2 1,080.00 S

Others: e.g. Change of use of property or land / Adverts / Telecommunication Masts 135.00 S



23

Other major / very large scale / mixed proposals: Fee will be hourly rate x no. of hours S
 of officers dealing with the matter

Householder Development (development which relates to the extension, improvement
or alteration of an existing residential dwelling): 51.00

Community uses which are non-profiting Free
Proposals made by Local Councils Free
Works to trees Free

Notes:

1. Where a fee is payable and the proposal affects a Listed Building or its setting or is located within a
Conservation Area an additional charge of £80 will be levied

2. Where a fee is payable and the proposal affects a Listed Building or its setting or is located within a
Conservation Area an additional charge of £200 will be levied

3. Where a consultee charges the Borough Council for advice provided this will be payable by the applicant in
addition to the pre-application fee payable.

4. Proposals for large and/or mixed use development or where no floorspace or dwellings specified, fee will
be calculated by reference to hourly rate x no. of hours of officers dealing with the matter.

5. A response on minor and other applications will constitute one written response and/or one meeting (max 2
hrs).  A response on a major application will constitute one written response and/or 3 meetings (6 hrs max in
total).  Any follow up written responses or meetings required based on the same proposal or an amendment
to it will be calculated by reference to the hourly rate x no. of hours of officers dealing with the matter and this
will be payable before the advice is provided. All new submissions will require a new fee.

PLANNING PRE-APPLICATIONS (CONTINUED)

6. Each pre-application request can only relate to one site and only one proposal will be accepted for each
site. If you would like us to give advice on more than one layout or proposal for the same site then a separate
request will need to be made for each scheme along with a further fee for each proposal.

7. There will be no reduction in fee where the application would be exempt from a fee because it had
previously been withdrawn, refused or approved.

8. The fee is payable on submission, before the Council undertakes any work on the proposal or provides any
advice.

9. The choice of who is the appropriate officer to deal with a particular case will be at the discretion of
Gosport Borough Council.

10. Hourly Rate - £60.00

Other Charges

Section 106 - Planning Officer costs in negotiating
agreement

Fee will be calculated with
reference to complexity of
individual agreements and the
time required to deal with the
request at the hourly rate 

SSection 106 - Compliance Checks where
applicants/prospective purchaser seeks confirmation that
the terms of a legal agreement have been complied with



24

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)
Effective from 2nd February 2016. For the schedule of charges please refer to the
Planning homepage

ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR ACT 2003 
£ VAT 

High Hedges Application 670.00 O

POSTAL NAMING AND NUMBERING
£ VAT 

New Development of 1 - 5 plots 205.00 O
New Development/phases of 5-20 plots 205.00  + £10.00 per property O
New Development/phases of 21-100 plots 410.00  + £5.00 per property O
New Development/phases of 100+ plots 975.00  + £5.00 per property O
Naming of new block of flats/building 205.00  + £10.00 per property O
New postal address for an individual property 105.00 O
Change to new addresses due to the development
changing after the schedule has been issued

15.00  per property O
Research archive for address history 105.00 O
Renaming an existing Street 205.00  + £5.00 per property O

Notes

At the discretion of the Building Control Manager, the Council, may not require a charge to be paid for the
renaming/renumbering of roads where there has been a historical problem with existing road
naming/numbering scheme.

BUILDING REGULATIONS APPLICATIONS

Gosport Building Control, operating in partnership with Fareham Building Control under the name 'Building
Control Partnership' have prepared a scheme of charges in accordance with The Building (Local Authority
Charges) Regulations 2010

For full details of charges applicable for the Building Regulations control functions please contact the Building
Control Partnership on 01329 824823.

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/council-services/planning-section/planning/


A MEETING OF THE COMMUNITY BOARD WAS   
HELD ON 9 SEPTEMBER 20 20

  The Mayor,  
  Councillor Hook 
Councillors Beavis, Blackman, Burgess, Carter, Casey, Mrs Cully, Earle, Mrs 
Furlong, Hammond, Hutchison, Miss Kelly, Mrs Morgan, Pepper, Raffaelli and 
Westerby

                                                       PART II

40. CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT (CPE)

Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Streetscene requesting 
that the Council revoke the current Gosport and Lee-on-the-Solent (off street) 
Car Parking Regulations Order 2012 and implement a new car Parking Order 
to allow Gosport Borough Council to continue enforcement in Off Street 
Parking as required, following Hampshire County Councils application to 
introduce Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE) in Gosport.

Members welcomed the report and expressed concern that the police had not 
given priority to parking issues since the withdrawal of the Traffic Warden. 
They were aware of the abuse of current parking restrictions and the anti-
social parking on double yellow lines and obstruction of residential roads.

Members were advised that there would be no increase in car park 
charges at this stage and that town centre permits would still be 
recognised.

Members expressed concern about the effect on visitors to the High Street, 
but hoped that shoppers would be encouraged to use the car parks, more 
public transport, cycling or walking.

Members received confirmation that parking fines in car parks would still be 
paid to Gosport Borough Council, and fines incurred on the highway would go 
to Hampshire County Council. Under membership of PATROL, 30p of each 
penalty notice would be paid to cover costs of adjudication. Clarification was 
requested from the officers on whether this sum would be refunded if the 
penalty notice was overturned.

Members were advised that signage would reflect the single TRO which 
would encapsulate the over 500 current TRO’s.

Members were advised that there should be no change to the budget. 
Amendments to signage to reflect the changes in legislation would be 
carried out in house, and the only impact to the Enforcement Officers would 
be the addition of Civil to their title. It was hoped that more people using the 
car parks would help to generate an increase in income.

Members were advised that if the recommendation was refused by the 
Board, it would impact Hampshire County Council’s application to the 
Secretary of State to bring off street parking in line with on street.

Agenda Item 8



Members welcomed the close working with Hampshire County Council and 
hoped it would bring clarity to the public’s understanding of who was 
responsible for on street and off street parking control. Clarification was 
needed regarding the publicity campaign that would be run to advise Gosport 
residents of the changes.

RESOLVED: That the Community Board:

1. Agree to join the Joint Committee of England and Wales for the Civil 
Enforcement of Parking and Traffic Regulations Outside London, 
which oversees the adjudication service known as the Traffic Penalty 
Tribunal (TPT)

2. Approve the appointment of ‘enforcement agents’ to collect parking 
debts.

3. Delegate to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Head of 
Streetscene, the powers:

a) To agree the tems, in conjunction with the Borough 
Solicitor and Monitoring Officer, of any legal agreements 
that need to be entered into between the Council and the 
Traffic penalty Tribunal, the Traffic Enforcement Centre 
and the DVLA in order to implement CPE.

b) To make and changes considered necessary in order to 
meet the requirements of the Traffic management Act 
2004, in light of current and future Statutory Guidance.

c) To take all steps necessary to introduce the Gosport 
Borough Council (Off Street Parking Places) (Civil Parking 
Enforcement) Order 2020 in order to implement CPE in the 
council’s off-street car parks, and to meet the requirements 
of the 2004 Act.

And: recommend that Full Council nominate and resolve that a 
Representative and Substitute Representative are appointed to stand 
on the Joint Committee

41. ANY OTHER ITEMS

There were none.

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 6.28 pm



Housing Board
16 September 2020

1

A MEETING OF THE HOUSING BOARD
WAS HELD ON 16 SEPTEMBER 2020

Councillors Mrs Batty, Beavis, Burgess, Farr, Foster-Reed, Hammond, Hook (substituting 
for Councillor Murphy), Hutchison, Mrs Jones, Mitchell, Mrs Morgan, Pepper, Philpott, 
Scard and Westerby

PART II
5. HOUSING SERVICE UPDATE 

Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Housing setting out a general update of 
the Housing Service and requesting that proposals relating to the interim Housing 
accommodation at Walpole Park be considered.

Members wished to acknowledge and give thanks to the Housing Department for 
maintaining high service levels across their remit during the difficult Covid situation, in 
particular in the handling of the “Everyone in Scheme” which had created more cases than 
first expected.

Members also wished to thank local residents for their understanding whilst the Pods have 
been in place.

Members were advised that as the 36, currently void, properties became available they 
would be allocated to the priority cases on the waiting list.

Members welcomed the opportunity afforded by the Government scheme to resolve the 
homeless issue in the Borough, and hoped that working with partnership agencies would be 
beneficial.

Members recognised that the Pods would gradually reduce in number over the coming 
months, and did not want them to be considered a permanent solution for the homeless, but 
wanted the facility to remain available if the winter months were particularly harsh, or should 
a second wave of Covid occur.

Members were advised that a leafleting campaign was about to take place aimed at private 
landlords to encourage them to approach the Council to rent out their empty properties. 
Also a survey would be available on the website encouraging local home owners to 
consider renting out their available properties through the Council.

RESOLVED:
 That the Board approves the phasing out of the interim Housing accommodation at 

Walpole Park together with associated services.
 That the report of the Head of Housing be noted.

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 6.24 pm



This page is intentionally left blank



A MEETING OF THE CLIMATE 
CHANGE BOARD WAS HELD ON 

17 SEPTEMBER 2020

Councillor Hook

Councillors Mrs Huggins (substituting for Councillor Raffaelli), Mrs Batty, 
Blackman, Carter, Casey, Chegwyn, Mrs Cully, Earle, Mrs Hook, Hylands, 
Jessop, Johnston, Mitchell, Mrs Morgan and Pepper

PART II 

1. AIR QUALITY CYCLING PRESENTATION

By reason of special circumstances, the Chairman determined that the 
following item be considered at this meeting notwithstanding the fact that the 
item had not been available for public inspection in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 100B(4)(a) of the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act 1985.

Members viewed a presentation by Clare Dowling of Sustrans South and 
welcomed the news that Gosport Borough Council would join the project 
during September with the staff travel survey being distributed around 
month end.

2. ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE ON LOCAL 
HABITATS

Consideration was given to a report by Councillors Jessop and Mitchell 
requesting in accordance with Standing Order 3.7.2 for this issue to be 
considered at the Climate Change Board and that the Board approves the 
establishment of a task and finish group.

The Chairman asked that the wording in item 2.4 should be amended to 
read “not more than six months”.

Members wished to recognize the work that had gone into producing the 
report.

Members stressed the need for the work and actions of the task and finish 
group to be linked into the strategy of the Climate Change Board, and its 
output to be monitored and measured with KPIs.

Members hoped that the new Climate Change Officer would forge 
relationships with the appropriate external agencies to define accountability 
and ensure the work of the task and finish group is sustained in the long 
term.

RESOLVED:

That the Board approves the establishment of a task and finish group to 
consider:



i. external agencies and organisations that the Council should 
directly consult and engage on this matter

ii. actions that the Council is able to procure or carry out itself or 
with partners in relation to the issue

and to report back to the Climate Change Board in no more than six 
months on the outcomes of the task and finish group’s work.

3. CLIMATE CHANGE UPDATE

Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Corporate Policy and 
Community safety which provided Members an update on progress on the 
Climate Change Action Plan.

Members thanked the Officer for a clear report with a targeted and precise 
Action Plan, and congratulated her on the achievements to date which 
included the Green Travel Strategy and the Summer Passport where young 
people of the Borough were able to learn about climate change.

Members were advised that a Climate Change Officer had been recruited 
and would be starting at the beginning of October and would be 
introduced to Members.

Members were pleased to see that the report included the opportunity to 
embed climate change into a ‘green recovery’ and suggested that a link 
was formed with Action Hampshire’s Build Back Better strategy.

Members asked if data had been produced to monitor any reduction in the 
energy usage of the Town Hall during the lockdown period, and if there were 
any plans to install a plumbed in water supply to reduce plastic usage.

Members were pleased to see that supporting habitat gain featured on the 
action plan, and hoped for more in house control on planting.

RESOLVED:

That the Board note this report.

4. ANY OTHER ITEMS

There were none.

CHAIRMAN Concluded at 7.00 pm



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

1

A MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD
WAS HELD ON 23 SEPTEMBER 2020

Councillor Hook

Councillors Mrs Huggins, Ms Ballard, Bateman, Beavis, Casey, Mrs Cully (Substituting for 
Farr), Mrs Furlong, Hutchison, Jessop, Johnston, Mrs Jones, Miss Kelly, Mitchell, Philpott, 
Mrs Prickett and Scard

16. 2021-31 DRAFT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY AND EVIDENCE BASE 

Consideration was given to a report of the Economic Development and Regeneration 
Manager requesting the Economic Development (ED) Board consider the contents of the 
2021-31 Draft Economic Development Strategy and the Draft Evidence Base supporting it 
and gives its approval to carry out a full public consultation exercise.

The Board was advised that there was no update, and that the report had been provided in 
large type to allow it meet equality and diversity requirements and that the results of the 
consultation would be brought back to the meeting on the 18th November 2020.

Members welcomed the information and effort that had been put in to produce the 
document , but also included ways to promote the town. 

The success of the HAZ bids was recognised, and it was acknowledged that the bus station 
redevelopment was subjective. It was recognised that it would be interesting to obtain the 
publics thoughts. In addition, it was hoped that improvements to the Haslar site would be 
forthcoming. 

The Board recognised the difficulties that MOD and Government department land could 
bring and welcomed the proposals for an evening economy and a pop up market. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that Bay House School was able 
to make a contribution to the consultation if they wished to and were very active and the 
report could be amended to include any response received from them.

Members felt that the report was timely and that the benefit of a greater job density at a 
difficult time was welcome and supported the future growth on the Gosport Economy. 

Members questioned whether the consultation could be extended as the subject matter was 
so great and also questioned the methodology of the collection of data for those who were 
not tech savvy. In addition it was felt that arts and culture also had an important part to play 
in the Borough, in addition to historical elements and were a very important component to 
the Town.

The Board was advised that the consultation period had been set to fit with the budget cycle 
of the Council, but that it was possible to extend the period to 6 weeks. It wouldn’t be 
possible to extend it further if it was to be presented to the next Economic Development 
Board. 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

2

There would be hard copy documents available, and conversations were ongoing with GVA 
to provide the large copies to those that need them. 

The importance of the arts was recognised, as was the importance of gauging the views of 
young people and it was felt that the extended consultation would help in this regard.

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the current Covid 
regulations allowed for the consultation take place and should any lockdown occur the 
Board would be advised of any proposed changes to the consultation if the contribution of 
the public was adversely impacted. 

It was proposed and seconded that the consultation be extended by an additional two 
weeks to the 4th November 2020.

RESOLVED: That 

 i) that the ED Board note the contents of the 2021-31 Draft Economic Development 
Strategy and the Draft Evidence Base 

ii) that the ED Board agree to the commencement of a full external consultation involving 
Members, residents, local businesses, community groups and regional/sub-regional 
stakeholders on the basis of the agreed draft documents.

iii) that the consultation period be extended by two weeks to 4th November 2020. 

17. PLANNING FOR THE FUTURE WHITE PAPER (AUGUST 2020) 

Consideration was given to the Manager of Planning Policy briefing Members regarding the 
content of the Government’s ‘Planning for the Future’ White Paper (August 2020) and set 
out key matters to form the basis of a formal response.

The Board was advised that there was no updates to the report. 

Members expressed concern about the environmental and heritage proposals to allow for 
specialists outside the area to determine heritage and conservation areas. It was felt that 
consents for heritage asset applications could be outsourced to those not local to the area 
and that there were concerns that this would mean visits to important sites would not take 
place. Members recognised the importance of the conservation team in place and 
expressed concern that this would be compromised. 

The Board was advised that this had been raised previously in 2012 and that the Council 
had previously raised concerns and made representations against the proposal. There were 
significant concerns about this and there was a worry that the holistic level of assessment 
would be lost and as a result there were six key concerns to be raised. 

Members expressed concern that the local input would be removed from the process, and 
recognised that although the planning process had evolved, the proposals to centralize it 
was unacceptable, and prevented local people having an input at the appropriate stages 
and expressed concern at the impact on the neighbourhoods that would result. 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

3

The Board expressed concern that the public had not requested this change in process and 
felt that it was more likely to be under the pressure of developers. Members felt that the 
public were more likely to engage when there was impact on them at the planning 
application stage rather than the Local Plan consultation stage which contained Borough-
wide proposals over the long term and consequently often perceived not to have a direct 
impact. 

The Board felt that members of the public should engage with the consultation on the White 
Paper proposals to express any concerns they had about the centralisation of the process. 

Members expressed concern that the proposal was said to be streamlining and simplifying 
the process, but actually it would remove control from the Local Authority and give less 
opportunities for public engagement. 

It was acknowledged that Local Authorities did not build properties, but granted permission 
for them and that there was currently permission granted for over 1 million properties in the 
country that was outstanding and had not yet been built. 

Members expressed concern that housing numbers were based on a centrally set figure, 
rather than allowing the decisions to be made locally. Gosport was already 72% built on 
and had a large number of out commuters showing a high work ethic. 
The priority for the Borough was employment, and these centrally set targets did not allow 
for this. The release of MOD land should support employment opportunities for local 
residents, rather than default to housing. 

The Board expressed concern that the Local Authority were being punished for lack of 
progress, but it was the developers that had not built the properties that they had 
permission granted for. 

The Manager of Planning Policy advised the Board that part of the representation to the 
government was requesting to see the clear methodology for the process as if it was based 
on an aerial photograph type assessment, central government would not know if the site 
was a country park, or a defence munitions site which were not suitable for development, 
but from the air would look like they could be. No details had been provided regarding how 
the detailed methodology would determine land restraints, and in addition confirmation was 
sought that employment sites would be protected. 

Members expressed concern at the retention of the Housing Delivery Test, particularly how 
the Council had previously been penalised for removing poor quality housing on the 
Rowner site, and replacing it with high quality housing. Members expressed concern that 
the local authority were punished and not the developer, an example was the Haslar site, 
which had been undeveloped for 10 years. 

It was acknowledged that Gosport was the highest density in Hampshire and that there was 
a great need for rented social housing and housing to meet an aging population. Much of 
the brownfield land was not attractive to developers. 

Members questioned the impact of nitrates on the housing delivery test and were advised 
that to date, no pause had been put in place but that PfSH authorities had written to the 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

4

Government requesting this. The greatest impact would be felt in the next year. Some 
mitigation procedures were in place but there would be a knock on to the Housing Delivery 
test in the next year. The Manager of Planning Policy agreed to seek clarification from PfSH 
on securing a Government response on this matter. 

Members expressed concern that developers waited for a demand in properties, meaning 
less affordable housing was available and expressed concern that developers were driven 
by profit, often delaying completion to most benefit themselves. 

Members recognised that the Borough was 72% built on, with the national average 6%. 
Winchester, Test Valley and East Hants Districts were less than 6% built on. 
It was acknowledged that there was restrictions in these areas that meant that it was harder 
to build, such as national parks, but it was acknowledged that Gosport presented many 
difficulties, including the lack of railway station and an A road that was listed in the top 10 
most dangerous and the top 23 most polluted within a constrained peninsular location. 

The Manager of Planning Policy advised that the white paper was leading to a shift in the 
way the standard method was calculated. Currently it took into account household 
projections over 10 years and incorporated a ratio of average house prices and average 
earnings. There was an interim change proposed to this, which brought in consideration of 
5% of the housing stock whilst the White Paper proposed to change the method 
considerably taking into account other geographical factors such as size of the urban area, 
affordability, extent of land constraints and amount of brown field and the need for other 
competing uses, ie. employment. 

It was difficult to consider how this would be done across England, if one element of the 
formula was changed, it would make significant changes to the housing need figure and 
that Gosport’s needs were specific and a national model did not suit. 

Members expressed concern that growth areas would get automatic planning permission, 
removing any input from the local councillors and residents that want to have a say about 
proposed development in their area. 

The Manager of Planning Policy advised that the proposed zoning of Growth, Renewal and 
Protect was complex for Gosport as there was an overlap, for example the Town Centre 
was a conservation area and therefore protected in accordance with the White paper 
proposals, but there was also a desire for growth/renewal in some areas.This also could 
apply to the Blockhouse site, again showing that the proposals were inadequate and 
unsuitable for the Borough. 

It would be difficult to separate the areas in Gosport and would present conflict between 
protection, renewal and growth designations and that Gosport’s characteristics with 
significant heritage assets on brownfield sites meant it did not fit the proposals as currently 
proposed. 

Members expressed concern that the automatic consent would be granted after an area 
was designated as a growth area, and that proposals might not be apparent to residents 
until years later and it was felt that it was wrong to grant outline planning consent without 
consultation to the community. 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

5

The Manager of Planning Policy advised that the proposed timescale to prepare the Local 
Plan was actually 21 months (and 9 months with the Planning Inspectorate) and that the 
first time the public is able to view the consolidated plan, is at the same time that it is sent to 
the secretary of state. This does not allow the local authority to consider the representations 
made by the public nor make any appropriate amendments to the Local Plan before it is 
submitted to the secretary of state. This could also result in a long expensive examination 
without the opportunity to address the community’s concern. 

The main consultation would be in the first six months of the process when clear ideas may 
not be set out and therefore difficult for the community to make comments. Concern was 
also expressed that detailed proposals could be fast tracked if a proposal met the design 
code, meaning the public may not get an opportunity to comment. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the removal of the local 
planning policy, with a shift the National Planning Policy Framework would still allow for 
local policies to be associated with specific sites (similar to the first part of the current local 
plan) However, development management policies such as nature conservation areas open 
spaces and community buildings would switch to a national policy (as set out in a revised 
NPPF). 

It was recognised that this would be a national policy without the local detail, identifying 
nuances. The guidance did not rule out maintaining a local approach but the national policy 
was the preferred option. It was seen as important to include such local circumstances as 
Bird Aware Solent and the nitrates issue. 

Concern was also expressed that not all policy matters would necessarily be covered such 
as Marina Policy. It was acknowledged that marinas were not a priority to all, but they were 
of significant importance to Gosport.

Members recognised the importance of planning meetings allowing the public to have a 
voice at meetings of the Regulatory Board and that the amendment to the way in which 
business was currently undertaken would be detrimental. It was felt that a virtual way 
forward was not acceptable as the only method for the public having a voice. 

 Whilst Members appreciated the role of developers in the Borough, the proposal to 
streamline the application process through growth and renewal automatic outline consent 
removed local engagement and democracy in the process and felt like the proposal was a 
gagging of the local community. Whilst it was acknowledged there was a desire for housing, 
it needed to be through a democratic procedure. 

Members expressed concern at the use of the term beautiful as it was subjective and that 
the focus should be on attractive buildings that suited their surroundings. Members also 
requested that construction should take into account the environment. 

In answer to a Members question the Board was advised that it was not clear whether local 
implementation would need to be in line with National Design Guide and the National Model 
Design Code (due to be released this Autumn). When the template is released it would be 
clearer as to how prescriptive it would be. 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

6

There were model types in place which were more prescriptive that Local Authorities could 
adopt. It was advised that it was best to wait until the templates were released but that the 
authority would like a say on the proposal. The Lee West SPD had utilised parameters to 
set a framework as an example of how a template could be adapted to work. 

Members reiterated the importance of environmental considerations in the Borough and felt 
that this should be fundamental to the process when building new properties. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that the environmental proposals 
in the white paper was short and vague, and that previously there had been provision for 
sustainable properties, known as the Code for Sustainable Homes but this had been 
removed with responsibility placed onto building control. Clarification was sought as to 
whether this would come back to the planning process. 

Any improvement to buildings was welcomed in this way, with the benefits clear and also 
clarity was sought on the enforcement of such measures. 

In answer to a Member’s question regarding whether it was possible to reduce the burden 
of environmental assessment but deliver improved environmental outcomes, the Board was 
advised that there was some uncertainty of what was proposed but if the assessments 
focused on the key issues and how many outstanding consequences would be mitigated 
then there might be scope to do this. For example the current Sustainability Appraisal 
process which is a test of soundness is a detailed intensive piece of work, but the outcomes 
were limited; whilst the plan-wide Regulations Assessment was quicker, focused and more 
effective and considered how local plan policies impacted on international habitats.

Members expressed concern about the proposed changes to CIL.The Council had spent 
significant time on delivering this and felt the proposal to remove section 106, and just use 
the new Infrastructure levy was dangerous as it proposed that payments were not due until 
completion. This raised concern about the ability to deliver infrastructure as had been seen 
in Tower Hamlets. 

Members expressed concern at the delivery of guaranteed money and were concerned at 
the proposals. 

Members felt that further answers were desired by both Gosport Borough and Hampshire 
County Council as the County Council were providers of significant infrastructure such as 
roads. 

It was felt that infrastructure such as schools needed to be in place by the time proposals 
came online, not after and if proposals never materialised or were delayed, the Council 
would suffer. 

Concern was also expressed for the removal of section 106 payments as some 
developments, such as those including flood defences, may be critical to make a proposal 
developable and safe yet could be below the payment threshold for the proposed 
Infrastructure Levy. The retention of the S106 mechanism would still enable necessary 
payments to secure essential infrastructure to make a site developable. 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

7

Members felt that the Council was now expected to play banker and that if a developer had 
a proposal for a scheme that was sound, banks would be willing to fund them. Members 
expressed concern that leverage would be lost to support the type of development desired 
in the Borough. 

Members expressed concern that the white paper suggested the Councils were going to 
financially benefit from the changes but it was felt that it was overoptimistic. 

Members expressed concern that there was little experience from those developing the 
white paper on the planning issues that mattered.  

 RESOLVED: 

That this Council makes the following representations to the Government: (as expanded 
upon within sections 4-9  of this Report) 

 The Council strongly objects to the following proposals for reasons set out in the Report:

- the proposed lack of involvement of the local community at the detailed planning 
application stage; 

- the significant reduction of the role of locally elected Councillors in determining planning 
applications at the detailed proposal stage; and

- the proposed statutory 30 month timetable for preparing a new style Local Plan and the 
proposal for sanctions to be imposed by central Government should this timetable not be 
met. 

 That the Council raises concerns over other proposals in the White Paper in the absence of 
sufficient detail being provided at this stage (as set out in detailed in the Report) including:

- the lack of any information about the proposed transitional arrangements and at what stage 
local planning authorities should consider preparing a plan under the new arrangements 
instead of continuing with the current process;

- the lack of information regarding alternative arrangements to the Duty to Cooperate to 
ensure cross-boundary matters including infrastructure provision are appropriately 
addressed;

- further clarification  regarding additional resources from the Government to enable the 
proposed reforms to be undertaken;

- the potential risks and uncertainties relating to the proposed changes to the developer 
contributions system which could have significant implications.

 That the Council supports the following measures for reasons set out in the report (together 
with any specific reservations): 

- the removal of the Sustainability Appraisal system to be replaced by a simpler system;

- removal of the complex viability assessment process;

- abolition of the tests of soundness;

- a more proportionate approach to the level of evidence required; 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

8

- the principle of increased use of design codes with local engagement (albeit with a number 
of concerns outlined in the report).

That delegated authority be granted to the Manager of Planning Policy in consultation with 
the Economic Development Board Chairman to respond to the Government’s proposed 
consultation questions based on the comments within this report.  

18. CHANGES TO THE CURRENT PLANNING SYSTEM- GOVERNMENT 
CONSULTATION (AUGUST 2020) 

Consideration was given to a report of the Planning Policy Manager briefing Members 
regarding the content of the Government’s ‘Changes to the Current Planning System’ 
document (August 2020) and set out key matters to form the basis of a formal response.

Members expressed concern at the level of social housing required and felt it should remain 
at 40%. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the formula incorporated 
additional elements including a measure which considers changes in affordability within an 
area over time. 

In answer to a subsequent question the Board was advised that the standard method 
resulted in a figure of 309 dwellings per annum in Gosport, compared to the current 
Standard method figure of 344 dwellings per annum. The latest Standard Method also 
included provision of taking into account 0.5% of the overall housing stock which locked in a 
higher dwelling requirement even if household projections fell (as is the case in Gosport 
Borough with the latest 2018 projections). This latest Standard method would only be an 
interim measure as more comprehensive changes are proposed in the White Paper.

Members were advised that the Council had previously challenged the standards method 
formula and that the white paper proposals would change the methodology again. 

The Board was advised that the formula was produced to allow for the national target of 
300,000 dwellings. 

Members felt the Local Authority was best placed to identify the needs and requirements. 

A Member questioned what the risks would be if permission in principle for major 
developments were introduced. The Board was advised that the Planning in Permission 
system was currently available for developers as an option on small sites but to date the 
Council had not received any such proposals. 
It was felt that because Gosport had a 5.6km buffer from the Special Protection Area and 
developments were required to look at recreational disturbance instead it would mean that 
there was a habit regulation issue that meant there was exemption from the permission in 
principle. 

The Board was advised that residential developments would unlikely be eligible for the 
Planning in Principle route, and even for other types of major development there did not 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

9

seem to be many benefits for developers to go down the route of permission in principle at 
this stage. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that clarification regarding the 
influence of a special protection area would need to be clarified before committing to the 
exemption of the entire Pfsh area from the permission in principle. 

. 
 
RESOLVED: That this Council makes the following representations to the Government: (as 
expanded upon within section 2)  

 Continues to object to the principle of the Standard Method for determining housing 
need;

 Object to the proposal which requires that 25% of affordable housing secured by 
planning obligations should be the ‘First Homes’ requirement. Instead this should be 
at the discretion of the local authority based on local need, site characteristics and 
viability issues in accordance with the Adopted Local Plan;

 Recognise the need to assist small and medium-sized builders by increasing the 
threshold at which affordable housing is required but the Government should 
introduce a new scheme in which Government funds the local authorities the 
equivalent amount in affordable housing contributions in order to facilitate new social 
housing;

 Object to the extension of Planning in Principle for major development for the 
reasons set out in the report

That the Manager of Planning Policy, in liaison with the Development Manager and 
in consultation with the Economic Development Board Chairman, has delegated authority to 
submit responses to the technical questions based on the principles of the above 
recommendations and comments set out in this Report.

19. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) NEIGHBOURHOOD FUND-REVIEW 
OF ARRANGEMENTS 

Consideration was given to the report of the Planning Policy Manager reviewing the 
arrangements for spending the neighbourhood portion of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL) which the Council is currently collecting from developers.

It was requested that in future a chart could be provided detailing the success of the grants 
made and how recipients had benefitted them. 

Members recognised that GVA took on the role that many Parish Council’s did in other 
authorities. 

Members recognised that the amendments would help GVA to deliver the scheme. 

Members were advised that feedback would be provided in an annual report moving 
forward and this would detail the outcomes. 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

10

Members felt that the timescale for recipients from the time applied, until the decision being 
issued was quite lengthy and it was requested that it be investigated to see if the timescale 
could be shortened. 

The Board was advised that a key factor in this was the two consultation periods carried out 
with Members, which had added a month to the proceedings. 

In addition to this the GVA Executive, which had Gosport Borough Council Members on 
also considered the applications, this added additional time. 

It was suggested and proposed that the second two week period of consultation be 
removed from the process to shorten the time that applicants needed to wait for a decision. 

It was clarified that applicants could apply for more sources of funding in addition to the 
fund and this would be encouraged. 

The Board was advised that GVA were very thorough in their analysis of the applications 
and that the timing had been useful for some groups to allow for additional paperwork to be 
completed. The Board was advised that the GVA Executive meeting was the key date in 
any timescale. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that the email responses that had 
been sent to GVA had gone into their spam box, and as a result the information feedback 
had not been received which lead to a slight delay.

Members were advised that the scheme at Gosport Borough Council was ultimately unique 
as a result of the absence of Parish Council’s.

It was proposed that the second period of Members’ consultation be removed from the 
process. 

It was also proposed that GVA be written to with a request for them to shorten their 
process. 

Members were advised that GVA staff resources had been significantly stretched as a 
result of Covid-19

The Chairman requested that any response from GVA be shared with him and 
subsequently the Board. 

RESOLVED: 

That this Board:

 Agree to continue the arrangements for spending the neighbourhood portion of the 
Community Infrastructure Levy in association with the Gosport Voluntary Action 
(GVA), as approved at the Economic Development Board of 3rd July 2019 with the 
following amendments:



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

11

- To extend the period of spending the grant from 24 months to 36 months to 
reflect issues arising from Covid-19 and to review this position again in twelve 
months;

- To reduce the maximum grant for the 2020/21 application round from £50,000 to 
£10,000 to reflect the amount of money available;

- To provide flexibility with the application timeline (as shown by the tracked 
changes in Table 3 of this report);

- Introduce an additional funding priority which reads, ‘To support eligible 
organisations to improve the sustainability of buildings and open spaces and to 
tackle climate change and its effects- including supporting energy and water 
efficiency measures, promoting walking and cycling, and enhancing biodiversity.’;

- Introduce an additional funding priority which reads, ‘To support eligible 
organisations to assist them to make their buildings and operations Covid-19 
secure and support their recovery with a focus on infrastructure arrangements. 

- That GVA be written to request a shortening of the process and that the second 
period of Member consultation be removed from the process.

20. PUBLIC CONSULTATION ON PROPOSED STOKES BAY CONSERVATION AREA 
AND REVIEW OF ALVERSTOKE AND ANGLESEY CONSERVATION AREAS 

Councillor Casey declared a personal and pecuniary interest in the agenda item, left 
the room and took no further part in the meeting or voting thereon. 

Consideration was given to a report of the Heritage Action Zone Programme Manager 
seeking Members’ support to go out to public consultation on the proposal to consider a 
designation for Stokes Bay as a conservation area, and to review Anglesey and Alverstoke 
conservation areas, as set out in the Heritage Action Zone Delivery Plan.

Members welcomed the exciting proposition and recommendation and welcomed the 
military connection.

Members welcomed the proposals and questioned whether the boundaries of the Anglesey 
area could be amended to be titled Anglesey and Town as it included some of Town Ward. 

Members were advised that the existing boundary was set out in 1978 and that no formal 
review of the boundaries was due at this stage, but there would be the potential to, if 
necessary, amend the boundaries later on in the process. 

Members recognised that Conservation Areas did not necessarily mirror the ward 
boundaries and accepted that there was a report on ward boundaries was being considered 
by the Policy and Organisation Board imminently. 

Members recognised the importance of the history of Stokes Bay and felt it deserved to be 
Conservation Area. 



Economic Development Board
23 September 2020

12

RESOLVED: To go out to public consultation on the proposal to consider the designation of 
Stoke Bay as a conservation area and to carry out reviews of Anglesey and Alverstoke 
Conservation Areas.

21. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

There were none. 

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 10.15 pm



Policy and Organisation Board
29 September 2020

1

A MEETING OF THE POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD
WAS HELD ON 29 SEPTEMBER 2020

The Mayor Councillors Mrs Huggins, Ms Ballard, Bateman, Burgess, Chegwyn, Mrs Cully, 
Foster-Reed, Hook, Mrs Hook, Hylands, Jessop, Murphy, Philpott, Mrs Prickett, Raffaelli 
and Westerby (Substituting for Herridge)

23. UPDATED WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY 

Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Internal Auditor seeking approval from 
Members in regards to the draft updated Whistleblowing Policy 2020.

Members were advised that this report contained a fairly substantial update and outlined 
the assurances the Council will give to employees making referrals and outlining how the 
process will be managed to ensure consistency. The methods of communication have been 
extended.

Members welcomed the report and fully supported the additional anonymity and 
confidentiality the process afforded employees.  

RESOLVED: That the Policy and Organisation Board approve the draft updated 
whistleblowing Policy

25. COVID UPDATE 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Finance providing the Board with an 
update of the financial impact to the Council as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Members welcomed the report and felt it put into perspective the cost to the Council of 
Covid 19, and recognised that there was an ongoing commitment for the foreseeable future. 
They were reassured that there would be no cuts to frontline services as a result of this 
additional expenditure.

Members also wanted to recognise the additional workload and responsibilities the Covid 
situation had put upon all officers, in particular those dealing with the homeless and 
vulnerable. There was also praise for the way in which voluntary organisations, churches 
and the community as a whole had come together to support those most in need.

Members expressed a wish to be kept updated on these figures and this would be done 
though the Members Information Bulletins.

The Board noted the report. 

26. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

There were none.



Policy and Organisation Board
29 September 2020

2

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 7.20 pm



Board/Committee: FULL COUNCIL
Date of meeting: 07 October 2020 
Title: GOSPORT AND TOWN CENTRE PSPO
Author: BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER
Status: FOR DECISION

Purpose

This report seeks the approval of the Council to approve the varied Gosport and Town 
Centre PSPO to run for a further period of three years commencing 20 October 2020.

Recommendation

That the Council approves the Gosport and Town Centre PSPO 2020 to control 
Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB), Drinking and Begging in public places within the 
areas shown edged black in the accompanying plans as set out at Appendix 1

1.0 Introduction

1.1 On 29 July 2020 the Council unanimously approved the Gosport and Town 
Centre PSPO 2020 (Appendix 1) for public consultation.   The report 
presented to the Council set out the reasons, background and risks 
associated.

1.2 As part of the public consultation, notice of the proposed Gosport and Town 
Centre PSPO was given on social media, Twitter, Facebook and the Council 
website. Letters and e-mails were also sent to various stakeholders.  An 
online survey was set up and a link to the survey was included in the 
communications.

2.0 Report - background

2.1

2.2

The survey contained 7 questions specific to the PSPO and a further set of 
questions designed to measure the reach of consultation and consider any 
equality impact of the survey.  There were 136 respondents to the survey, 
94.78% of which were Gosport residents.  

The outcome of the consultation demonstrates a continued perceived 
problem with ASB, Alcohol and Begging and as such respondents have 
indicated a desire to keep the PSPO’s in place for a further 3 years. The 
results of the public consultation are attached to this report as Appendix 2 
but are summarised in the following paragraphs.

3.0 Survey Responses

Agenda Item 9



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Responses were received from each ward within the Borough.  Whilst some 
Wards were more represented this does not detract from the responses 
received.

85.29% of respondents believe that there is a problem with alcohol/ drugs/ 
begging related antisocial behaviour in the Borough.

The overwhelming majority of respondents felt the need for a PSPO for the 
street drinking, drug use and begging.  

Further 88.15% of respondents who answered the question wanted the 
existing PSPO to be extended for a further 3 years, whereas only 6.67% of 
respondents wanted the PSPO to be varied.  One individual indicated that 
they felt the revised PSPO was too restrictive and one individual did not 
answer this question.  

When asked if they felt the Restricted Area 2 should be extended, 65.67 % 
of 135 respondents agreed but 15.67% did not agree.  Those that did not 
agree did not want the area extended.  Individual comments indicated that 
the concern was for residents to have the ability to drink socially as a group.  

Of the 135 people that answered the question about their experience of ASB 
and other related activities only 11.94% reported that they had not 
experienced ASB or other related activities.  This was a multi-response 
question and so respondents were able to indicate one or more types of 
behaviours experienced by them.

4.0 Consultation

4.1

4.2

As well as the online survey, Letters were sent to the Chief Constable of 
Hampshire Police, the Police and Crime Commissioner and Hampshire 
County Council on 26.08.2020 but no responses were received.  It is unclear 
if they responded using the survey.  As such chaser letters were sent to 
each on 28.09.2020 by recorded delivery but at the time of writing this report 
no responses have been received.

The Consultation was open from 20.08 2020 and closed at 11.00hrs on 
02.10.2020 so as to allow the full 6 weeks for those that wish to respond. 

5.0 Risk Assessment

5.1 The results of the survey indicate a consensus to extend the existing 
PSPO’s as they currently stand for a further 3 years and do not appear to 
demonstrate a desire from residents to merge the two existing PSPO’s into 
one document as recommended.   The current Alcohol PSPO expires on 20 
October 2020 and the Town Centre PSPO expires on 17 November 2020.    
If the Gosport and Town Centre PSPO is not approved to commence on 20 
October and is left until 17 November 2020 as originally planned, there will 
be a period of 4 weeks where there are no alcohol restrictions in the 
Borough.  



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

A merging of the existing PSPO’s had been carried out for the purpose of 
reducing the number of PSPO’s the Borough has and so as to make 
enforcement simpler and clearer.  The intention is to add the provisions of 
the current Dog PSPO and other PSPO’s into the document in due course, 
thereby creating a single document for reference.

For clarity the Alcohol restrictions contained within the existing Alcohol 
PSPO are Borough wide and this remains the case within the Gosport and 
Town Centre PSPO 2020.

There is consensus to extend the boundary of the restricted activities in the 
Town Centre, but there is no indication as to how far the boundaries should 
be extended or which specific restrictions they would apply to.    Therefore 
the boundary identified in the Gosport and Town Centre PSPO in Restricted 
Area Two is the same as the boundary identified in the existing town Centre 
PSPO.    

It is recommended that the document appearing at Appendix 1 is approved 
for the above reasons. There is no detriment to the public in merging the 
existing PSPO’s into one but there is an advantage to the Council from an 
administrative perspective.
  

5.5

5.6

5.7

As before the focus of the Council and the Police remains on supporting 
individuals identified as vulnerable through issues such as addiction. 

Enforcement will be targeted on those who unreasonably refuse help and 
assistance and engage in ASB. The approach to enforcing the PSPO will 
be the key to their success in tackling the ASB within the Restricted Areas.

Any enforcement activity should be supported by community education to 
highlight the availability of support services. This approach has been agreed 
with the police.

6.0 Conclusion

6.1

6.2

6.3

The Town Centre PSPO 2017 and Alcohol PSPO 2017 will expire unless 
renewed. 

If the Council resolves to approve the Gosport and Town Centre PSPO 2020 
to come into force on 20 October 2020.  

Given that the Gosport and Town Centre PSPO 2020 encompasses the 
restrictions contained in the both the current Town Centre PSPO 2017 and 
Alcohol PSPO 2017, there will be no requirement to further extend the Town 
Centre PSPO when it expires on 17 November 2020.

Financial Services comments: N/A



Legal Services comments: Contained within the report. Section 66 of the 
Act does allow an ‘interested person’ to apply to 
the High Court to challenge the validity of the 
PSPO on prescribed grounds. Any appeal must 
be made within 6 weeks of the PSPO being 
made.

Crime and Disorder: The report directly addresses anti-social 
behaviour and the Police have been consulted 
on the proposed PSPO.  As such no response 
has been received and it may be that a response 
is received late resulting in an update at Full 
Council.

Equality and Diversity: The Council must assess, having due regard to 
consider all the circumstances, the impact that 
the proposed PSPO and its enforcement will 
have on its duty to advance equality of 
opportunity for all and need to eliminate 
discrimination.  A full impact assessment has 
been undertaken for the purpose and is attached 
as Appendix 3.

Service Improvement Plan 
implications:
Climate Change implications:
Corporate Plan:
Risk Assessment: See section 6.
Background Papers: Report to Full Council 29.07.2020
Appendices: Appendix ‘1’ Gosport and Town Centre PSPO 

2020
Appendix ‘2’ Survey Results
Appendix ‘3’ Equality Impact Assessment.

Report Author/Lead Officer: Azmi Quraishe, Senior Solicitor and Deputy 
Monitoring Officer



Section 59The Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (the “Act”) 

The Borough of Gosport & Town Centre Public Spaces Protection Order 2020 

Gosport Borough Council (the “Council”) having being satisfied the conditions set out 

at section of 59 of the Act are met upon the following detrimental activities being 

carried on in the Restricted Area 

Anti-social behaviour linked to alcohol or drug use 

Anti-social behaviour linked to urinating or defecating. 

Anti-social behaviour linked to begging 

Anti-social behaviour linked to blocking entrances/exits 

This Order varies and extends the existing PSPO and comes into force on XXX for a 

period of 3 years. 

The Council hereby makes the following Public Spaces Protection Order for its area: 

1. Interpretation 

1.1. "Authorised Person" means a Council officer authorised by the chief 

executive of the Council or Police Constable or Police Community Support 

Officer or authorised Gosport Borough Council Officer, who must present 

their authority upon request. 

1.2. "Public Place" means any place to which the public or any section of the 

public has access, on payment or otherwise, as of right or by virtue of 

express or implied permission; 

1.3. “Restricted Area 1” means any land or premises accessible by the public in 

the area known as the Borough of Gosport and shown edged black on the 

plan at Schedule 1 to this order. 

1.4. Restricted Area 2” means any land or premises accessible by the public in 

the area known as the Town Centre and shown edged black on the plan at 

Schedule 2 to this order  

 

 



2. Restrictions 

2.1. No person shall consume alcohol in any public place in the Restricted Area 1 

other than at licensed premises. 

2.2. No person shall be in possession of any opened vessel containing or 

purporting to contain alcohol in any public place in the Restricted Area 1. 

2.3. No person shall fail or refuse to comply with any requirement of an 

Authorised Person to cease consumption of alcohol or surrender any alcohol 

containers to an Authorised Person. 

2.4. No person within the Restricted Area 1 will ingest, inhale, inject, smoke or 

otherwise use intoxicating substances (substances with the capacity to 

stimulate or depress the central nervous system).  

2.5. No person will possess any item and or drug paraphernalia that can be used 

to assist in the taking of intoxicating substances. This includes any device for 

smoking substances other than e-cigarettes, it also includes needles, except 

for those packaged and sealed by the manufacturer and stored in a hard 

case. 

2.6. No person shall fail or refuse to comply with any requirement of an 

Authorised Person to cease consumption of drugs or surrender any drugs or 

any drug containers or any drug paraphernalia in their possession. 

2.7. No person shall urinate or defecate in any public place within the Restricted 

Area 1; this does not include public toilets. 

2.8. No person shall beg by making unsolicited and/or unauthorised requests for 

money (whether expressly requested or impliedly requested by conduct) 

within the Restricted Area 2.  This shall include any verbal, non-verbal or 

written request from a standing, sitting or lying down position for money, 

donations or goods, including the placing of hats, clothing or containers.  

2.9. No person shall loiter, sit or lay on the floor or on temporary structures in or 

adjacent to doorways or around pay machines (including banks, 

supermarkets) in a manner causing or likely to cause harassment, alarm, 

distress, nuisance or annoyance to any person within the Restricted Area 2.   

2.10. No person shall congregate in a group of 4 or more people and behave 

in a manner causing or likely to cause harassment, alarm, distress, nuisance 

or annoyance to any person within the Restricted Area 2.  



2.11. No person shall, after being requested to leave by an authorised officer 

due to them behaving in a manner causing or likely to cause harassment, 

alarm, distress, nuisance or annoyance to any person within the Restricted 

Area 2 without reasonable excuse, remain or return to the Restricted Area 2 

within a period of 24 hours. 

 

3. Penalty  

3.1. It is an offence contrary to section 67 of the Act for a person without 

reasonable excuse to fail to comply with the restrictions in 2 above. A person 

guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary conviction to a 

level 3 fine not exceeding £1000. 

 

4. This order shall remain in force until November 2023 

Executed as a Deed by affixing  

the Common Seal of  

GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL  

in the presence of:- 

 

 

  



SCHEDULE 1 

RESTRICTED AREA 1

  



SCHEDULE 2 

RESTRICTED AREA 2 

 



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

1 / 10

Q1 Which ward do you live, work or vist? (to view a ward map click here)
Answered: 136 Skipped: 0

Alverstoke

Anglesey

Bridgemary
North

Bridgemary
South

Brockhurst

Christchurch

Elson

Forton

Grange

Hardway

Leesland

Lee East

Lee West

Peel Common

Privett

Rowner and
Holbrook

Town

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

2 / 10

10.29% 14

4.41% 6

5.15% 7

1.47% 2

5.15% 7

10.29% 14

7.35% 10

8.09% 11

1.47% 2

6.62% 9

5.88% 8

2.94% 4

2.94% 4

0.74% 1

4.41% 6

5.15% 7

17.65% 24

TOTAL 136

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Alverstoke

Anglesey

Bridgemary North

Bridgemary South

Brockhurst

Christchurch

Elson

Forton

Grange

Hardway

Leesland

Lee East

Lee West

Peel Common

Privett

Rowner and Holbrook

Town



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

3 / 10

85.29% 116

7.35% 10

7.35% 10

Q2 Do you believe there is a problem with alcohol/drug/begging related
anti-social behaviour in the Borough?

Answered: 136 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 136

Yes

No

Don't know

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

Don't know



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

4 / 10

85.19% 115

91.85% 124

74.81% 101

5.19% 7

0.74% 1

Q3 Do you think we should have a PSPO to deal with: street drinking/drug
use/begging? Tick all that apply

Answered: 135 Skipped: 1

Total Respondents: 135  

Street drinking

Drug use

Begging

No

Don't know

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Street drinking

Drug use

Begging

No

Don't know



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

5 / 10

88.15% 119

6.67% 9

2.96% 4

4.44% 6

Q4 Do you agree that the existing PSPO where you live, work or visit
should be extended for a further 3 years? The exisiting PSPO for the Town
Centre can be viewed here. The existing PSPO for alcohol can be viewed

here. 
Answered: 135 Skipped: 1

Total Respondents: 135  

Yes, remain in
place for a...

Be varied as
per the...

Be discharged
(ended as no...

No opinion

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes, remain in place for a further 3 years

Be varied as per the proposed PSPO (please explain below if you want it to varied further)

Be discharged (ended as no longer needed)

No opinion



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

6 / 10

65.67% 88

0.00% 0

15.67% 21

14.93% 20

3.73% 5

Q5 Do you agree that the Restricted Area 2 of the proposed PSPO shown
on the map should be extended ? The proposed PSPO can be found here

Answered: 134 Skipped: 2

TOTAL 134

Yes, the
boundary sho...

Be varied
further (ple...

Not be extended

No opinion

Please add
your comments

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes, the boundary should be extended

Be varied further (please explain below)

Not be extended

No opinion

Please add your comments



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

7 / 10

Q6 Have you personally experienced any of the following anti-social
behaviour incidents related to the consumption of alcohol in the Town

Centre and or the Borough of Gosport in the last 12 months? Please tick
all that apply

Answered: 134 Skipped: 2



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

8 / 10

Adults
drinking...

Young people
drinking...

Threatening or
intimidating...

Threatening or
intimidating...

Noise
disturbance ...

Noise
disturbance ...

Alcohol litter
in the stree...

Begging

Aggressive
begging

Drug litter or
paraphernali...

Adults taking
drugs

Young people
taking drugs

Noise
disturbance ...

Noise
disturbance ...

None of the
above

Prefer not to
say

If you have
answered yes...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

9 / 10

50.75% 68

42.54% 57

37.31% 50

35.07% 47

48.51% 65

44.78% 60

69.40% 93

50.75% 68

25.37% 34

55.97% 75

43.28% 58

26.87% 36

29.85% 40

22.39% 30

11.94% 16

3.73% 5

50.75% 68

Total Respondents: 134  

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Adults drinking alcohol

Young people drinking alcohol

Threatening or intimidating behaviour by young adults

Threatening or intimidating behaviour by young people

Noise disturbance by adults who have been drinking alcohol

Noise disturbance by young people who have been drinking alcohol

Alcohol litter in the street or park, estate

Begging

Aggressive begging

Drug litter or paraphernalia in the area

Adults taking drugs

Young people taking drugs

Noise disturbance by adults taking drugs

Noise disturbance by young people taking drugs

None of the above

Prefer not to say

If you have answered yes to Question 6 above, please list the area(s) where you have experienced the problem.



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

10 / 10

94.78% 127

0.75% 1

0.75% 1

1.49% 2

2.24% 3

0.00% 0

Q7 I am responding to the consultation as a:
Answered: 134 Skipped: 2

TOTAL 134

Resident

Person who
works in the...

A visitor to
the Borough

Local Business

Councillor

Representative
of a communi...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Resident

Person who works in the Borough

A visitor to the Borough

Local Business

Councillor

Representative of a community group or voluntary group



 
 

1 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
Screening Assessment Form  

 
Please refer to guidance notes when completing this form.  Once complete, please return to Corporate Policy and Community 
Safety Section or phone ext 5695 for more assistance.   
 

Name of policy___/strategy___/function___ being assessed. Please  what it is. Public Space Protection Order (Gosport 
Town Centre 

 
1. Is this policy, strategy or function new ___ or an existing   one? Please  what it is. 
A proposal to extend and vary a Public Space Protection Order for Gosport and the town centre restricting the consumption of alcohol 
or drugs linked to anti-social behaviour, and begging in places accessible to the public. 
 
1a. Briefly describe the reasons for developing or reviewing this? 
Eg: change in legislation or requirements, results of consultation, part of a regular review cycle, etc. 

Section 59 of the Anti-social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 (the “Act”) gives the council the power to make a public space 
protection order (“PSPO”).  A PSPO restricts activities, subject to any exemptions, in speified places open to the public in its area, 
which are linked to anti-social behaviour (ASB). It is a criminal offence for a person to, without reasonable excuse, to breach a PSPO 
restriction. A council officer authorised by the chief executive or police constable or police community support officer may enforce the 
PSPO (“Authorised Person”). 

The existing Town Centre PSPO 2017 and Alcohol PSPO 2017 will expire unless extended.  It is proposed that the two PSPO’s are 
merged to create one PSPO detailing the Restricted activities as defined by area. 

The council must be satisfied that the legal threshold for extending and varying the PSPO is met: i.e. the activities are having a 
detrimental effect on persons living in the locality, and the restrictions proposed are reasonable. The council must consult with the 
public, partners such as the police, and stakeholders and have regard to the responses before a PSPO is adopted. 

The council and police have had a significant amount of reports since the beginning from the public and businesses of persons 



 
 

2 

engaging in aggressive begging, and anti-social behaviour linked to alcohol consumption or drug use (ASB) in places accessible by 
the public in the High Street, Bus Station and Falklands Gardens (the “Town Centre”), which led to the original order being made.  As 
a consequence of the survey undertaken by the council as part of this consultation, it is apparent that there continues to be a 
problem with these activities and they are having a detrimental effect on the Borough. 

The council proposes to extend the current PSPO’s whilst at the same time merging the two into the Gosport and Town Centre 
PSPO 2020 applicable to places accessible by the public.                 

In 2019 the council had informally canvassed the view of the Police and other partners on the proposals, whom have indicate they 
are broadly supportive of the measures. 

 

The Council will on 07 October consider a report recommending the Council adopt the Gosport and Town Centre PSPO 2020.  This 
PSPO was subject to consultation as follows:  

The Council consulted the public on the proposals by publishing a notice on its website with a link to an online questionnaire for 
completion, or comments to be made in writing or by email. The consultation was also publicised on social media. 

The Police, Highway Authority, and stakeholders such as Two Saints, Avalon, and CAP A were sent notice and as such as The 
consultation period will be for 6 weeks. 

The Council will at its meeting on 07 October consider the Reponses to the consultation and decide whether to adopt the proposed 
Gosport and Town Centre PSPO 2020. If adopted the PSPO should be in force on 20 October 2020. 

 
2a. Describe the main aim or purpose of this item? Who will it benefit? Why is it needed? 
 
The council made a Alcohol PSPO 2017 which covers all places accessible by the public in the Borough except premises licensed for 
the sale or supply of alcohol.  This remains in force until 20th October 2020. This is enforced by the Police and has been 
proportionately applied during the time it has been in force, significantly reducing the problem that Gosport used to have.  The existing 



 
 

3 

Alcohol PSPO 2017 has been incorporated into the Gosport and Town Centre PSPO 2020. 

The council made a Town Centre PSPO 2017 which covers all places accessible by the public in the Restricted Area and this remains 
in force until 17th November 2017.  This is enforced by the Police and has been proportionately applied during the time it has been in 
force, significantly reducing the problem that Gosport used to have.  This PSPO covers antisocial behaviour linked to begging, alcohol 
or drug use, and urinating and defecating.   

There have been reports of persons openly using drugs in public places is Gosport Town Centre by injection. 
 
The possession and supply of controlled drugs is a criminal offence.  Criminal activity such as theft and violence is associated with 
these offences.  The behavior of person under the influence of drugs is unpredictable, especially if mixed with alcohol and they may 
engage in verbal abuse or offensive behavior  
 
Drug paraphernalia is often discarded on the ground in the Restricted Area, which is unsightly. Used needles deposited in public 
places are a health hazard as there is a risk of needle stick injury and transmission of blood borne pathogens such as hepatitis B 
virus (HBV), hepatitis C virus (HCV) and HIV associated with needle stick injuries. 
 
In recent years the use of Psychoactive Substances (PS) legal highs has increased. They are unpredictable in their effect, but are 
often mixed with hard drugs (heroin, cocaine, etc.) or alcohol. Intoxicated persons can become very aggressive, or very passive and 
vulnerable. Despite legislation to criminalise supply of PS’s in April this year, consumption remains legal. 
 
The persons who engage in the ASB are often themselves vulnerable through being street homeless or have alcohol or drug 
addictions or mental health issues.   The council’s focus is on working with the agencies to assist persons accessing temporary 
accommodation and addressing underlying issues which may be a barrier in them finding more settled accommodation. Sadly there 
are some who do not wish to engage in this process and continue to cause ASB. 
 
In these situations the council has effective enforcement measures by virtue of the Town Centre PSPO 2017 to curb the ASB so 
members of the public can freely access the public places without fear.  
The existing Town Centre PSPO 2017 is to be incorporated into the Gosport and Town Centre PSPO to continue this protection.  Other 
measures such as the criminal law, criminal behaviour orders and injunctions are aimed at individuals rather than groups but are of 



 
 

4 

limited effect as they do not deal with the ASB on the spot and therefore if the Gosport and Town Centre PSPO is not adopted, the 
Council will need to extend the current Town Centre PSPO 2017 for a further 3 years. 
 
There have been complaints of persons loitering in the High Street outside cash machines the ferry ticket machines asking customers 
withdrawing cash or buying tickets for money.  The existing Town Centre PSPO refers specifically to aggressive begging but this 
terminology in itself is open to interpretation.  For example a person my feel obliged to part with money they otherwise would not 
have by virtue of being asked or feeling intimidated into doing so without it appearing to be an aggressive act.  Some vulnerable 
individuals may be more susceptible to being approached.   
 
Members of the public have stated they are intimidated by this activity and feel especially vulnerable when withdrawing money or 
getting cash out to by a ferry ticket. 
 
There have also been complaints of rough sleepers blocking doorways and fire exits causing members of the public to have to step 
over them to access properties especially on the high street.  As such the Gosport and Town Centre PSPO 2020 addresses this 
issue and enables enforcement officers to deal with this safety issue.   
 
The council are of the view that the current PSPO’s do not go far enough in addressing the ASB arising from other perceived ASB in 
the Restricted Areas especially from rough sleepers blocking doorways and fire exits. 

 
3a. The Public Sector Equality Duty is part of the Equality Act 2010. The Duty requires the Council to have due regard to the 
following three aims:   
• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
• advance equal opportunities between people from different groups 
• foster good relations between people from different groups.   

 
Having due regard means considering how this policy, strategy or function has or will advance equal opportunities for each 
of the protected groups below.    
 
The Council is not targeting rough sleepers. Rough sleeping is not in itself anti-social. The Council has the power under the common 



 
 

5 

law to take action where it is necessary and proportionate to recover possession of land or premises in its ownership which is subject 
to an unauthorised encampment.    The Council has experienced rough sleepers blocking doorways and causing fire hazards as a 
consequence this is listed as a restricted activity in the restricted area.  A PSPO dealing with this issue allows the council to deal with 
the issue on the spot. 
 
It does not follow that the Council will always prosecute a person for contravening a restriction or prohibition of a PSPO.   The Council 
must have regard to its generic enforcement policy in deciding whether it’s in the public interest to prosecute. The age and 
circumstances of the offender and whether there are any mitigating or aggravating features are relevant considerations in assessing 
the public interest .The Council may decide to offer a person an Acceptable Behaviour Contract with positive conditions to engage in 
support.   Alternatively it may issue a fixed penalty notice for the offence, which if paid in full within the prescribed period has the effect 
of discharges that person’s liability to criminal proceedings. It may also decide to issue a person with a formal caution for the offence. 
 
 
 

 
 
3b Identify how this item demonstrates due regard to the three aims above for each of the protected groups below.  
 (For marriage and civil partnership, legislation requires  you only need to demonstrate how you would eliminate unlawful discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation) 
Protected 
characteristic 

This item demonstrates due regard 
by: 
Describe how it furthers equal 
opportunities. You can cite examples of  
any disadvantage this item removes or 
minimises,  how it meets the specific 
needs of any groups, how it encourages 
participation, promotes understanding or 
integration between groups     

Describe any negative 
impact or potentially 
negative impact of this item 
for any group.  For any 
negative impact identified, 
describe actions already taken 
to address it. Any planned 
actions must be identified in 
section 4.  
 

  List data sources/ evidence 
used to assess impact and 
whether this item furthers 
the aims of the Equality 
Duty. Insert links to data used 
where possible 

 

Age Current age restrictions apply against Control of underage drinking Equality monitoring questions 



 
 

6 

individuals obtaining a Pedlars 
Certificate and/or purchasing alcohol 

maybe improved by this PSPO 
and it may therefore have a 
disproportionate affect upon 
younger persons 

will be included in the PSPO 
consultation survey to help us 
understand the potential 
impact on different protected 
characteristics, including age. 
disability, those who have 
transitioned or are transitioning 
from one gender to another, 
birth,  their marriage or civil 
partnership status, pregnancy 
or maternity status, their race,  
their religion or belief,  their 
sex or sexual orientation. 
Results to these questions will 
be analysed for any 
disproportionate impacts on 
any protected characteristics. 
Other consultation mechanism 
will be used to encourage 
responses from all sections of 
the community.   

Disability A person has a disability if s/he has a 
physical or mental impairment which has 
a substantial and long-term adverse 
effect on that person's ability to carry out 
normal day-to-day activities.  

The PSPO will not have any 
disproportionate impacts on 
this group; however, there may 
be a positive impact where 
obstruction of the highway and 
shop entrances is prevented.  

Gender  All genders are protected as having the 
same right as each other, including 
those who are transitioning from one 
gender to another. 
 

The PSPO will not have any 
disproportionate impacts on 
anyone who has transitioned 
or is in the process of 
transitioning from one gender 
to another. 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 

Marriage or civil partnership status will 
not affect rights or protections under the 
PSPO 

The PSPO will not have any 
disproportionate impacts on 
anyone due to their marriage 
or civil partnership status. 

Pregnancy  
and Maternity 

Pregnancy is the condition of expecting 
a baby. Maternity refers to the period 
after the birth, and is linked to maternity 
leave in the employment context. In the 
non-work context, protection against 
maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks 
after giving birth, and this includes 
discrimination while breastfeeding. 

The PSPO will not have any 
disproportionate impacts on 
any pregnant woman or one 
who has given birth. 

Race (ethnic or  This refers to a group of people defined The PSPO will not have any 



 
 

7 

national origin, 
colour, nationality) 

by their race, colour, and nationality 
(including citizenship) ethnic or national 
origins. 

disproportionate impacts on 
any person or group due to 
their race. 

Religion or Belief  
(and lack of belief) 

Religion has the meaning usually given 
to it but belief includes religious and 
philosophical beliefs including lack of 
belief (e.g. Atheism). Generally, a belief 
can affect life choices or lifestyles. 

The PSPO will not have any 
disproportionate impacts on 
any person or group due to 
their religion or beliefs. 

Sexual Orientation Whether a person's sexual attraction is 
towards their own sex, the opposite sex 
or to both sexes, they have the same 
rights and protections. 

The PSPO will not have any 
disproportionate impact on any 
person or group due to their 
sexual orientation 

    
3c. Are there any other groups in addition to those above which could be impacted (e.g. socially or financially excluded) 
by this item? 
 
Rough sleepers 
Persons with drug and or alcohol addictions 
 
Please   ___yes   ___ no 
    
 

 

Group This item demonstrates due regard by: 
 

Describe any negative impact or potentially  
negative impact of this item for any group 
 

 
List data sources/ 
evidence used to assess 



 
 

8 

impact and whether this 
item furthers the aims of 
the Equality Duty 

Rough 
Sleepers 

Rough sleeping is not in itself anti-social. 
 

Rough sleepers who do engage in ASB 
would be impacted, but local support 
services are offered and enforcement is a 
last resort when a person does not engage. 

There is a housing 
outreach service which is 
proactive in engaging 
with rough-sleepers and 
other local organisations 
and services which offer 
assistance 

People with 
drug and or 
alcohol 
addictions 

The council and other agencies will offer 
support to those experiencing addiction issues.  

Perpetrators of ASB would be impacted by 
the PSPO. Enforcement is last a resort 
where the person does not engage with 
support offered.  

The Partnership Action 
Group can discuss 
various options to 
address ASB issues and 
offer coordinated support 
to perpetrators impacted  
by the PSPO.  

    

4. Please Identify any further actions you will take resulting from this assessment.  

Action Officer Responsible Completion date 
Coordinate 6 week public consultation on 
proposed PSPO using a variety of 
consultation mechanism, analyse 
responses, including voluntary equality 
monitoring questions, to determine its 
potential impacts on protected 

Azmi Quraishe 
Carly Perry 
Linda Coote 

1 October 2020 



 
 

9 

5. Do you have any additional comments? If so, please add. 
 
NONE 
6. Date of screening 10.08.20 Officer(s) completing assessment Azmi 

Quraishe 
Section Date Approved 

7. Name of Section Head Paul Grant  Date review completed.   
8. Date submitted to E & D Lead 10-08-
20 

Date review completed  12.08.20 

EDSG Recommendation: 
 
 This assessment form is incomplete and requires additional information for its review by the E & D lead officer: Please consult as 
described and include survey findings and analysis of equality monitoring questions to better assess for any potential discrimination 
caused by the proposed PSPO and complete a full EIA.  

 
This assessment has been successfully reviewed  with the following outcome: 
 
      No major change – The assessment of this policy/strategy/function shows no potential for discrimination and the aims of 
         the Equality Duty has been met. 
 
 Adjust the policy/strategy or function – This item will meet the aims of the Equality Duty if actions identified in Sections 3 and 4 to 

characteristics as well as any other groups 
of people. 
Complete the FULL EIA and include in it the 
consultation findings and how any identified 
potential discrimination will be mitigated. 
Attach the screening and full EIA  to the 
Board report for a decision on the PSPO 

Azmi Quraishe October 2020 

   
   



 
 

10 

remove barriers or to better advance equality are implemented. 
 
       Consult on the policy/strategy/function – There is some potential for adverse impact or missed opportunities to promote equality.  
          Ensure effective consultation and equality monitoring is in place to assess the actual impact on different groups before any decision    
          to implement.   
 
      Stop and Rethink – Adverse equality impacts have been identified/ may not be justified and have not been sufficiently mitigated.   
         Unlawful discrimination could be taking place. Do not adopt or continue until a full equality investigation has been completed. 
           
 

 
 



 1 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
Full Assessment Form  

 
 

Part 1 – Main Details                                                                                                                                                               Date Submitted 
28/09/2020 

Full Title of item being assessed                                  
 

Public Space 
Protection Order 
(Gosport and Town 
Centre) 

Name and Contact Details: Azmi Quraishe Senior Solicitor 
 
Part 2 – Assessment 
Consider the evidence and information sources provided in the Question 3 of the Screening Form on the possible adverse impact on any of the 
protected groups and answer the following questions. Please list additional research or evidence found and the key findings which support this 
assessment of the equality impact on any protected characteristic. 
New Research/ Evidence and Source Key Findings 
 Other authorities experience of PSPOs and its enforcement   There are alternatives to a fixed penalty notice 

and prosecution for the offence.  Acceptable 
behaviour contracts can be issued when a  
person agrees to seek help with underlying 
issues driving the anti-social behaviour such as 
housing, addiction and mental health   

Support  available to persons  engaging in ASB who have underlying   
Issues such as health, addiction and housing 

Even if the council were to adopt a PSPO the 
focus must remain on support and intervention 
and enforcement targeted against the minority 
who unreasonably fail to engage with the support 
offered. 

2b. Direct Consultation: 



 2 

Have you consulted directly with any group(s) representing any of the protected characteristics in the assessment of this item?  If yes, please 
complete the information below. If no, please explain why no direct consultation has taken place. A public survey on views about the PSPO was 
open for a six week period and 136 people took part. No paper responses were received.   Voluntary equality monitoring questions 
covering the following protected characteristics were included with the survey. Not all respondents answered all monitoring questions. 

Target 
Group 

Consulted Group 
 

Date and 
Consultation 

Method 

Key Findings and 
Any Actions 

Resulting 
(If no consultation 
undertaken, explain 
why not  

Age 16-24 0.79% 1 
25-44 24.41% 31 
45-64 47.24% 60 
65+ 24.41% 31 
Prefer not to 
say 3.15% 4 

 
Answered 127 

 
Skipped 9 

 

Online  
anonymous 
Survey 
August 2020 
– 01st 
October – 
respondents 
asked to 
complete 
equal opp 
monitoring 
form –  

All ages of vulnerability 
will be referred into 
safeguarding 
mechanisms using 
each agency’s 
safeguarding 
processes. The 
monthly Partnership 
Action Group will 
discuss and provide 
support and single 
points of contact to 
anyone deemed to be 
vulnerable.  

Disability No disibilities 77.17% 98 
Blindness or particl loss of sight 0.00% 0 
Learning disibility 0.79% 1 
Physical disibility 3.94% 5 
Mental health illness 3.15% 4 

As above 
 

Mental health 
considerations and any 
other disability 
considerations will be 
taken into account by 



 3 

Long term illness or condition 7.87% 10 
Developmental disorder 0.00% 0 
Deafness or partial hearing loss 4.72% 6 
Other (please specify) 2.36% 3 

 
Answered 127 

 
Skipped 9 

 

enforcement officers 
when assessing 
individual cases. 

Gender  Male 40.94% 52 
Female 55.91% 71 
Intersex 0.00% 0 
Prefer not to say 2.36% 3 
Please add your 
comments 0.79% 1 

 
Answered 127 

 
Skipped 9 

 

As above 
 

No impact identified. 
 
 

Marriage 
and Civil 
Partnership 

Not captured on the survey As above No impact identified 

Pregnancy 
and 
Maternity 

Yes 0.00% 0 
No 98.41% 124 
Prefer not to 
say 1.59% 2 

 
Answered 126 

 
Skipped 10 

 

As above Pregnant women will 
be referred into 
safeguarding 
mechanisms to 
Hampshire County 
Council to have an 
initial assessment and 
then offer of support. 

Race 
 

White - English, Welsh, N. Irish, Scottish, British 95.12% 117 
White - Irish 0.81% 1 
Gypsy or Irish Traveller 0.81% 1 

As above 
 

No impact identified 



 4 

White - other (Please state in the comments box below) 1.63% 2 
Black -African 0.00% 0 
Black -Carribean 0.00% 0 
Any other Black/African/Carribean/Black British ethnic background (please 
state in comments below) 0.00% 0 
Indian 0.00% 0 
Pakistani 0.00% 0 
Bangladeshi 0.00% 0 
Chinese 0.81% 1 
Any other Asian/British ethnic back ground (Please state in comments 
below) 0.00% 0 
Any other ethnic group ( Please state in comments below) 0.81% 1 
Please add your comments 

 
5 

 
Answered 123 

 
Skipped 13 

 

Religion 
and Belief 

No religion 46.03% 58 
Buddhist 0.00% 0 
Christian (including Church of England, Catholic, Protestant and all other 
Christian denominations) 52.38% 66 
Hindu 0.00% 0 
Jewish 0.00% 0 
Muslim 0.00% 0 
Sikh 0.00% 0 
Any other religion (please write in the comment box below) 1.59% 2 
Other (please specify) 

 
3 

 
Answered 126 

 
Skipped 10 

 

As above 
 

No impact identified 

Sexual Hetrosexual 88.89% 112 As above  No impact identified 



 5 

Orientation Gay or lesbian 2.38% 3 
Bisexual 0.79% 1 
Other 0.79% 1 
Prefer not to 
say 7.14% 9 

 
Answered 126 

 
Skipped 10 

 

2.c. Planned Consultation: 
Please describe any planned consultation that you will undertake to assess the impact of this policy, strategy or function on any protected 
characteristic. A consultation has been undertaken to obtain the views of partners, stakeholders and the public  
Target Group When will it take place? Purpose of 

Consultation 
Police, Hampshire Highways It has taken place  To seek their views 

on proposals and 
review whether to 
recommend the 
draft PSPO for 
approval along with 
link to survey. 

Housing associations As above  As above 
Taxi operators As above As above 
Businesses and service provider As above As above  
Welfare organisations As above As above 
People who live, in, work in or visit Gosport  As above As above 
2d. Have you identified any other possible “barrier” or adverse impact affecting any group which cannot be avoided? Please  Yes____ No 
If yes, please provide details of how your item will deal with this. 
 
Part 3 – Monitoring 
Consider the main aims of the policy, strategy or function being assessed. Are there any intended outcomes of this item in relation to the protected 



 6 

characteristics and any other group that could be adversely affected?  Yes 
 
3a. What monitoring arrangements have you put in place to regularly monitor the impact of this policy, strategy or function on different 
characteristics? (Monitoring can include satisfaction surveys, ways to monitor service take up or use by certain groups, formal and informal 
complaints, etc).  Please refer to the Equality Monitoring Framework found on the Equality & Diversity Infonet pages for guidance on the Council’s 
corporate standard for using equality monitoring questions.    
 
Target Group Monitoring Method By 

Whom 
Frequency 

Persons with underlying issues such as housing, poverty, s 
and addictions 

 There are existing meetings of the partnership action 
group and rough sleepers working group  

Council, 
police 
and 
other 
agencies 
that 
attend  

Monthly  

Review of PSPO  Fresh consultation exercise Council, 
police 
and 
other 
agencies  

Every 3 
years 

Part 4 – Communicating to Customers 
4a. How have you communicated the development of or proposed changes to this policy, strategy or function to stakeholders? (e.g. Coastline, Staff 
Information Bulletin, leaflets, website, etc.) Please provide details. 

Name of  Group Communication Method When 
Public and stakeholders Website notice, social media August / 

September 2020 
Part 5 – Training 
5a. Have you identified any training needs for staff in order to successfully implement this item? 



 7 

 Please  Yes__  No____  
5b. If yes, please list any training required, how and when you plan to achieve this. If training has already occurred, please list. Training will be 
provided to Enforcement Officers before the PSPO comes into force. 
 
Staff Group  Training Needed By When 
Enforcement officers  Familiarisation of the PSPO Before PSPO 

comes into force. 
   
   
Part 6 – Additional Comments 
6a. Do you have any additional comments to make in support of this assessment? If yes, please explain. 
No 

7. Date  
 28-09-2020 

Lead Officer(s) responsible for this assessment 
Azmi Quraishe 

Contact 
Number(s): 

8. Name of Section Head: Date Approved by 
Section Head: 

Date submitted to Equality & Diversity Lead  28.09.2020 Review completed by 
E & D lead: 29.09.20 

 
EDSG Recommendation(s): 
   Re-Submit --This full assessment form is incomplete and requires further information as listed in order to assess 

this item. 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

    
Adopt/Implement--This full assessment has been successfully completed and been assessed. The policy, strategy 

or function can proceed toward formal adoption, if required, or to implementation.  
 
   Do not proceed --This full assessment has identified adverse impacts on ________________________ which    



 8 

      Have not been sufficiently minimised, and / or unlawful discrimination has or can be taking place. This policy,   
      Strategy or function should not be adopted or continue until further actions are taken.      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

1 / 23

Q1 Which ward do you live, work or vist? (to view a ward map click here)
Answered: 136 Skipped: 0

Alverstoke

Anglesey

Bridgemary
North

Bridgemary
South

Brockhurst

Christchurch

Elson

Forton

Grange

Hardway

Leesland

Lee East

Lee West

Peel Common

Privett

Rowner and
Holbrook

Town

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

2 / 23

10.29% 14

4.41% 6

5.15% 7

1.47% 2

5.15% 7

10.29% 14

7.35% 10

8.09% 11

1.47% 2

6.62% 9

5.88% 8

2.94% 4

2.94% 4

0.74% 1

4.41% 6

5.15% 7

17.65% 24

TOTAL 136

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Alverstoke

Anglesey

Bridgemary North

Bridgemary South

Brockhurst

Christchurch

Elson

Forton

Grange

Hardway

Leesland

Lee East

Lee West

Peel Common

Privett

Rowner and Holbrook

Town



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

3 / 23

85.29% 116

7.35% 10

7.35% 10

Q2 Do you believe there is a problem with alcohol/drug/begging related
anti-social behaviour in the Borough?

Answered: 136 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 136

Yes

No

Don't know

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

Don't know



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

4 / 23

85.19% 115

91.85% 124

74.81% 101

5.19% 7

0.74% 1

Q3 Do you think we should have a PSPO to deal with: street drinking/drug
use/begging? Tick all that apply

Answered: 135 Skipped: 1

Total Respondents: 135  

Street drinking

Drug use

Begging

No

Don't know

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Street drinking

Drug use

Begging

No

Don't know



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

5 / 23

88.15% 119

6.67% 9

2.96% 4

4.44% 6

Q4 Do you agree that the existing PSPO where you live, work or visit
should be extended for a further 3 years? The exisiting PSPO for the Town
Centre can be viewed here. The existing PSPO for alcohol can be viewed

here. 
Answered: 135 Skipped: 1

Total Respondents: 135  

Yes, remain in
place for a...

Be varied as
per the...

Be discharged
(ended as no...

No opinion

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes, remain in place for a further 3 years

Be varied as per the proposed PSPO (please explain below if you want it to varied further)

Be discharged (ended as no longer needed)

No opinion



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

6 / 23

65.67% 88

0.00% 0

15.67% 21

14.93% 20

3.73% 5

Q5 Do you agree that the Restricted Area 2 of the proposed PSPO shown
on the map should be extended ? The proposed PSPO can be found here

Answered: 134 Skipped: 2

TOTAL 134

Yes, the
boundary sho...

Be varied
further (ple...

Not be extended

No opinion

Please add
your comments

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes, the boundary should be extended

Be varied further (please explain below)

Not be extended

No opinion

Please add your comments



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

7 / 23

Q6 Have you personally experienced any of the following anti-social
behaviour incidents related to the consumption of alcohol in the Town

Centre and or the Borough of Gosport in the last 12 months? Please tick
all that apply

Answered: 134 Skipped: 2



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

8 / 23

Adults
drinking...

Young people
drinking...

Threatening or
intimidating...

Threatening or
intimidating...

Noise
disturbance ...

Noise
disturbance ...

Alcohol litter
in the stree...

Begging

Aggressive
begging

Drug litter or
paraphernali...

Adults taking
drugs

Young people
taking drugs

Noise
disturbance ...

Noise
disturbance ...

None of the
above

Prefer not to
say

If you have
answered yes...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

9 / 23

50.75% 68

42.54% 57

37.31% 50

35.07% 47

48.51% 65

44.78% 60

69.40% 93

50.75% 68

25.37% 34

55.97% 75

43.28% 58

26.87% 36

29.85% 40

22.39% 30

11.94% 16

3.73% 5

50.75% 68

Total Respondents: 134  

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Adults drinking alcohol

Young people drinking alcohol

Threatening or intimidating behaviour by young adults

Threatening or intimidating behaviour by young people

Noise disturbance by adults who have been drinking alcohol

Noise disturbance by young people who have been drinking alcohol

Alcohol litter in the street or park, estate

Begging

Aggressive begging

Drug litter or paraphernalia in the area

Adults taking drugs

Young people taking drugs

Noise disturbance by adults taking drugs

Noise disturbance by young people taking drugs

None of the above

Prefer not to say

If you have answered yes to Question 6 above, please list the area(s) where you have experienced the problem.



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

10 / 23

94.78% 127

0.75% 1

0.75% 1

1.49% 2

2.24% 3

0.00% 0

Q7 I am responding to the consultation as a:
Answered: 134 Skipped: 2

TOTAL 134

Resident

Person who
works in the...

A visitor to
the Borough

Local Business

Councillor

Representative
of a communi...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Resident

Person who works in the Borough

A visitor to the Borough

Local Business

Councillor

Representative of a community group or voluntary group



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

11 / 23

0.79% 1

24.41% 31

47.24% 60

24.41% 31

3.15% 4

Q8 What is your age?
Answered: 127 Skipped: 9

TOTAL 127

16-24

25-44

45-64

65+

Prefer not to
say

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

16-24

25-44

45-64

65+

Prefer not to say



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

12 / 23

77.17% 98

0.00% 0

0.79% 1

3.94% 5

3.15% 4

7.87% 10

0.00% 0

4.72% 6

2.36% 3

Q9 DisabilityIn order to be able to identify and respond to specific needs, it
is important that we gain an understanding of disabilities and long-term

conditions.Do you have any of the following conditions which have lasted
or expected to last for at least 12 months?

Answered: 127 Skipped: 9

TOTAL 127

No disibilities

Blindness or
particl loss...

Learning
disibility

Physical
disibility

Mental health
illness

Long term
illness or...

Developmental
disorder

Deafness or
partial hear...

Other (please
specify)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

No disibilities

Blindness or particl loss of sight

Learning disibility

Physical disibility

Mental health illness

Long term illness or condition

Developmental disorder

Deafness or partial hearing loss

Other (please specify)



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

13 / 23

Q10 What is your country of birth?
Answered: 125 Skipped: 11



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

14 / 23

Q11 What is your ethnicity?
Answered: 123 Skipped: 13

White -
English, Wel...

White - Irish

Gypsy or Irish
Traveller

White - other
(Please stat...

Black -African

Black
-Carribean

Any other
Black/Africa...

 Indian

Pakistani

Bangladeshi

Chinese

Any other
Asian/Britis...

Any other
ethnic group...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

15 / 23

95.12% 117

0.81% 1

0.81% 1

1.63% 2

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.81% 1

0.00% 0

0.81% 1

TOTAL 123

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

White - English, Welsh, N. Irish, Scottish, British

White - Irish

Gypsy or Irish Traveller

White - other (Please state in the comments box below)

Black -African

Black -Carribean 

Any other Black/African/Carribean/Black British ethnic background (please state in comments below)

 Indian

Pakistani

Bangladeshi

Chinese

Any other Asian/British ethnic back ground (Please state in comments below)

Any other ethnic group ( Please state in comments below)



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

16 / 23

40.94% 52

55.91% 71

0.00% 0

2.36% 3

0.79% 1

Q12 At birth were you described as: (Please tick as appropriate)
Answered: 127 Skipped: 9

TOTAL 127

Male

Female

Intersex

Prefer not to
say

Please add
your comments

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Male

Female

Intersex

Prefer not to say

Please add your comments



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

17 / 23

46.03% 58

0.00% 0

52.38% 66

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

1.59% 2

Q13 What is your religion?
Answered: 126 Skipped: 10

TOTAL 126

No religion

Buddhist

Christian
(including...

Hindu

Jewish

Muslim

Sikh

Any other
religion...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

No religion

Buddhist

Christian (including Church of England, Catholic, Protestant and all other Christian denominations)

Hindu

Jewish

Muslim

Sikh

Any other religion (please write in the comment box below)



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

18 / 23

88.89% 112

2.38% 3

0.79% 1

0.79% 1

7.14% 9

Q14 Which of the following best describes how you think of yourself?
Answered: 126 Skipped: 10

TOTAL 126

Hetrosexual

Gay or lesbian

Bisexual

Other

Prefer not to
say

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Hetrosexual

Gay or lesbian

Bisexual

Other

Prefer not to say



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

19 / 23

0.00% 0

98.41% 124

1.59% 2

Q15 Are you pregnant?
Answered: 126 Skipped: 10

TOTAL 126

Yes

No

Prefer not to
say

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

Prefer not to say



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

20 / 23

2.38% 3

94.44% 119

3.17% 4

Q16 Have you had a baby in the last 12 months?
Answered: 126 Skipped: 10

TOTAL 126

Yes

No

Prefer not to
say

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

Prefer not to say



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

21 / 23

20.16% 25

61.29% 76

4.03% 5

12.90% 16

1.61% 2

Q17 What is your legal marital or civil partnership status?
Answered: 124 Skipped: 12

TOTAL 124

Never married
and never...

Married or in
a civil...

Widowed or
surviving...

Divorced or
legally...

Separated but
still legall...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Never married and never registered in a civil partnership

Married or in a civil partnership

Widowed or surviving partner from a civil partnership

Divorced or legally dissolved from a civil partnership

Separated but still legally married or in a civil partnership



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

22 / 23

2.22% 1

2.22% 1

93.33% 42

2.22% 1

Q18 Are you a refugee or an asylum seeker? Please tick one box
Answered: 45 Skipped: 91

TOTAL 45

Refugee

Asylum seeker

Neither

Prefer not to
say

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Refugee

Asylum seeker

Neither

Prefer not to say



Gosport and Town Centre Public Space Protection Order

23 / 23

Q19 What is your main language?
Answered: 102 Skipped: 34



Board/Committee: FULL COUNCIL 
Date of meeting: 7 OCTOBER 2020
Title: PETITION SCHEMES 
Author: BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
Status: FOR DECISION

Purpose

This report sets out proposed amendments to the Council’s petition scheme. 

Recommendation

That Council approves the amendments to the Council’s petition scheme 
(attached in Appendix A) 

1.0 Background

1.1 The Council has a number of mechanisms by which members of the public 
can present their views to the Council and its Boards and Committees.
 

1.2 The Council’s current petition scheme needs to be updated to reflect 
amendments to the Council’s Board structure. 

1.3 This report requests that the Council approve proposed amendments to the 
Council’s petition scheme. 

2.0 Report

2.1 The Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 
includes provisions relating to the right of the public to present petitions to 
the Council and for the Council then to be under a duty to take action on 
them.  The provisions relating to petitions came into effect on 15 June 2010.  

2.2 The Council adopted its current petition scheme on 14 July 2010 having 
regard to and based on the model scheme in the guidance issued by the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (now the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government). 

2.3 This scheme needs to be updated to reflect the change in the Board 
structure of the Council. 

2.4 Previously, a petition containing at least 750 signatures could request that a 
Senior Officer give evidence to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. To 
reflect the amended Board structure, it is proposed that this be amended so 

Agenda Item 10



that Senior Officers can be requested to give evidence to the relevant 
service Board. 

2.5 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee was also responsible for reviewing 
the Council’s response to a petition, if a request to do so was received from 
a petition organiser if they felt the response was inadequate. It is proposed 
that this become the responsibility of the Policy and Organisation Board. 

2.6 In reviewing the petition scheme, some additional, minor, amendments have 
also been identified, updating the out of date external contacts and 
references. These amendments have also been included in the proposed 
scheme. 

3.0 Conclusion

3.1 The Council’s Petition Scheme as set out in Appendix A satisfies the 
statutory requirements and also has regard to the guidance issued by the 
Department of Communities and Local Government.  

Financial Services comments: None 
Legal Services comments: Contained within the report 
Equality and Diversity: None
Climate Change implications: None 
Crime and Disorder: None
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

NA 

Corporate Plan: Improved public engagement
Risk Assessment: The Council has to adopt a Petition Scheme in order 

to comply with the statutory requirements.
Background Papers: Full Council report ‘Petition Schemes’ 14 July 

2010
Appendices: Appendix A – Gosport Borough Council Petition 

Scheme. 
Report Author/Lead Officer: Lisa Young



 

Appendix A

GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL
PETITION SCHEME

Petitions

The Council welcomes petitions and recognises that petitions are one way in 
which people can let us know their concerns.  All petitions sent or presented to 
the Council will receive an acknowledgement from the Council within 10 working 
days of receipt.  This acknowledgement will set out what we plan to do with the 
petition.  We will treat something as a petition if it is identified as being a petition, 
or if it seems to us that it is intended to be a petition.

Paper petitions can be sent to:

Democratic Services
Town Hall
High Street
Gosport  
PO12 1EB

Or be created, signed and submitted online by following this link

https://democracy.gosport.gov.uk/mgEPetitionListDisplay.aspx?bcr=1

Petitions can also be presented to a meeting of the Council.  These meetings 
take place six times a year dates and times can be found here:

https://democracy.gosport.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=133

If you would like to present your petition to the Council, or would like your 
Councillor or someone else to present it on your behalf, please contact Lisa 
Young on 023 9254 5340 at least 10 working days before the meeting and she 
will talk you through the process.  If your petition has received 1500 signatures or 
more it will also be scheduled for a Council debate:

www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/democratic-services/agendas-minutes/council

and if this is the case we will let you know whether this will happen at the same 
meeting or a later meeting of the Council.

https://democracy.gosport.gov.uk/mgEPetitionListDisplay.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.gosport.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=133
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/democratic-services/agendas-minutes/council


 

What are the guidelines for submitting a petition?

Petitions submitted to the Council must include:

 A clear and concise statement covering the subject of the petition.  It 
should state what action the petitioners wish the Council to take.

 The name and address and signature of any person supporting the 
petition.

Petitions should be accompanied by contact details, including an address, for the 
petition organiser.  This is the person we will contact to explain how we will 
respond to the petition.  The contact details of the petition organiser will not be 
placed on the website.  If the petition does not identify a petition organiser, we 
will contact signatories to the petition to agree who should act as the petition 
organiser.

Petitions which are considered to be vexatious, abusive or otherwise 
inappropriate will not be accepted.  In the period immediately before an election 
or referendum we may need to deal with your petition differently – if this is the 
case we will explain the reasons and discuss the revised timescale which will 
apply.  If a petition does not follow the guidelines set out above, the Council may 
decide not to do anything further with it.  In that case, we will write to you to 
explain the reasons.

What will the Council do when it receives my petition?

An acknowledgement will be sent to the petition organiser within 10 working days 
of receiving the petition.  It will let them know what we plan to do with the petition 
and when they can expect to hear from us again.  It will also be published on our 
website.

If we can do what your petition asks for, the acknowledgement may confirm that 
we have taken the action requested and the petition will be closed.  If the petition 
has enough signatures to trigger a Council debate, or a senior officer giving 
evidence, then the acknowledgement will confirm this and tell you when and 
where the meeting will take place.  If the petition needs more investigation, we 
will tell you the steps we plan to take.

If the petition applies to a planning or licensing application, is a statutory petition 
(for example requesting a referendum on having an elected mayor), or on a 
matter where there is already an existing right of appeal, such as council tax 
banding and non-domestic rates, other procedures apply.  Further information on 
all these procedures and how you can express your views is available here 



 

Planning: - www.gosport.gov.uk/planning
Council Tax: - www.gosport.gov.uk/counciltax
Business Rates: - https://www.gosport.gov.uk/businessratesLicensing - 
www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/environment/environmental-health/commercial-
team/licensing/apply-for-licences
Statutory Consultations - https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/2702/Part-2-
Chapters-of-the-
Constitution/pdf/Part_2_Chapters_of_the_Constitution.pdf?m=637312057761870
000

We will not take action on any petition which we consider to be vexatious, 
abusive or otherwise inappropriate and will explain the reasons for this in our 
acknowledgement of the petition.

To ensure that people know what we are doing in response to the petitions we 
receive the details of all the petitions submitted to us will be published on our 
website, except in cases where this would be inappropriate.  Whenever possible 
we will also publish all correspondence relating to the petition (all personal details 
will be removed).  When you sign an e-petition you can elect to receive this 
information by email.  {We will not send you anything which is not relevant to the 
e-petition you have signed, unless you choose to receive other emails from us.} 

How will Gosport Council respond to petitions?

Our response to a petition will depend on what a petition asks for and how many 
people have signed it, but may include one or more of the following:

 taking the action requested in the petition

 considering the petition at a Council meeting

 holding an inquiry into the matter

 undertaking research into the matter

 holding a public meeting

 holding a consultation

 holding a meeting with petitioners

 calling a referendum

 writing to the petition organiser setting out our views about the request in 
the petition

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/planning
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/planning
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/counciltax
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/counciltax
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/environment/environmental-health/commercial-team/licensing/apply-for-licences
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/environment/environmental-health/commercial-team/licensing/apply-for-licences
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/environment/environmental-health/commercial-team/licensing/apply-for-licences


 

 

If your petition is about something over which the Council has no direct control 
(for example the local railway or hospital) we will consider making 
representations on behalf of the community to the relevant body.  The Council 
works with a large number of local partners and where possible will work with 
these partners to respond to your petition.  If we are not able to do this for any 
reason (for example if what the petition calls for conflicts with Council policy), 
then we will set out the reasons for this to you.  You can find more information 
the services for which the Council is responsible here

www.gosport.gov.uk/az/

If your petition is about something that a different Council is responsible for we 
will give consideration to what the best method is for responding to it.  This might 
consist of simply forwarding the petition to the other Council, but could involve 
other steps.  In any event we will always notify you of the action we have taken.

Full Council Debates

If a petition contains more than 1,500 signatures it will be debated by the full 
Council unless it is a petition asking for a senior Council officer to give evidence 
at a public meeting.  This means that the issue raised in the petition will be 
discussed at a meeting which all Councillors can attend.  The Council will 
endeavour to consider the petition at its next meeting, although on some 
occasions this may not be possible and consideration will then take place at the 
following meeting.  The petition organiser will be given five minutes to present the 
petition at the meeting and the petition will then be discussed by Councillors..  
The Council will decide how to respond to the petition at this meeting.  They may 
decide to take the action the petition requests, not to take the action requested 
for reasons put forward in the debate, or to commission further investigation into 
the matter, for example by a relevant Board The petition organiser will receive 
written confirmation of this decision.  This confirmation will also be published on 
our website.

Officer evidence

Your petition may ask for a senior Council officer to give evidence at a public 
meeting about something for which the officer is responsible as part of their job.  
For example, your petition may ask a senior Council officer to explain progress 
on an issue, or to explain the advice given to elected Members to enable them to 
make a particular decision.

If your petition contains at least 750 signatures, the appropriate senior officer as 
determined by the Chief Executive will give evidence at a public meeting of the 
Council’s relevant Service Board .  

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/az/
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/az/


 

The Chief Executive may decide that it would be more appropriate for another 
officer to give evidence instead of any officer named in the petition – for instance 
if the named officer has changed jobs.  The Board may also decide to call the 
relevant Councillor to attend the meeting.  Board Members will ask the questions 
at this meeting, but you will be able to suggest questions to the Chair of the 
Board by contacting Lisa Young – 02392 545340 up to three working days before 
the meeting.

E-petitions

The Council welcomes e-petitions which are created and submitted through our 
websitehttps://democracy.gosport.gov.uk/mgEPetitionListDisplay.aspx?bcr=1
 E-petitions must follow the same guidelines as paper petitions The petition 
organiser will need to provide us with their name, postal address and email 
address.  You will also need to decide how long you would like your petition to be 
open for signatures.  Most petitions run for six months, but you can choose a 
shorter or longer timeframe, up to a maximum of 12 months.

When you create an e-petition, it may take five working days before it is 
published online.  This is because we have to check that the content of your 
petition is suitable before it is made available for signature.

If we feel we cannot publish your petition for some reason, we will contact you 
within this time to explain.  You will be able to change and resubmit your petition 
if you wish. If you do not do with within 10 working days, a summary of the 
petition and the reason why it has not been accepted will be published under the 
‘rejected petitions’ section of the website.

When an e-petition has closed for signature, it will automatically be submitted to 
[insert details].  In the same way as a paper petition, you will receive an 
acknowledgement within 10 working days.  If you would like to present your e-
petition to a meeting of the Council, please contact [Lisa Young] within 10 
working days of receipt of the acknowledgement.

A petition acknowledgement and response will be emailed to everyone who has 
signed the e-petition and elected to receive this information.  The 
acknowledgement and response will also be published on this website.

How do I ‘sign’ an e-petition 
You can see all the e-petitions currently available for signature here [insert link].

https://democracy.gosport.gov.uk/mgEPetitionListDisplay.aspx?bcr=1


 

When you sign an e-petition you will be asked to provide your name, your 
postcode and a valid email address.  When you have submitted this information 
you will be sent an email to the email address you have provided.  This email will 
include a link which you must click on in order to confirm the email address is 
valid.  Once this step is complete your ‘signature’ will be added to the petition.  
People visiting the e-petition will be able to see your name in the list of those who 
have signed it but your contact details will not be visible.

What can I do if I feel my petition has not been dealt with 
properly?

If you feel that we have not dealt with your petition properly, the petition organiser 
has the right to request that the Council’s Policy and Organisation Board review 
the steps that the Council has taken in response to your petition.  It is helpful to 
everyone, and can improve the prospects for a review if the petition organiser 
gives a short explanation of the reasons why the Council’s response is not 
considered to be adequate.  A form to initiate this review may be found here

The Board will endeavour to consider your request at its next meeting, although 
on some occasions this may not be possible and consideration will take place at 
the following meeting.  Should the Board determine we have not dealt with your 
petition adequately, it may use any of its powers to deal with the matter.  These 
powers include instigating an investigation, making recommendations to the 
Council Executive and arranging for the matter to be considered at a meeting of 
the full Council.

Once the appeal has been considered the petition organiser will be informed of 
the results within 5 working days.  The results of the review will also be published 
on our website.

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=18028
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=18028
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=18028

	Agenda
	3 To confirm the Minutes of Meeting of the Council held on 29 July 2020 (copy herewith)
	Minutes

	7 Consideration of recommendations by Boards of the Council:
	Minutes
	05 2020 LGBCR - Report to P&O Board (29 09 2020) v4
	05 Appendix 1 - Polling District Forecasting Tool - Borough of Gosport
	05 Appendix 2 - Electorate and Wards comparisons with neighbours
	05 Appendix 3 - Council Size Submission Guidance
	05 Appendix 4 - Council Size Submission for Gosport v5
	P and O Part 1
	Minutes Fees
	08 2 Fees and Charges report
	08 GBC Fees & Charges 2021 Appendix for Board

	8 To receive the following Part II minutes of the Boards of the Council:
	Housing Board Part 2
	Climate Change Part 2
	Economic Development Part 2
	P and O Part II

	9 GOSPORT AND TOWN CENTRE PSPO
	2020 10 07 Appendix
	2020 09 28 Final Gosport and Town Center PSPO - Appendix 1
	2020 09 28 Survey Results - Appendix 2
	2020 10 02 EIA Screening - Appendix 3
	2020 10 02 EIA Full Assessment Form - Appendix 3
	2020 09 28 - Equality Impact data - Appendix 3


	10 PETITION SCHEMES
	Petition scheme Sept 2020


